
MEMBER AGENCIES 
ATHERTON  *  BELMONT  *  BURLINGAME  *  EAST PALO ALTO  *  FOSTER CITY  *  HILLSBOROUGH  *  MENLO PARK  *  REDWOOD CITY  

* SAN CARLOS  *  SAN MATEO  *  COUNTY OF SAN MATEO  *  WEST BAY SANITARY DISTRICT

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call

2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to three minutes. If there
are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from those submitted to
speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting. If the item you
are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed
as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or
have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that
time.

3. Adjourn to Closed Session:
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section §54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator; Agency Designated

Representative: Jean B. Savaree; Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director

THE REGULAR PORTION OF THE MEETING IS ANTICIPATED TO BEGIN AT 2:15PM 

4. Call to Order/Roll Call (Public Session)

5. Report from Closed Session

6. Public Comment (Public Session)

7. Executive Director’s Report p. 5

8. Approval of Consent Calendar
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these
items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  Items removed from the
Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion.
A. Approval of the Minutes from the November 7, 2019 Board/TAC Study Session ACTION p. 31 
B. Approval of Minutes from the November 21, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting ACTION p. 39 
C. Resolution Accepting the FY18/19 Audited Financial Statements ACTION p. 47 
D. Resolution Approving SBWMA Revised Investment Policy ACTION p. 91 
E. Resolution Approving a contract with LPG Fire Protection Company Inc for a not to exceed

amount of $77,778 ACTION p. 107 
F. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2019 ACTION p. 113 

9. Administration and Finance
A. Election of 2020 Board Chair and Vice Chair ACTION p. 121 
B. Resolution Accepting Mid-Year Review of FY19/20 Annual Operating Budget ACTION p. 123 

10. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance
No Items

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
THURSDAY, JANUARY 30, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 

San Carlos Library, Conference Room A/B 
610 Elm Street, San Carlos, CA 94070 
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11. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management
A. Review of Analysis of CRV Redemption Alternatives p. 145
B. Resolution Approving contract amendment for $71,272 for payment of Sales Tax on Board-Approved MRF

Controls Equipment ACTION p. 183 

12. Public Education and Outreach
A. Resolution Approving One-Year Base Contract with up to Two Additional Option Years for a Not-to-Exceed

Total Contract value of $99,000 with Royal Coach Tours for SBWMA Environmental Education Programs
Busing Services ACTION p. 191 

13. Informational Items Only (no action required)
A. Capital Project Status Update: Organics-to-Energy Pilot, MRF Phase I, and Glass Load Out Upgrades  p. 231
B. 2020 Legislative Session Update p. 235
C. 2020 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar  p. 241
D. Check Register Detail for November and December 2019 p. 243
E. Technical Consulting Contracts September – December 2019 p. 261
F. Potential Future Board Agenda Items  p. 263

14. Board Member Comments
15. Adjourn
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STAFF REPORT 
To:  SBWMA Board Members 
From:  Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 
Date:  January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject: Executive Director’s Report 

Staff and Agency partners are currently operating in a period of extreme high volume supporting numerous critical 
path projects, programs and facility initiatives since our last Board meeting. Here are highlights: 

1. Administration & Finance:
a. Mid-Year 2019/2020 Budget Adjustments

Great news--No tip-fee adjustments are recommended. Details are provided in agenda item 9B.

b. CAEATFA Grant
The Agency will realize over $60k in sales tax reimbursement benefits on O2E equipment purchased to
date. We’re also seeking additional sales tax savings on the BHS MRF Phase I and II equipment as well,
but we have learned that this state funding program is currently being restructured and, therefore, not
currently accepting applications—but Grant’s on it! Agenda item 11C addresses this issue.

c. Senior Facility Projects Engineer recruitment – Position filled
Due to an extreme number of complex capital and facility projects planned and anticipated during the next
3-5 years, the Board recently approved this limited term, new senior-level Engineering position. Matt
Southworth was hired and joined the Agency in December. Matt has 30+ years of local solid waste facility
experience and earned his BSCE in Civil Engineering (University of Minnesota) and his MS in Civil
Engineering (MIT).

2. Committee Updates:
a. Finance Committee Meeting (January 14th)

The Finance Committee reviewed the findings and recommendations of the annual independent financial
audit by Maze and Associates (Maze) of the SBWMA’s financial operations. Maze presented their
“unqualified” findings from the audit and stated that they were extremely impressed with the smooth
transition of the Agency’s financial services (A/R, A/P, cash management, investment review, etc.)
between the City of San Carlos and the City of Redwood City. Kudos to Sr. Finance Manager, John
Mangini, for managing this process and, of course, the stellar teams at both cities in their priority handling
of our finances. We are very grateful for their professional approaches towards our business needs. The
Committee also reviewed the Agency’s mid-year budget adjustment recommendations (agenda item 9B);
adopted annual investment policy recommendations; and received a presentation by HF&H on the SB
1383 Gap Analysis.

b. Legislative/Regulatory Committee (January 14th --Executive Committee Mtg)
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Staff continues to work closely with Agency lobbyists, EEC, on Agency co-sponsored AB 1509 
(Mullin) with co-sponsors, the State, and other key stakeholders on finding common ground on the scope 
of the bill to ensure passage of the bill at its next committee hearing in the State Senate this spring. In 
helping secure support and passage of AB 1509, EEC has facilitated a meeting with Staff and Melissa 
Immel, Deputy Legislative Secretary & Chief of Legislative Operations for the Governor’s Office to discuss 
our bill on January 28.  
 
The SBWMA has also proudly signed onto the California Recycling and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act of 
2020 which is a new statewide ballot initiative that needs 600,000 valid voters to qualify it for the 
November 2020 ballot. This ballot measure’s goals are incredibility ambitious and, by my way of thinking, 
absolutely necessary! Our modern society has a bigtime plastics problem that’s directly affecting our 
health, our environment, our food production, and so many other quality-of-life issues-long term solutions 
simply cannot come soon enough! Recology deserves high praise for leading this initiative.  
 
Agenda item 13B provides details of legislative activities and bills that our legislative advocate, EEC, is 
currently tracking for us. 

 
c. Pub Ed/Outreach Subcommittee (January 16th) 

The Pub Ed & Outreach Subcommittee met to discuss current outreach and education campaigns and 
solicit feedback from members regarding upcoming outreach campaigns, strategies, and tactics. Future 
topics include working on the 2021-2023 Public Education Plan.  

 
d. Technical Advisory Committee (no meeting held) 
e. Zero Waste Committee (no meeting held) 
 

3. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance:              
a. Town of Atherton 

On January 15th, the Town of Atherton reviewed the results of their recent collection services RFP and will 
continue this discussion at their February council meeting.   
 

b. Community Outreach and Environmental Education 
i. San Mateo County’s 2020 Household Hazardous Waste Temporary Drop off Event Schedule 

has been released. Attachment A identifies all SMC Temporary HHW 2020 events, including 11 
of these events being hosted in the SBWMA service area. 
 

ii. SB 1383 Action Planning Update 
Staff continues working with HFH Consulting in the identification and scoping of program 
requirements and costs mandated for SB 1383 implementation. This topic was reviewed at the 
January 14th Finance Committee meeting. Final regs are have been submitted for state legal review 
and are expected to be published in March. Based on this timing, a final SB 1383 Implementation 
Plan will be presented for SBWMA Board consideration at the April Board meeting. 
 

iii. In-Schools Program Update 
This Winter, the Environmental Education Team rolled out new programs in seven schools, three 
elementary schools in the Burlingame Schools District (McKinley, Roosevelt, Washington), three in 
San Carlos School District (Brittan Acres, Arroyo, White Oaks), and one in the San Mateo-Foster 
City Schools District (Park School). For the year, the Team has conducted a total of nine new roll-
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outs and six re-fresher trainings. Currently, the Environmental Ed Team is supporting five Green 
Teams at schools by conducting trainings for students and parent volunteers, leading games and 
activities at their meetings, hosting celebrations, and helping with scheduling. The team has also 
held two training workshops for custodians and continue to actively coordinate with custodial teams 
and facility managers. 
 

iv. Batteries! 
Outreach and Education 
The Agency once again ran local newspaper ads during the holidays to promote safe and proper 
handling of used household batteries. In addition, the Agency entered into a contract with S Groner 
Associates to develop a large-scale battery outreach and education campaign set to launch by 
Earth Day 2020. 
 
Multi-Family Battery Collection Buckets 
Recology has increased its multi-family battery buckets from 92 in 2017 to 151 on 2018 to 227 
accounts in 2019. To date, 264 buckets have been delivered as some accounts have multiple 
buckets.  
 
 

v. Compost Campaign Results – Rethink Compost: Every meal. Every day. 
RethinkWaste and Recology jointly ran an outreach and education campaign from September to 
November 2019 aimed to educate, inform, and provide resources to single-family home residents 
about why proper composting matters and how to compost correctly. The campaign consisted of 
many successful components, including the RethinkCompost.org website, sign-up for a compost e-
newsletter, pledging to compost 30 days, and promotion of Recology’s free compost kitchen pail. A 
full campaign summary can be found in Attachment B. 
 

vi. San Mateo County’s Disposable Foodware Ordinance Initiative 
The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors is set to hear the first reading of the Ordinance at its 
January 28 meeting. The SMC’s Office of Sustainability (OOS) has been leading the charge in 
drafting this Ordinance that bans non-recyclable foodware at food establishments located in 
unincorporated areas in the County. This ordinance is in complete alignment with our Agency’s 
mission and waste reduction goals. 

  
4. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management  

a. SBR Compensations Adjustment Request 
Per section 7.11 of the Shoreway Operating Agreement, SBR sent the SBWMA a letter dated January 10, 
2020 requesting a compensation adjustment for extraordinary expenses relating to China’s National 
Sword policy and anticipated CARB regulations that require new vehicles in 2023. 
 

b. Shoreway Buyback Center Update—Center was Temporary Closed beginning August 16th\ 
The Agency engaged the services of R3 Consulting to provide an analysis of alternatives for reception of 
CRV beverage containers for the SBWMA service area. Agenda item 11A gives a full analysis of the CRV 
redemption alternatives.  Based on this analysis and considerable program uncertainty at the state level, 
there is no recommendation to re-open the Shoreway Buyback Center at this time. 
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c. Organics-to-Energy Project 

These are truly exciting times at the Transfer Station! Installation of the stationary O2E project equipment 
will be completed during the next few weeks, although there are many essential specialized components 
still require delivery, installation, and completion (tanker trucks, loading equipment, fire suppression 
equipment) and integration into the operations. Once these final elements are completed and the City of 
San Carlos provides its final permit approvals, and our Waste Water Treatment Plant processing 
partnership agreements are finalized, we will enter into a full system check that should take about 4 
weeks. At this time, we’re envisioning full production of Commercial Source-Separated Organic (SSO) 
materials (from restaurants, etc.) to commence in March.  
 
Upon the successful installation of the MRF-Phase I equipment (estimated for late summer/early fall), 
organic-rich loads of trash will be pre-processed on this equipment, then blended to the SSO materials to 
fulfil the final component of this pilot project. The quality and quantities of the biogas yields generated from 
these activities will provide the basis for future recommendations to scale this operation up (or not). Based 
on this timeline, these recommendations are expected by year-end, or early 2021. See agenda item 13A. 

 
d. MRF Upgrades – Phase I 

The BHS equipment order has been placed, equipment manufacturing has begun with t installation to 
begin this spring and  expected to continue through the late summer and early fall. We are currently 
working our way through an unexpected structural engineering issue to satisfy the City of San Carlos’s 
Building department that may affect our project timeline. Assuming a timely and positive outcome that’s 
expected in this scenario, the timeline cited above should hold. Although incredibly challenging, all 
installation work will occur while the MRF is fully operational, with the exception of one week. The 
technical team will require at least one week of full facility access to provide essential system integration 
between the existing and new equipment, electrical systems, etc.. This shutdown is anticipated to be in 
April. Staff and SBR management are actively seeking agreements to temporarily handle our facility’s 250 
tons per day of recyclables during this period. See agenda item 13A for more information.  

 
e. Shoreway Sea Level Rise 

Like many low-lying properties and assets, the Agency’s Shoreway facility may be impacted by 
anticipated sea level rise (SLR) in the region. With Executive Committee support, Staff has contacted the 
San Mateo County Office of Sustainability’s team of SLR experts with a request to join their vulnerability 
assessment of many at-risk County facilities, including the San Carlos airport, a parcel that is immediately 
adjacent to our facility. This activity will be addressed in our 2020-2024 Long Range Plan (to be 
discussed at the February Board meeting).See Attachment C for a local SLR summary and relevant 
maps. 
 
 

f. Peninsula Clean Energy Eco-100 Opt Up 
Staff coordinated with SBR to opt-up the three Shoreway electricity accounts to Peninsula Clean Energy 
(PCE)’s Eco-100 service. Utilizing their 100% renewable, carbon-free electricity service is an 
improvement upon the 50% renewable, 90% carbon-free more-hydropower Eco-Plus current option we 
were opted-into by default a few years ago upon PCE’s creation. It entails paying a cost premium of $0.01 
per kilowatt-hour above the Eco-Plus option (which itself was slightly cheaper than original PG&E 
service).  
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Using 2018 data, that cost premium would translate to an extra expenditure of roughly $16,700 annually. 
This seems worthwhile given how opting-up is the simplest measure to minimize our carbon footprint, and 
arguably the most popular one as seen by how almost all of our Member Agencies have already opted-
up. For us, opting-up eliminates the five or so percent of our total Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions 
attributed to site electricity use. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Joe La Mariana         
Executive Director 

Attachments: 
Attachment A – 2020 Household Hazardous Waste Temporary Collection Events 
Attachment B – Rethink Compost Campaign Final Report 
Attachment C – RethinkWaste Initial Sea Level Rise Screening 
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Environmental Health Services  
Household Hazardous Waste Program 
2000 Alameda de las Pulgas, Suite #100  
San Mateo, CA 94403  
Phone: (650) 372-6200 | Fax: (650) 627-8244 
smchealth.org/hhw 

2020 HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE TEMPORARY COLLECTION EVENTS 
Events occur on Saturdays. Times vary by location. You must make an appointment 

online at smchealth.org/hhw, or by calling (650) 363-4718, select option 3. 
 The event address is disclosed to you after the appointment is made. 

SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO 
January 4th 
February 1st 

March 7th 
April 4th 
May 2nd 
June 6th 

August 1st 
October 3rd 

November 7th 
December 5th 

REDWOOD CITY 
January 25th 
March 28th 
May 9th 
July 25th 

September 26th 
November 14th 

EAST PALO ALTO 
May 30th 

LA HONDA 
July 11th 

FOSTER CITY 
April 25th 

PACIFICA 
January 18th 
March 21st 
April 18th 
May 16th 
June  20th 
July 18th 

August 15th 
September 19th 

October 17th 
November 21st 
December 19th 

DALY CITY 
March 14th 
June 13th 

September 12th 
December 12th 

MENLO PARK 
January 11th 

April 11th 
August 22nd 

HALF MOON BAY 
June 27th 

PORTOLA VALLEY 
October 10th 
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RETHINK COMPOST
EVERY MEAL. EVERY DAY.

CAMPAIGN REPORT SUMMARY | SEPTEMBER 15 THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2019

PREPARED BY
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RETHINK COMPOST CAMPAIGN SUMMARY
The RethinkWaste and Recology San Mateo County (Recology) co-branded Rethink Compost outreach campaign aimed 
to educate, inform and provide resources to single-family home residents within the service area about A) why proper 
composting matters and B) how to compost correctly.

Utilizing data found through the implementation of an in-field intercept survey, SGA proposed and helped launch a multi-
channel outreach and public education campaign targeting single-family household residents within the RethinkWaste 
service area to increase overall composting tonnage while reducing contamination.

Through the in-person survey and research, the main motivator for composting by residents in the service area was found 
to be doing what is best for the environment and making an environmental impact. The barriers to composting revolved 
around the perception that collection food scraps in the kitchen produced unwanted odors or attracted flies. It was also 
discovered that the age group less likely to compost was residents aged 36-45. The research findings laid the foundation of 
creating the campaign's messaging strategy, setting the target audience, and finalizing the campaign goals which were:

• Educate the audience on how to compost correctly
• Overcome the perceived barrier that kitchen composting produces unwanted odors and attracts flies
• Engage the audience on the environmental benefits of compost
• Increase overall compost tonnage within the service area

Various digital and traditional media channels were used to test messaging, drive traffic to the RethinkCompost.org 
subdomain site, and reach the target audience. These channels included:

• Facebook Advertising
• Google Ads
• YouTube Video Advertising (via Google Ads)
• Electronic Newsletter
• RethinkCompost.org Website
• Newspaper Advertising
• Direct Mail (Rethinker and Service Guide)

Overall, the first three goals of the campaign were achieved to some degree of success. Based on campaign results, we 
were able to reach a combined total of 119,5811 residents in the service area with compost education and information. 
The campaign addressed the negative perception of kitchen composting by creating a kitchen pail insert with usage and 
cleaning instructions and provided supplemental information on the RethinkCompost.org site. Part of the campaign 
included the promotion of Recology's free kitchen pails. This was supplemented by a user-friendly online order form on 
the site so eligible residents may order a brand new kitchen compost pail. The campaign engaged the audience by creating 
multiple calls-to-action on the website that included (1) signing up for a compost e-newsletter, (2) pledging to compost 
for 30 days, (3) sharing compost stories, (4) asking an expert compost-related questions, and (5) providing information on 
compost-related community events with the online calendar. Throughout the course of the campaign, the RethinkCompost.
org site received 2,477 users and 5,902 pageviews, with 50% of those site visits being on a mobile device.

To date, insufficient data has been collected to ascertain whether the campaign had a larger effect on increasing compost 
tonnage or decreasing compost contamination. This information should continue to be collected and analyzed within a five 
month time frame from the end of the campaign (roughly April/May 2020).

What follows is a summary of results from the aforementioned advertising campaign channels.

1 Total combined reach of Facebook and Google Ad campaigns. Number does not include Daily Journal ad impressions.

_________________________________________________ 
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“Subscribe”
Link Clicks: 142
Total Reach: 22,688
Impressions: 291,151
Ran for 65 days
Average CPC: $2.39
CTR: 0.04%

"Thanksgiving” 
Link Clicks: 28
Total Reach: 10,446
Impressions: 106,470
Ran for 22 days
Average CPC: $3.67
CTR: 0.03%

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: FACEBOOK

“Close The Loop” 
Link Clicks: 182
Total Reach: 25,811
Impressions: 466,482
Ran for 60 days
Average CPC: $2.18
CTR: 0.05%

“Landfill” 
Link Clicks: 77
Total Reach: 19,894
Impressions: 215,397
Ran for 43 days
Average CPC: $2.18
CTR: 0.04%

“Reduce”
Link Clicks: 72
Total Reach: 18,364
Impressions: 160,651
Ran for 60 days
Average CPC: $2.02
CTR: 0.05%
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“Impact VIDEO” 
Link Clicks: 8
Total Reach: 3,197
Impressions: 8,164
Avg Video Watch time: 20 sec (54% of full 
video)
Ran for 25 days
Average CPC: $14.28
CTR: 0.29%

“Tips”
Link Clicks: 12
Total Reach: 7,818
Impressions: 28,990
Ran for 21 days
Average CPC: $2.52
CTR: 0.04%

“Kitchen Pail” 
Link Clicks: 11
Total Reach: 4,549
Impressions: 15,902
Ran for 14 days
Average CPC: $1.46
CTR: 0.08%

“Kitchen Pail VIDEO” 
Link Clicks: 140
Total Reach: 6,938
Impressions: 30,785
Avg Video Watch time: 19 sec (93% of full 
video)
Ran for 33 days
Average CPC: $2.53
CTR: 0.46%

“Impact”
Link Clicks: 31
Total Reach: 13,884
Impressions: 87,885
Ran for 46 days
Average CPC: $2.62
CTR: 0.04%

“Tips VIDEO” 
Link Clicks: 28
Total Reach: 5,160
Impressions: 13,129
Avg Video Watch time: 21 sec (48% of 
full video)
Ran for 30 days
Average CPC: $6.17
CTR: 0.27%

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: FACEBOOK

_________________________________________________ 
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“Tips”
Link Clicks: 6
Total Reach: 3,107
Impressions: 10,245
Ran for 13 days
Average CPC: $1.86
CTR: 0.04%

TOTAL RESULTS FROM ALL FACEBOOK ADS

Clicks: 823 (1) 

Reach: 56,960 (2) 

Impressions: 1,675,573 (3) 

Total spent: $2,236.50 (4)

1. Number of clicks to the rethinkcompost.org site.

2. Number of unique individuals who saw the ads at least once.

3. Number of times the ad was on screen.

4. Total amount spent on the Facebook campaign.

“Pledge”
Link Clicks: 11
Total Reach: 7,660
Impressions: 41,920
Ran for 18 days
Average CPC: $3.84
CTR: 0.03%

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: FACEBOOK

“Ask The Expert”
Link Clicks: 35
Total Reach: 14,456
Impressions: 116,860
Ran for 43 days
Average CPC: $3.44
CTR: 0.03%

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
The most successful ads that ran based on click through rate (CTR) were the 3 videos, with the Order A Kitchen Pail 
video performing the best. On average, videos tend to perform better than static images, but the fact that the Kitchen 
Pail video was half as long as the other two videos as well as the free offer were the leading factors to its performance.  
These video clips were also edited out from a longer compost video and not specifically created for this campaign.

SGA would recommend that videos be created that are specifically created for this compost campaigns. These videos 
should be no longer than 20 seconds and drive a specific call to action.

The most successful ad based on total clicks was the "Close The Loop" the static image ad with an environmental 
message. This aligns with the intercept research that was conducted prior to the campaign. The second most 
successful ad based on clicks was the "Subscribe" ad. Due to the fact that the number of e-newsletter subscriptions 
did not correlate to the number of clicks, it is to be assumed that the audience was enticed by the ad's message: "Are 
you looking for simple, helpful, and easy-to-use compost information, tips, and tricks that you can use everyday?" The 
language of simplicity of convenience should be used in other  iterations of this messaging to see if it attracts the same 
amount of audience engagement.

_________________________________________________ 
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“Environmental Impact”
Link Clicks: 327  |  Impressions: 10,042
Ran for 70 days  |  Average CPC: $2.23  |  CTR: 3.26%

“Free Kitchen Pail”
Link Clicks: 386  |  Impressions: 3,370
Ran for 25 days  |  Average CPC: $0.93  |  CTR: 11.45% 

“Thanksgiving”
Link Clicks: 30  |  Impressions 2,187
Ran for 16 days  |  Average CPC: $2.49  |  CTR: 1.37%

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: GOOGLE ADS

“Ask the Expert”
Link Clicks: 39  |  Impressions: 1,037
Ran for 43 days  |  Average CPC: $2.51  |  CTR: 3.76%

“Take Our Pledge” 
Link Clicks: 3  |  Total Reach: 325
Ran for 14 days  |  Average CPC: $1.49 |  CTR: 0.92%

“Compost Story” 
Link Clicks: 10  |  Impressions: 1,082
Ran for 21 days  |  Average CPC: $1.46  |  CTR: 0.92%

“Subscribe” 
Link Clicks: 9  |  Impressions: 424
Ran for 21 days  |  Average CPC: $1.65  |  CTR: 2.12%
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TOTAL RESULTS FROM ALL GOOGLE ADS 

Clicks: 998 (1)

Impressions: 62,621 (2)

Total spent: $1,854.36 (3)

1. Number of unique clicks to the 
rethinkcompost.org site.

2. Number of times the ad was shown due to search results
3. Total amount spent on the Google Ads campaign to date.

“Free Kitchen Pail Video”
Link Clicks: 83  |  Views: 8,235
Ran for 32 days  |  Average CPV: $0.03 |  CTR: 1.0%

Video played to:
5 sec (25%): 91%
10 sec (50%): 37%
15 sec (75%): 28%
20 sec (100%): 21%

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: YOUTUBE VIA GOOGLE ADS

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
During the course of the campaign, SGA ran multiple ads in different ad groups to test messaging and keywords. The 
search terms that received the largest amount of impressions and clicks was "recology san mateo" and just "recology" 
receiving a combined total of 227 clicks. I total of 540 search terms were used, but all others received single digital 
clicks. Future Google Ad campaigns should make sure to use both these keywords along with other relevant keywords 
or phrases. 

The most successful ad that achieved the highest click rate, lowest cost per click (CPC), and highest click through rate 
(CTR) was the "Free Kitchen Pail" ad. SGA would suggest running this same ad in the future to help promote the free 
kitchen pails and drive traffic to the website. The second most successful ad was the "Environmental Impact" ad which 
garnered over ten thousand impressions and over 300 clicks to the website. This again aligns with the intercept survey 
results which pinpointed environmental impact as the primary motivator for composting.

In comparison with Facebook, Google Ads proved to be a more effective platform for getting ad clicks, generating a 
significantly higher click through rate that Facebook, all using a smaller budget. SGA would recommend that a future 
campaign allot a larger budget towards Google Ads in comparison with Facebook advertising.

In addition to the Google Ad display advertising, SGA experimented showing a video ad on the YouTube platform 
through Google Video Advertising to help in reaching the 36-45 age group. While it managed to garner the third most 
amount of clicks of all the ads placed for a relatively low cost ($0.03 cost per view),  Facebook proved to be a more 
successful platform for this type of video advertising achieving 140 clicks with a higher average watch time. 

In terms of demographics, the Google Ads was shown to residents in all jurisdictions of the service area, with San 
Mateo and Redwood City garnering 544 total clicks (over 54% of all campaign clicks on Google Ads). This aligns with 
general population numbers in those cities.
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RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: GOOGLE ANALYTICS

TOP 10 PAGES VIEWED ON RETHINKCOMPOST SITE THROUGH THE LIFE OF THE CAMPAIGN

1. Ordering a Kitchen Pail: 1,385
2. Home: 821
3. Environmental Benefits: 504
4. Compost Giveaway: 448
5. Tips & Tricks: 393

6. Ask The Expert: 268
7. Kitchen Pail Maintenance & Alternatives: 234
8. Compost Pledge: 231
9. Contact Us: 172
10. Diminishing Landfill Capacity: 146

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
The multiple advertising channels we employed all had the same goal of driving traffic to the rethinkcompost.org 
website where residents could find more information about the different aspects of composting. The top three pages 
of the compost site correspond to the most effective ads SGA ran in the campaign leading visitors to the kitchen pail 
order page, home page, and the environmental benefits page.

Because there is very good source of information on this website, SGA recommends that RethinkWaste and Recology 
San Mateo County continue to link to this site. SGA recommends including a "compost" link under single family 
residents menu section of the RethinkWaste.org website and also adding a direct link to the home page in one for the 
circular button links. This would mean continuing to update the information and events posting on this site as needed. 
Another option is to copy the content over to the rethinkwaste.org site and have both sites fully integrated.
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RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: CONSTANTCONTACT

Email 1 of 3

Total Sent: 120 |  Total Open: 71  |  Open rate: 59.2%

Click rate: 38.5% (clicks indicated in pink circles below) 

Email 2 of 3

Total Sent: 116 |  Total Open: 70  |  Open rate: 60.3%

Click rate: 33.5% (clicks indicated in pink circles below) 
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CONSTANTCONTACT SUMMARY

Email 1 of 3: 
Open rate: 57%, click through rate: 38% 
Highest clicked link: Compost Pledge

Email 2 of 3: 
Open rate: 55%, click through rate: 20% 
Highest clicked link: Compost Giveaway

Email 3 of 3: 
Open rate: 45%, click through rate: 38% 
Highest clicked link: Videos

To date we have a total of 123 email subscribers

Email 3 of 3

Total Sent: 97  |  Total Open: 46  |  Open rate: 47.4%

Click rate: 38.1% (clicks indicated in pink circles below) 

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: CONSTANTCONTACT

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
In order to drive opt-in email subscription, SGA 
place the option to subscribe to it's newsletter 
with every form on the rethinkcompost.org 
website. Of the 259 total forms submitted on the 
website, 47% of people decided to subscribe to the 
compost e-newsletter of their own accord signaling 
a willingness to learn more about composting 
and being more involved in the subject matter. 
And more interestingly, only 16 people (13% of 
all newsletter subscribers) subscribed using the 
specific "e-newsletter sign-up page" on the website. 
Providing residents additional outlets to subscribe 
proved very beneficial.

The e-newsletters were sent on a bi-weekly basis 
to new subscribers. SGA recommends continuing 
to send a compost e-newsletter on a minimum 
monthly frequency. SGA also recommends an 
email program that allows the set up an automated 
welcome email to streamline the send process. 
SGA also recommends promoting the e-newsletter 
sign-up on your social media channels to continue 
growing the subscriber base. Of the 123 email 
subscribers, the unsubscribe rate is 0% and the 
open and click rate are some of the highest that 
RethinkWaste has seen. Again, this indicates that 
the people who signed up for this newsletter are 
truly interested in receiving the information.
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WEBSITE FORM  SUBMISSION SUMMARY 
There has been a total of 165 forms submitted n the 
website with the breakdown listed below. 

• Ask the Expert: 9 (asked about: plastic-lined coffee
cups; business composting; Chinese take out
boxes; apartment composting; compostable bags;
using food disposal; what items are compostable;
produce stickers)

• Newsletter Sign-up: 16

• Contact Us: 1

• Kitchen Pail Order Form: 202 (5 form entries came
after the end of the ad campaign)

• Share your Compost Story: 2

• Compost Pledge: 31 (2 out of service area)

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: FORM SUBMISSIONS

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
By far, the most popular form was the Kitchen Pail Order Form which received over 200 entries. The form submissions 
for the kitchen pail increased exponentially once the ads promoting the free kitchen pails started running. We can 
assume that residents were interested in this service but lacked the information until they saw the ads and were given 
the opportunity to easily order online. We can also assume that the residents who ordered these kitchen pails are 
also most likely to use them. SGA recommends sending a follow up email survey to the receiver of the kitchen pails to 
inquire about their compost behavior and how the kitchen pail has helped (or hindered) this behavior. It would also be 
a great time to see if they have any pending questions about composting. We would recommend sending something 
out in January/February 2020 timeframe. Together with making the ordering of a kitchen pail more accessible, the 
creation of the kitchen pail tip card insert (pictured below) is meant to aid residents in understanding how to care 
for their pails and which item do or don't go into the compost. Due to the success of the kitchen pail program, SGA 
recommends continuing the promotion of the free kitchen pail and the online kitchen pail order form. 

The compost pledge form garnered 31 pledge takers. It would great to do a follow up survey with these pledge takers 
as well and see if they report following through with the pledge and how their composting behavior changed after the 
pledge (comparing it to the pledge takers who won the $25 incentive) to see if the incentive made a significant change 
in behavior or attitude. These pledge takers could also be considered community champions who could be used to 
spread the composting message.

The "Share Your Compost Story" form was the least successful in terms of creating engagement. We received a total 
of 2 form submissions. While a good idea in theory, this idea is not something we'd suggest allocating budget to in the 
future. The idea may be reworked with further resources.

KITCHEN PAIL MAINTENANCE

廚餘桶維護

5 EASY WAYS TO CARE FOR YOUR KITCHEN PAIL FOR A GREAT COMPOSTING EXPERIENCE!

¡5 MANERAS FÁCILES DE CUIDAR SU CUBETA DE COCINAPARA UNA GRAN EXPERIENCIA HACIENDO ABONO!

5個保養廚餘桶的簡單方法，讓堆肥處理過得及容易又乾淨！

Line your kitchen pail with a BPI-certified bag, newspaper, or paper bag to keep it clean. 

No liners? No problem! Rinse or wipe pail clean as needed to keep it smelling fresh. 

Prefer to use the dishwasher? Go right ahead! This kitchen pail is dishwasher safe, but just make sure to avoid the heat dry setting.

Empty the contents of your kitchen pail into your green compost cart every 1-2 days to 
prevent odors.

Extend the 1-2 days suggested limit by placing your pail in the freezer! Freezing the contents of your kitchen pail prevents leaks and smells.

Cubra su cubeta de cocina con una bolsa con certificación BPI, periódico o bolsa de papel para mantenerla limpia. 

¿No tiene una bolsa con certificacion BPI? No hay problema! Enjuague o limpie la cubeta de cocina según sea necesario para mantenerla con un olor fresco. 

¿Prefieres usar el lavaplatos? ¡No se preocupe! Esta cubeta de cocina es apta para el 
lavaplatos, pero solo asegúrese de evitar el ajuste de calor seco.

Vacíe el contenido de su cubeta de cocina en su carrito de abono verde cada 1-2 días para evitar olores e insectos.

¡Extienda el límite sugerido de 1-2 días colocando su cubeta de cocina en el congelador! Congelar el contenido de su cubeta de cocina evita fugas y olores.

	 在廚餘桶內鋪墊	BPI	認證垃圾袋，報紙或紙袋，保持乾淨。

	 沒東西可墊?沒問題！必要時沖洗或擦拭廚餘桶，消除異味。

	 想用洗碗機清洗?繼續用吧!本廚餘桶適用於洗碗機，但切勿使用烘乾設定。

	 每1- 2天將廚餘桶內容物倒入綠色的堆肥推車，以免發臭。

	 將廚餘桶放入冷凍庫，可將建議時限延長	
1-2天!將堆肥桶容物冰凍起來，可防止外漏和發臭。

VISIT RETHINKCOMPOST.ORG FOR MORE HELPFUL TIPS AND INFORMATION.

VISITE RETHINKCOMPOST.ORG PARA MÁSCONSEJOS ÚTILES E INFORMACIÓN.

請瀏覽 RETHINKCOMPOST.ORG， 了解更多實用訣竅和資訊。

MANTENIMIENTO DE CUBETAS DE COCINA

#2

#1

#3

#4

#5

#1

#4

#2

#5

#3

#2

#3

#4

#5

#1

ACCEPTED ITEMS IN YOUR COMPOST CARTRethinkCompost.org | carts@recology.com

RETHINK COMPOST
EVERY MEAL. EVERY DAY.

USTED PUEDE HACER UN IMPACTO AMBIENTAL 

MEDIANTE EL ABONO. El abono de sus restos de 

comida y productos de papel sucios reduce los 

desechos que van a los vertederos y las emisiones de 

gases de efecto invernadero.

Use esta cubeta de cocina para recoger sus 

restos de comida y productos de papel sucios. 

Vacíe el contenido en el carrito de abono.

Printed on 100% post-consumer paper. 09/19

您可以透過堆肥為環保盡一份力。 

將食物殘渣和沾染食物的紙製品做堆肥處

理，可以減少掩埋場的垃圾量，還可減少溫

室氣體排放。

使用本廚餘桶收集食物殘渣和沾染食物的

紙製品。將桶內殘物倒入綠色的堆肥推車。

YOU CAN MAKE AN ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT BY COMPOSTING. 

Composting your food scraps and food-soiled paper products reduces waste 

going to landfills and reduces greenhouse gas emissions. 

¡Por favor mantenga estos artículos fuera de su carrito de abono!  •  

Artículos aceptados en su carrito de abono   •  

請勿將這些物品丟入堆肥推車！

可丟入堆肥推車的物品

PLEASE KEEP THESE ITEMS OUT OF YOUR COMPOST CART!

Use this pail to collect your food scraps and food-soiled paper products. 

Empty the contents into the green compost cart.

Kitchen Pail Tip Card Insert
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YOU CAN MAKE A POSITIVE 
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
by composting your food scraps 
and organic materials. 

RETHINK COMPOST
EVERY MEAL. EVERY DAY.

LEARN MORE AT: SMCSUSTAINABILITY.ORG/COMPOST

Looking to have a green, sustainable, and delicious
holiday? Check out the Guide To A Sustainable

Thanksgiving at RethinkCompost.org/thanksgiving.

RETHINK COMPOST
EVERY MEAL. EVERY DAY.

T hanksgivingGUIDE TO A SUSTAINABLET hanksgivingGUIDE TO A SUSTAINABLE

RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: DAILY JOURNAL ADVERTISING

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
Traditional print advertising plays a role in brand 
awareness, however, acquiring metrics or data 
to prove whether that ad was effective is much 
more difficult. SGA has no way to determine 
what results, if any, this "Environmental Impact" 
ad had on the campaign. One way would be 
to see if the Office of Sustainability can see 
if there was a spike in visits to their website 
smcsustainability.org/compost.

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
SGA can do a rough estimation that this ad may 
have acquired up to 23 link visits based on the 
page's total number of entrances (81) minus the 
ad link clicks from Facebook and Google Ad (58). 
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The Rethinker newsletter is dedicated to
educating residents and businesses regarding
waste reduction, reuse, and recycling. With
your help, we can meet our goal of diverting
waste from the landfill and maintain healthy,
livable communities.

RethinkWaste Administrative Offices
610 Elm Street, Suite 202 | San Carlos, CA 94070

Printed on recycled paper with soy-based inks

Want more compost tips and information? Visit RethinkCompost.org today.

FACT: The holiday season is once again upon us; 
a time for friends, family, food—and food 
leftovers! Here are some tips to help you along 
the way to minimize food waste and help make 
a positive environmental impact.

1. Shop with a plan. Know how many people 
you’re expecting, think about portion sizes 
and plan accordingly.

2. Coordinate recipes with friends and 
family so you don’t end up with three 
green bean casseroles. Setting up a 
shared online document is a great way to 
simultaneously plan the meal with friends 
and family.

3. Invite guests to bring reusable 
containers to take home leftovers.

4. Place your compost kitchen pail next to 
your garbage with a sign labeled “Food 
Scraps” so your guests know exactly what 
to do with their food scraps and food-
soiled paper. Don’t have a kitchen pail yet? 
Order one today at:  
RethinkCompost.org/order.

5. Due to possible increased volume during 
your holiday meal, consider using a 
bigger container with double-bagged 
paper or BPI-certified bags inside your 
container to minimize trips out to your 
green compost cart.

6. Did your pie come in a plain cardboard 
box? Uncoated or wax-coated cardboard 
is compostable—especially food-soiled or 
greasy boxes. 

According to a 2018/2019 
grand jury report, 71% of all 
waste that is landfilled in 
San Mateo County is organic 
material such as food scraps, 
paper, and yard trimmings. 
And when it comes to the 
holiday seasons between 
Thanksgiving and New Year’s, 
Americans throw out 25% 
more!

This is tough news to 
swallow, but you can help do 
your part by having a green, 
sustainable holiday season.

RETHINKER Fall/Winter 2019

Dear Rethinker Read
er,

From our family to yours, have 
a 

happy and healthy 
holiday season

filled with loved on
es and joy.

~The RethinkWaste Family

The Rethinker newsletter is dedicated to
educating residents and businesses regarding
waste reduction, reuse, and recycling. With
your help, we can meet our goal of diverting
waste from the landfill and maintain healthy,
livable communities.

RethinkWaste Administrative Offices
610 Elm Street, Suite 202 | San Carlos, CA 94070

Printed on recycled paper with soy-based inks

Want more compost tips and information? Visit RethinkCompost.org today.

FACT: The holiday season is once again upon us; 
a time for friends, family, food—and food 
leftovers! Here are some tips to help you along 
the way to minimize food waste and help make 
a positive environmental impact.

1. Shop with a plan. Know how many people
you’re expecting, think about portion sizes
and plan accordingly.

2. Coordinate recipes with friends and
family so you don’t end up with three
green bean casseroles. Setting up a
shared online document is a great way to
simultaneously plan the meal with friends
and family.

3. Invite guests to bring reusable
containers to take home leftovers.

4. Place your compost kitchen pail next to
your garbage with a sign labeled “Food
Scraps” so your guests know exactly what
to do with their food scraps and food-
soiled paper. Don’t have a kitchen pail yet?
Order one today at:
RethinkCompost.org/order.

5. Due to possible increased volume during
your holiday meal, consider using a
bigger container with double-bagged
paper or BPI-certified bags inside your
container to minimize trips out to your
green compost cart.

6. Did your pie come in a plain cardboard
box? Uncoated or wax-coated cardboard
is compostable—especially food-soiled or
greasy boxes.

According to a 2018/2019 
grand jury report, 71% of all 
waste that is landfilled in 
San Mateo County is organic 
material such as food scraps, 
paper, and yard trimmings. 
And when it comes to the 
holiday seasons between 
Thanksgiving and New Year’s, 
Americans throw out 25% 
more!

This is tough news to 
swallow, but you can help do 
your part by having a green, 
sustainable holiday season.

RETHINKER Fall/Winter 2019

Dear Rethinker Read
er,

From our family to yours, have 
a

happy and healthy 
holiday season 

filled with loved on
es and joy.

~The RethinkWaste Family
RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: RETHINKER FALL/WINTER 2019 NEWSLETTER

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
There was a substantial increase in the number of kitchen pail orders received once this Rethinker newsletter was 
mailed with the message of having a sustainable holiday meal with a link of how to order a kitchen pail. This mild 
reminder was just the thing residents needed to spur them into action. SGA recommends continuing to incorporate 
compost messaging to drive residents to the website and find more compost information.
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RETHINK COMPOST AD CAMPAIGN: SERVICE GUIDE

OBSERVATIONS & RECOMMENDATIONS
The creation of a service guide that incorporates 
compost information was a much needed piece 
of collateral to remind residents in the service 
area about which items go into which cart, as 
well as provide information about other services. 
This piece will be mailed out to all single-family 
households in the winter of 2020. SGA recommends 
either updating the website to link back to the 
compost subsite or integrating the compost 
information into the RethinkWaste.org website 
prior to the mailing.

Residents are provided small kitchen pails at no 
charge, to make it more convenient to collect 
compostable materials at home. Simply use 
the pail for food scraps and food soiled paper, 

then empty the contents into your green 
cart. Certified BPI compostable 

bags are acceptable.

Kitchen Pail

HOLIDAY TREES

may be placed NEXT 
TO YOUR GREEN CART 
from Jan. 2 to Jan. 31. 
Trees longer than 8 ft. 
in length will need to 
be cut up and placed 

next to your green cart. 
Smaller trees can be 
placed in green carts 

trunk-side up. 

USED HOUSEHOLD 
BATTERIES

and cell phones can 
go in a clear sealed 

bag ON TOP OF YOUR 
BLACK CART.

Put non-recyclable, non-organic, and  
non-toxic items in the black cart.

RECYCLE COMPOST LANDFILL

Need more help deciding 
which items go into what 

bin? Get answers at:

WHATBIN.COM

Put recyclable items loose in the blue cart EXCEPT 
for shredded paper—place that in a paper bag 

labeled “shredded paper.”

Put food scraps, food & beverage soiled paper, and 
yard/landscape materials in the green cart. 

No glass and plastics (including Bioplastics).

Glass Bottles 
& Jars

Plastic Containers 
#1-7

Metals Clean Paper Products

Food Scraps

Food & Beverage Soiled Paper

Yard Trimmings

Broken Ceramics, Mirrors, Toys

Snack Wrappers, Chip 
Bags, Juice/Soup Boxes

Foam Packaging  
& Bubble Wrap

Plastic Bags, Film, Cutlery, 
Straws, & Black Plastic

Pet Waste  
& Diapers

USED MOTOR OIL  
& FILTERS 

can be placed in a clear 
screw top container 

and clear zip-top bag 
NEXT TO THE BLUE 

CART. You may request 
a container and bag 

from Recology.

SIN
G

LE-FA
M

ILY H
O

U
SEH

O
LD

 SERV
IC

E G
U

ID
E

Printed on 100%
 post consum

er paper.  
Please recycle again!   [ 12/19 ]

Para obtener inform
ación en  

español, visite: Recology.com

有
關

中
文

信
息

，請
訪

問： 
Recology.com

Dow
nload the Recology M

obile App
to look up or schedule services,  

pay your bill, set service rem
inders, 

and m
ore.

Recology.com
Carts@

Recology.com
(650) 595-3900

 225 Shorew
ay Road

San Carlos, CA 94070

FO
R RESIDENTS O

F:Atherton, Belm
ont, Burlingam

e,  
East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, M

enlo Park, 
Redw

ood City, San M
ateo, San Carlos,  

Parts of Unincorporated San M
ateo County,  

and W
est Bay Sanitary District
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RethinkWaste , 333 Shoreway Rd, San Carlos 

Initial Sea Level Rise Vulnerability Screening 

Prepared by San Mateo County Office of Sustainability 

12-16-2019

A high level screening was performed for the Rethink Waste facility using BCDC’s Adapting to Rising 
Tides Explorer, which uses a flood model developed by AECOM. The benefit of this tool is that a single 
view can provide information on a range of storms and sea level rise without storms. 

At 12 inches of sea level rise or a king tide, some overtopping of levees and shoreline along Redwood 
Shores could occur.  

Rethink Waste 
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At 3 feet of sea level rise or a 50 year storm today, flooding could begin to impact US 101 north of the 
facility.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Rethink Waste 
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At 48 inches of sea level rise, or 6 inches of sea level rise with a 1% storm today, or 12 inches of sea level 
rise and a 50 year storm, a significant threshold is reached and the facility and surrounding access roads 
flood. Flood depths range from 0 to 6 feet at this point. The scenario where 6 inches and a 1% storm 
flood the facility could occur as early as 2030. This scenario should be considered due to the potential 
implications to human health and Bay water quality should the facility flood. Additionally, impaired 
access to the facility could have significant financial implications.  

Rethink Waste 
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Proposed Scope of Work 

Based on this screening-level analysis, we propose the following activities to develop a facility specific 
vulnerability assessment and adaptation plan. This scope of work could be included in the County’s Sea 
Level Rise Policy Implementation Plan as an asset being developed in partnership with Rethink Waste. 

• Partner and stakeholder workshops 
o A number of initiatives are underway that could benefit the protection of the Rethink 

Waste facility in light of sea level rise. A series of stakeholder workshops would be 
beneficial at the scoping phase, vulnerability assessment phase and the adaptation 
planning phase. These include: 
 Redwood City will be going through a planning process for Redwood Shores for 

the shoreline, which could include sea level rise. 
 Samtrans is developing an adaptation plan for South Base for sea level rise and 

heat. 
 San Carlos Airport will need to consider sea level rise via the County’s Sea Level 

Rise Policy for County-Owned Assets 
 City of San Carlos is developing an Adaptation Plan and will be utilizing data 

from the County.  
 The Flood and Sea Level Rise District will be developing outreach strategies and 

a long term investment plan. 
 Additional stakeholders include: Marriott, RWC Fire Station, Hiller, Pullman, 

Coherus Biosciences. 
 

• Technical Assessment 
o The initial screening suggests that impacts to the facility could occur as early as 2030. A 

technical assessment should include the following components. 
 Assessment of existing and planned shoreline protection strategies. 
 Assessment of all sea level rise impacts, including changes in water elevation, 

storm events, inputs from upstream watersheds, groundwater table elevation, 
subsidence, and erosion.  

 Assessment of exposure, sensitivity, and adaptive capacity of the facility to 
absorb and respond to anticipated changes.  

 Assessment of potential risks to the adjacent communities were the facility to 
flood.  

 Assessment of impacts to business continuity and financial viability. 
 

• Adaptation Planning 
o Development of shoreline solutions that Rethink Waste could collaborate on with 

adjacent property owners, as identified through the stakeholder workshops.  
o Facility-level strategies for protection of the facility to consider operational changes, 

business continuity, structural solutions, stormwater management, and public 
education.  

o Consideration of joint funding opportunities. 
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8A

DRAFT MINUTES 
SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

STUDY SESSION MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND THE 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

November 7, 2019 – 2:00PM. 
San Carlos Library Conference Room A 

Call to Order: 2:06PM 
1. Roll Call Board Members:

Roll Call TAC Members: 

2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. 
Each speaker is limited to two minutes. If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker 
cards from those submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the Board Meeting. 
If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond to statements made or questions posed as 
allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Board's general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed 
on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time. 

None

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent 

Atherton X Menlo Park X 
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X
East Palo Alto X San Mateo X
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X West Bay Sanitary District X

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent 

Atherton X Menlo Park X
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X
East Palo Alto X San Mateo X
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X West Bay Sanitary District X
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3. Executive Director’s Update 
 
Executive Director La Mariana welcomed all to the study session and made the following updates: 
 

 The January 2020 Board Meeting will be the 5th Thursday in January rather than the usual 4th 
Thursday, so it will be Thursday January 30th from 2-4PM. 

 Rethink Recycling day was held on October 27, here at the San Carlos library.  Due to 
construction at Shoreway the event couldn’t be at its usual home at the facility.  There were about 
100 attendees. There was a fix-it clinic, a clothing swap, and food preservation workshops, and 
he thanked the education and outreach teams for their efforts.   

 The annual Earth Day event held in the spring will face similar site restrictions due the 
construction, but he is hoping to preserve the site tours as part of the Earth Day messaging. 

 Buy back center options are being evaluated and will be discussed at the January meeting. 
 The Organics-to-Energy project is making great progress and looking at going live by the end of 

January. 
 At the November board meeting there will be a proposal for one part time additional staff to assist 

with high level engineering review of Shoreway projects to assist with the high volume of work 
that is taking place at Shoreway. 

 The November Board meeting will have the calendar year financial review and staff will not be 
recommending a tip fee increase in 2020. 

 Discussions on alternative fuels for the new Recology fleet have begun with Recology, there will 
be two pilot trucks starting in the next few weeks - one running on bio-gas and one electric. 

o Member Widmer asked about the possibility of renewable diesel fuel, and Executive 
Director La Mariana answered that it looks viable, that it won’t require any retrofitting of 
the current vehicles.  Staff will continue to look into that possibility and will be reporting 
back on that sooner than the other two options. 

 Mike Kelly of Recology will speak at agenda item 7A about the power lines at Shoreway that keep 
getting hit by Recology trucks. 

 AB1298 is a new statewide bond measure that Kevin Mullin is sponsoring, intended to be a 
funding mechanism for a broad variety of natural resources programs and projects that currently 
have gaps in funding.  He added that this is a direct result of Kevin Mullin’s team retreat at our 
facility. 

 Veteran’s day operations and collections will be business as usual. 
 He introduced the 4 new fellows that joined the team in October: Juan Miranda, Janelle Osteen, 

Nadia Thompson and Laura Wessberg. 
 

4. Approval of Consent Calendar 
Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate action.  
Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 
A. Approval of Minutes from the September 12, 2019 Board/TAC Study Session 
 
Member Groom noted that the minutes had her as both present and absent, she was present 
 
Motion/Second: Hurt/Brownrigg 
Voice Vote: All in favor 
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5. Staff Update and Review of Draft 2020-2024 Long-Range Plan

Staff Ligon gave a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the changes since the last Long-Range Plan
discussion and asked for Board and TAC feedback on the revised draft.

The Board discussed the mission statement and guiding principles and gave feedback:
 Cost Effective and efficient should stay part of the mission statement it’s a crucial element
 Concerns that leading edge could be bleeding edge
 Needs to be more flexible to work when the waste stream and waste industry changes
 Questioning the Agency’s role in enforcement relating to the Mission Statement
 Include something in the Mission Statement about the Agency’s role in legislative analysis and

development
 The cost-effective elements are still there just not called out enough
 The Mission Statement needs strike a balance between innovative programs, cost-effective and

flexible

Member Widmer added that he thought he couldn’t approve it in just a few weeks, and thought it needed 
more revision and more time to review where the technology is changing. 

The Board discussed enforcement as part of the mission statement.  Executive Director La Mariana noted 
that the next agenda item is on SB1383, and enforcement is a big part of that legislation, and putting 
enforcement into the mission statement is trying to address that legislation. 

The Board then discussed the guiding principles and gave feedback. 
 The guiding principles need to be clear that a return on investment analysis is a big part of how

the Agency approaches innovative technologies.  And that the return on investment analyzes
both revenues generated, and costs avoided.

 Should include more about finance.
 Include specific language about batteries and plastics in the 5-year plan.
 Another member noted that the Agency is not where it needs to be on batteries but didn’t think it

was a long-term problem but rather it is short term and needs to be addressed before 2021.
 The guiding principles under economically sustainable were cut down to three bullet points, likely

to save space, but they should be expanded and more in depth.
 Regarding Zero Waste Principles; the board discussed changing the words because actual net

zero waste is not possible, while others thought Zero Waste is a stretch goal, and the Agency will
support a more robust legislature program to reduce or ban products that aren’t recyclable to get
to Zero Waste.

 The Board asked to include specifics and stronger language on EPR in the principles, so that the
Long-Range plan doesn’t assume the Agency is responsible for everything.

The Board then discussed the long-range plan document and gave feedback.  Member Widmer asked 
that the program timing table be more specific as it was too generic.  Staff Ligon noted that it relates to 
the following pages with more detail. 
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Member Widmer asked why the recycling tonnage was going down.  Executive Director La Mariana 
answered that part of it is the unsettled markets, and part is that when the fire happened the 3rd party tons 
that were coming in went to a different facility, and never came back.   
 
The Board asked for continued focus on the In-School program based on the success on the pilot.  They 
wanted to see what the diversion numbers are once the staff leaves.  Member Widmer wanted to see it 
rolled out to all schools and all public spaces.  Executive Director La Mariana added that staff does go 
back at the beginning of the school year to the schools they went to the year before to keep the program 
education going.   
 
Executive Director La Mariana then followed up on batteries.  An outreach RFP was recently conducted to 
do a specific battery campaign, and the Public Outreach Committee will review those responses next 
week.  And, staff continues to work on AB1509 which is the battery EPR legislation.  Member Brownrigg 
commented that he would like to make a request to the County to see if the County could provide a 
battery CRV program and require the producers to put in the deposits locally, which would put pressure 
on the industry.  There is a draft program that the CPSC has put together.  Member Groom noted that the 
County would be happy to investigate this.   
 
Member Widmer wanted increased financial information in the Long-Range Plan, a return on investment 
for each program, and a diversion impact for each program.  He also noted that the Long-Range plan 
should be driving the Capital Plan each year.  Executive Director La Mariana noted that staff made a 
decision to emphasize guiding principles to make philosophical decisions about programs in the Long-
Range plan, then use the budget process to flush out costs, since costs change drastically over the 
course of a long-range plan, and this approach allowed for more nimbleness.   
 
3:05PM East Palo Alto now absent. 
 
The TAC Members gave some final feedback comments for staff regarding the Long-Range plan. 

 There are many programs in the Plan that could cause additional rate hikes, with that in mind, 
they would like staff to take a look leveraging existing resources at the County and otherwise and 
to be conservative with new programs with all the new rate hikes in the queue. 

 Members would like to see the program table tie back to the objective or principle that it’s 
supporting. 

 There is going to need to be balanced decision making going forward to deal with unfunded 
mandates and become creative and get more active in Sacramento. 

 Ask the haulers to do more for the schools’ program. 
 Enforcement for mandates needs to be contracted out, and the cost should not fall on the rate 

payers. 
 
Chair Benton commented that the general theme is to watch the costs. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana responded that staff is very mindful of cost considerations and thanked the 
Board and the TAC for their feedback.  
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6. Presentation and Discussion on SB1383 Compliance Planning
Rob Hilton HF&H Consultants

Executive Director La Mariana shared a Bloomberg article that was recently released about a NASA study
that identified greenhouse gas emissions and where they are emitted from, that stated the number one
emitter of methane gas in California is landfills.  He noted that this is the starting point for why the SB1383
law exists and why the Agency is having this conversation.

Rob Hilton of HF&H Consultants gave a PowerPoint presentation on the initial compliance analysis that
HF&H has done on behalf of the SBWMA.  He noted that at the end of the presentation he would like to
get specific feedback on compliance options, enforcement options, and extended regional cooperation.

The Board discussed the food recovery aspect of SB1383.  It is not envisioned that the SBWMA is going
to find edible food at the Transfer Station and recover it for human consumption, this part of the law is
intended to divert it before it even goes into the bins. The measurement for diversion will be on minimum
program standards being met, not an actual tonnage weight.  Member Dehn noted that the County Health
Department regulations would have to change in order to get to 20% reuse, because right now so much
of that food that is excess food at a restaurant can’t go to those who need it due to hours or food handling
regulations.  Rob Hilton noted that food safety regulations are paramount, no one wants to feed people
unsafe food.

Member Carlton asked why capturing the methane gas that is being emitted through the composting
process is not a part of this law.  Rob Hilton answered that is addressed, but the bill is broader than that
and is trying to include everything to try and address the infrastructure gaps, and the air and water boards
are really focused on the permits for the composting facilities.

The Board discussed the monitoring and enforcement component of the law, and they wondered if that
was at the Member Agency level or the SBWMA level.  Rob Hilton answered that they think there are
economies of scale to do monitoring at the SBWMA level, but the enforcement is a policy decision.  Chair
Benton asked what the timeline is for when the Board would need to make a decision about how to deal
with enforcement.  Rob Hilton answered there would be 9-12 months of implementation time before any
tickets are written, and that obligation doesn’t hit until 2024.  Member Brownrigg asked why water efficient
landscape obligations would fall to the SBWMA.  Rob Hilton answered that there are 3 pieces of the
ordinance that they want local agencies to adopt that involve use of what would become organic waste or
re-use of what would become organic waste in landscaping.  TAC Member Cook expressed concern that
as enforcement and auditing get delegated out there would be confusion with the residents about who to
go to. Rob Hilton noted that it will be important to have an MOU or formal document that defines what the
SBWMA is taking on and what the Member Agency is keeping and help with communications internally to
help staff.  Member Widmer asked if enforcement is to be contracted out.  Rob Hilton answered no,
enforcement can not be delegated, it has to be an employee of a public agency, but a contractor could do
monitoring and investigation and then call the Member Agency code enforcement when necessary.

Member Widmer commented that the residential customers should not have to pay for the costs
associated with complying with this law, if the problem is apartment complexes and commercial
customers that don’t have food waste collection.
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Member Brownrigg asked if this presentation and the resulting implications to the SBWMA assume full 
deployment of the Organics-to-Energy process.  Rob Hilton answered that there are 3 collection options 
scenarios and there are significant cost differences. 
 
Chair Benton asked if there was anything the SBWMA Board or the legislative advocates should be doing 
now to try and position these final regulations to benefit the SBWMA.  Rob Hilton said that there would be 
one more formal comment period, that would only be 15 days, and they’ve identified some things with 
staff that they specifically recommend comments on.   
 
The Board discussed the product procurement requirements of SB1383.  Rob noted that this could be 
done in a couple of ways and asked for Board feedback.  The most cost-efficient approach is to purchase 
renewable natural gas (RNG) for Recology’s fleet, if not this approach 20 yards per jurisdiction (per capita 
allocation) per day of compost or mulch needs to be purchased.  There is a $10,000 per day penalty for 
not meeting these purchasing requirements.  Executive Director La Marina noted for scale the our entire 
program currently brings back about 10 debris boxed sized loads of the compost to the facility per year.  
TAC Member Lorenz asked if it was purchased but not taken if that would meet the requirement.  Rob 
Hilton noted that probably wouldn’t work but the League of Cities is working on this issue because of the 
unfunded mandate.  Executive Director La Marina added that many of the industry lobbyists are 
collaborating on this part of the law and just how big this regulation is.  TAC Member Murray asked if the 
RNG needed to be looked at by individual Member Agency fleets beyond the Recology fleet.  Rob Hilton 
noted this is still pending but likely some supplemental purchasing would be required.  TAC Chair Oskoui 
commented that there will be a cost to implement RNG fueling, it’s not free but maybe a better ROI. 
 
3:48PM Member Dehn now absent the Board no longer has a quorum, the meeting is now a TAC 
Meeting. 
 
Rob Hilton asked for specific feedback, regarding compliance of SB1383.  He noted that there are 3 ways 
the SBWMA could reasonably comply with SB1383.  1) Standard Compliance, provide the 3 container 
system to every generator which includes enforcement; 2) a modified compliance approach, which uses 
the Organics-to-Energy program which maintains the enforcement requirement but avoids rolling out 
organics containers to all commercial and multi-family customers; 3) Performance based compliance, 
which waives the enforcement requirement, but the system needs to perform and the testing is expensive, 
and they’re hard numbers to get to in terms of the organics that are coming out of the waste stream.  He 
added that the Agency could not chose performance-based compliance and use Organics-to-Energy.   
 
TAC Member Tong asked if there would be an option to opt in for certain jurisdictions.  Noting that the 
County serves residents outside of the SBWMA service area and it might make sense for the County to 
have its own program outside of the SBWMA.  He asked the cost modeling could include the County on 
their own.   
 
TAC Chair Oskoui noted that as staff looks at modeling the County doing compliance on their own that all 
Member Agencies have an opt-in opt-out provision so the Member Agencies can evaluate the impact.  
Member Widmer agreed that the different Member Agencies may want to manage the regulations in their 
own way, so if there is going to be a global compliance plan there needs to be an opt out that has no cost 
associated with it. 
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Chair Benton commented that the compliance and enforcement pieces are the biggest parts of this law 
that affect the SBWMA, and the costs associated with that are being pushed locally.   
 
TAC Chair Oskoui asked for a summary of the feedback that HF&H needs.   
 
Rob Hilton responded asking the members if there was a strong consensus around the hybrid compliance 
approach, using Organics-to-Energy, understanding that there are potential risks, and then on the 
enforcement piece what is the feedback about who does the enforcement, and based on the opt-in/opt-
out feedback HF&H would run some additional scenarios.  He also cautioned that enforcement may be an 
easy thing to break off and do a different way, but if it came down to collection programming or 
processing technology making different decisions about that will be very expensive.  He noted that he 
would look at putting something about items that would lose economies of scale in the compliance plan.   
 
Member Brownrigg commented that it seems to be a no brainer to go for the hybrid approach, being down 
the road with Organics-to-Energy.  He also thought there should be a lobby to Cal Recycle to get an extra 
year, because if it’s proven to work, we save everyone in the state money. 
 
TAC Chair Oskoui said there is still some push and pull in the final rule making, and this is a lot of 
information to digest.  The SBWMA is way ahead of the curve.  Many agencies are going to have issues 
with the deadline commitments.  And he felt until there are final regulations things are still moving targets, 
he asked as things firm up they get vetted through the TAC and bring a polished presentation of options 
back to the Board.     
 

7. Contractor Updates 
A. Recology 
 
Mike Kelly of Recology talked about the several power outages that have occurred at Shoreway due to a 
Recology truck hitting overhead AT&T wires and moving the poles that the powerline is attached to and 
the power snaps.  He noted that Recology is increasing driver education, and safety protocol.  He added 
that they are looking into installing an over height alarm system at the exits, and there are some issues 
with the driver being in front of the over height alarm. 
 
Chair Benton thanked Recology for advising the Board of this problem and asked for a report back at the 
next Board Meeting when a solution is in place.  
 
B. South Bay Recycling 

 
8. Board/TAC Member Comments 

 
9. Adjourn 4:27PM 
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_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

November 21, 2019– 2:00 p.m. 
San Carlos Library Conference Room A/B 

Call To Order: 2:05PM 
1. Roll Call

2. Public Comment
Persons wishing to address the Board on matters NOT on the posted agenda may do so. Each speaker is limited to two minutes.
If there are more than five individuals wishing to speak during public comment, the Chairman will draw five speaker cards from
those submitted to speak during this time.  The balance of the Public Comment speakers will be called upon at the end of the
Board Meeting. If the item you are speaking on is not listed on the agenda, please be advised that the Board may briefly respond
to statements made or questions posed as allowed under The Brown Act (Government Code Section 54954.2).  The Board's
general policy is to refer items to staff for attention, or have a matter placed on a future Board agenda for a more comprehensive
action or report and formal public discussion and input at that time.

None

3. Adjourn to Closed Session:
A. Pursuant to Government Code Section §54957 - Public Employee Performance Evaluation; Title:

Executive Director
B. Pursuant to Government Code Section §54957.6 – Conference with Labor Negotiator; Agency

Designated Representative: Jean B. Savaree; Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director
C. Pursuant to Government Code Section §54956.9 – Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated

Litigation (one case)

4. Call to Order/Roll Call (Public Session)
Call to Order: 2:42PM

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent

Atherton X Menlo Park X
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X  
East Palo Alto X San Mateo X 
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X West Bay Sanitary District X

Agency Present Absent Agency Present Absent

Atherton X Menlo Park X
Belmont X Redwood City X
Burlingame X San Carlos X  
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5. Report from Closed Session 

 
No Report 
 

6. Public Comment (Public Session) 
 

None 
 

7. Executive Director’s Report 
 
Executive Director La Mariana welcomed the Board to the meeting and thanked them for their time with the 
Agency over the year, and especially over the last few months given that it’s been so busy with extra 
meetings.  He then made the following announcements: 

 SB1383 final regulations are expected to be complete at the end of January, and at that point staff 
will take the proposed ranges reported at the study session and start tightening up the numbers.  In 
April staff will present a SB1383 action plan to the Board, that will work into the FY20/21 budget. 

 The Organics-to-Energy Pilot’s equipment installation is underway, and Staff Gans will be updating 
you at agenda item 11A. 

 Staff would like to collaborate with The County’s Office of Sustainability on their work regarding sea 
level rise vulnerability and how that relates to the Shoreway Facility. 

 He introduced Reed Addis, who is the Principal of EEC Consulting the SBWMA’s legislative lobbyist, 
he will be giving a presentation at agenda item 9B recapping the 2019 legislative session. 

 
8. Approval of Consent Calendar 

Consent Calendar item(s) are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. There will be no separate 
discussion on these items unless members of the Board, staff or public request specific items be removed for separate 
action.  Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be moved to the end of the agenda for separate discussion. 
A. Approval of Minutes from the September 26, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting 
B. Approval of the 2020 SBWMA Board of Directors Meeting Calendar 
C. Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended September 30, 2019 

 
Motion/Second: Bonilla/Widmer 
Voice Vote: All in Favor 

 

9. Administration and Finance 
A. Review and Discussion Tipping Fee Increases Effective 1/1/20—No Adjustments Recommended 

 
Staff Mangini gave an overview of the staff report and noted that staff is not recommending a tip fee increase 
in 2020.  He gave the detail on projections for calendar year 2019 and net commodity revenue.  He also 
added that he projected the buyback center to remain closed through 2020. 
 
Member Dehn commented that she thought the board would be evaluating buy back center options and 
wondered if it would remain closed for all of 2020. 
 
Staff Mangini answered just for the purpose of the budget projection he left the buyback center closed. 
 

East Palo Alto  X San Mateo X  
Foster City  X County of San Mateo X  
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary District X  
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Executive Director La Mariana answered that at the January Board meeting there will be a series of options 
and associated costs presented regarding the buyback center, but it will take 90 days after any decision is 
made to re-open the buyback center which puts any re-opening very late into the fiscal year. 

 
B. 2019 Legislative Session Update – Presentation by Environmental and Energy Consulting (EEC) 

 
Reed Addis of EEC gave a Power Point presentation highlighting the 2019 Legislative Session with an 
update on key SBWMA priorities. 
 
Member Brownrigg commented on the two plastics bills AB1080/SB54.  He asked why the CRRC 
sometimes supported it, and sometimes went neutral.  He also wondered what plastics would not be 
permitted if the bill were to pass.   
 
Mr. Addis answered that he couldn’t comment on CRRC’s changes in position, but it did happen.  He also 
noted that the bill uses the types of plastics that are being picked up on the beaches as the list of the types 
of single use plastics that would be targeted through the bill, and the language has changed to single use 
packaging rather than just plastics.  
 
Member Hurt asked if there were walking pieces created for the legislators, and if yes could the Board have 
copies for their own advocacy. 
 
Mr. Addis said he would be happy share pieces that they’ve worked on. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana concluded by commenting that staff is working on putting together a Bay Area 
coalition on these environmental issues to get a louder voice in Sacramento, because currently the local 
solid waste industry is  very decentralized. 
 
Member Brownrigg reiterated that Board Members see the legislators in their work as elected officials so if 
they could get the walking papers and have the talking points rather than it all going through staff they could 
help move these messages. 

 
10. Collection and Recycling Program Support and Compliance 

No Items 
 

11. Shoreway Operations and Contract Management 
A. Organics-to-Energy Pilot Project Update 

 
Staff Gans gave an Organics-to-Energy pilot update, noting that he hopes the pilot will be operational in 
March.  Currently the construction of the pilot equipment is 60% complete and equipment testing is starting.  
He noted that Silicon Valley Clean Water is ready to take material now, but ran into a permitting issue with 
the Air Board and can now only take one truck load per day, and the pilot will generate 3 truck loads per day 
so staff is looking at other partners.   
 
Member Widmer asked if the Air Board issue will impact the full project. 
 
Staff Gans answered that the full project hasn’t been addressed with the Air Board yet, the permit is just for 
the pilot.  However, Silicon Valley Clean Water learned in bringing the pilot through the Air Board’s process 
that the Air Board is a potential obstacle for the full project. 
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Member Widmer asked if the Board should be involved with more education with the Air Board and Silicon 
Valley clean water on what the whole project is about to help move things along. 
 
Member Groom noted that she is a long time Air District Board Member and a past chair of the Board.  She 
noted that she can help move discussions up to a higher level and help move things along. 
 
Executive Director La Mariana noted that we are lucky enough to have two Board members who serve on 
the Air Board. 
 
Vice Chair Aguirre noted that she is the Chair of Silicon Valley Clean Water and reminded staff to use the 
Board Members to help move projects along especially those with a regional benefit like this project. 
 
Member Hurt commented on her perspective from the Air Board noting that with anaerobic digestion the Air 
Board needs to be conscientious about the odor.  So, while the SBWMA is trying to be innovative they’re 
trying to think about public health and safety. 

 
B. Resolution Approving Change Order #2 in the Amount of $121,496.39 and Allocating an Additional 

$103,504 for Future Change Orders on the Amended Public Project Agreement for Organics 
Extrusion Recovery System Purchase and Installation at Shoreway Environmental Center with 
Anaergia Technologies, LLC 

 
Staff Gans gave an overview of the staff report.   
 
Chair Benton clarified that the $121,496.39 is for the work detailed in the staff report, and that the $103,504 
is contingency. 
 
Staff Gans answered yes, there was never a contingency set up for the project in the beginning. 
 
Member Hurt asked for clarification that there was already a change order of $300,000. 
 
Staff Gans answered yes, but this work and their $300k costs were, indeed budgeted in the original project 
total because the dollar amount was known when the project was bid.  So it was anticipated, but there was 
missing information from PG&E to include it in the original contract. 
 
Motion/Second: Carlton/Bonilla 
 
Member Widmer asked if $103,504 was enough contingency. 
 
Staff Gans answered yes, for the Anaergia contract it will be enough, there are some collateral complications 
related to transportation that are unanticipated that may be another cost item associated with the pilot. 
 
Member Brownrigg asked for a reminder when the upgraded paper sorting equipment will come online. 
 
Staff Gans answered that the contract is with BHS, and final engineering on that project equipment was 
recently approved, and BHS has moved into manufacturing.  The equipment will start to arrive in late 
January, and installation will take place through the spring, and start up is targeted for July 1.  He added that 
there is an expectation that this equipment will pre-sort the organics out of the garbage to feed into the 
Organics-to-Energy equipment and thus simulate the full project. 
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Voice Vote: All in Favor 
Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent
Atherton X  Menlo Park X
Belmont X  Redwood City X
Burlingame X  San Carlos X
East Palo Alto X San Mateo X
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary Dist. X

C. Resolution Approving a Part-Time, Exempt, Non-Benefitted (unless mandated by law),5-Year
Limited-Term Position of Senior Facility Projects Engineer (unbudgeted)

Executive Director La Marina gave an overview of the staff report, and list of the known projects this part 
time limited term employee would be working on. 

Member Dehn noted that she’s in support of the position but wondered if there was someone who would 
want this work part-time. 

Executive Director La Marina answered yes, we already have a strong candidate in mind who is a high-level 
solid waste engineer who has another part time commitment. 

Member Widmer asked for confirmation that the fiscal impact would be the one on the resolution and not the 
one on the job description.   

Executive Director La Marina answered yes, the job description salary range is full time and matches the 
other two senior position salary ranges, but the resolution divides that range in half due to the position being 
20 hours per week. 

Motion/Second: Bonilla/Aguirre 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent
Atherton X  Menlo Park X
Belmont X  Redwood City X
Burlingame X  San Carlos X
East Palo Alto X San Mateo X
Foster City X County of San Mateo X
Hillsborough X  West Bay Sanitary Dist. X

D. Resolution Authorizing the Executive Director to Direct South Bay Recycling to Transport Organic
Material Produced During the Organics-to-Energy Pilot Program to Various Processing Facilities

Executive Director La Marina gave an overview of the staff reporting noting that the amendment to the SBR 
agreement that was approved by the Board for the Organics-to-Energy pilot work included operation of the 
processing equipment but not the transportation.  The SBWMA has the contractual right to direct SBR to do 
that work. 

Member Widmer didn’t want to direct SBR to buy a tanker for the pilot for a short-term. 

Executive Director La Marina noted that the short period of time is the challenge.  If the pilot yields the 
results in the pro-forma it’s a full project and more long-term.  He added that the details of the solution are 
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not fully vetted yet, there is some possible solutions being discussed, but staff has identified a gap in the 
contract language and this approval bridges that gap.   
 
Member Widmer wondered if the item could be continued and approved once all the details of the 
transportation are worked out. 
 
Member La Mariana answered that this approval bridges a contractual gap, and directs them to transport the 
pilot material, and staff feels like it’s been pretty well vetted. 
 
Chair Benton noted that this authorizes staff to direct SBR, which is different than an amendment.   
 
Counsel Savaree answered that this is not an amendment because in the contract the SBWMA has the right 
to direct them to do this work.  So this resolution indicates that the SBWMA would like to direct SBR to take 
this material wherever they are directed to do so.  She added that staff doesn’t have the right to direct SBR, 
it’s a Board decision, since the SBWMA holds the contract with SBR.  She noted that the details of how the 
material is transported can all get worked out later, this is just the authorization to direct that they do the 
work. 
 
Motion/Second: Dehn/Rak 
Voice Vote: All in Favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton X    Menlo Park X    
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto    X San Mateo X    
Foster City    X County of San Mateo X    
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    

 
E. Resolution Approving the Expenditure of Funds in an Amount Not to Exceed $236,500 to Fund the 

Stormwater System Improvements at the Shoreway Recycling and Disposal Center to be Completed 
by South Bay Recycling 

 
Executive Director La Marina gave an overview of the staff report, noting there is an ongoing issue with 
compliance of the storm water quality at the facility.  By contract, SBR is required to maintain the permits, 
and therefore maintain compliance.  He added that staff and SBR are currently at a difference of opinion 
after a number of discussions with SBR.  There is a non-negotiable timing component on this work, so even 
though the difference of opinion has not yet been resolved staff is recommending moving forward with the 
proposal from SBR on a protest basis.  That way the work could be funded and concurrently the dialogue 
could continue to try and resolve the difference of opinion. 
 
Member Carlton asked who would get penalized if the timing didn’t get met. 
 
Executive Director La Marina answered SBR that would have to pay all fines that would be leveed. 
 
Counsel Savaree added that it would be in both parties’ best interest to get this work done.   
 
Member Widmer commented that he was disappointed to be back in a similar situation to the one faced a 
few years ago with the Riverwatch lawsuit.  He believes SBR should be responsible for the costs associated 
with this work. 
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Executive Director La Marina answered that this protest approach allows the work to move forward, while 
negotiation continues.  He added that there has been a step up in regulations since July 1, so it’s even more 
important that the work gets completed.   

Member Bonilla asked if the project was shovel ready, and if it would it interfere with operations. 

Dwight Herring of SBR answered yes, the project is ready, and it will not interfere with operations. 

Member Carlton asked if the project total was the total amount of money in dispute. 

Executive Director La Marina answered that the original scope of work was $1.2M and the team at SBR and 
their compliance group came up with this interim measure of $236,500 that is a subset of the full project.  
The idea is to try a less expensive solution first to see if it passes storm water regulations, and if it doesn’t 
there will be subsequent steps at additional cost up to the original cost of the project or more.   

Member Carlton asked if the Agency could pay half and SBR could pay half of the amount of the project. 

Counsel Savaree noted that the Board could decide to do something different than what is recommended in 
the staff report.  Her recommendation was that the Agency pay the whole thing because of the tight timeline 
to get the project done.  And, that she would continue to negotiate with SBR regarding who is responsible for 
the costs, so whether that negotiation is over half the cost or the full cost is irrelevant.  The hope is to come 
to some sort of agreement, but if not, there will be mediation. 

Dwight Herring noted he would need to talk to his Board before knowing if SBR would be willing to pay for 
half of the project. 

Member Widmer suggested approving the whole amount but wait for a Board response from SBR before 
starting the project. 

Member Dehn asked if this is an allocation that is given to SBR with protest, but without expectation of 
repayment, and she also asked for the total settlement on the lawsuit a few years back on a similar issue. 

Counsel Savaree answered that the settlement was negotiated at $35,000.  She added that they have 
advised SBR and they don’t believe the SBWMA is responsible of any portion of the payment, and they have 
taken the position that they think the SBWMA is responsible for all of this cost.  And that is where the 
negotiations stand with a project that needs to be done. 

Member Bonilla suggested putting a timeline on the negotiations, that they would need to be completed by a 
certain date, and to treat the payment as a loan, and withhold payment if negotiations aren’t complete. 

Counsel Savaree noted that staff is recommending the Agency fund the project under protest to ensure that 
SBR does move forward with the project, and to continue with negotiations concurrently.  She added that the 
plan is to come back to the January meeting with either a report that it’s been resolved, or to get direction 
from the Board on the next steps. 

Member Brownrigg asked if the project SBR is suggesting as an interim measure is based on the newer 
storm water standards. 

Executive Director La Marina answered the new July 1, 2019 standards. 
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Chair Benton asked how long the work will take. 
 
Dwight Herring answered 3-4 months. 
 
The Board discussed the logistics of the cash flow.  Staff Mangini noted that SBR would be reimbursed for 
monthly expenditures on the project through the monthly invoices.  Or it could be reimbursed at the term of 
the project. 
 
Member Bonilla motioned to approve resolution 2019-58. 
Member Carlton motioned to amend the resolution to be contingent upon payment at completion. 
Member Widmer seconded the amendment. 
Chair Benton clarified that payment would be made at the completion of the work and under protest. 
Voice Vote: All in favor 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton X    Menlo Park X    
Belmont X    Redwood City X    
Burlingame X    San Carlos X    
East Palo Alto    X San Mateo X    
Foster City    X County of San Mateo X    
Hillsborough X    West Bay Sanitary Dist.  X    

 
12. Public Education and Outreach 

No Items 
 

13. Informational Items Only (no action required) 
A. 2019 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar 
B. Check Register Detail for September – October 2019 
C. Potential Future Board Agenda Items  

 
14. Board Member Comments 

 

Chair Benton wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving, and holiday season. 
 
15. Adjourn 4:07PM 
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8C 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Accepting the FY18/19 Audited Financial Statements 

Board Action 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-01 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action: 

Accept the South Bayside Waste Management Authority’s audited Annual Financial Statements (see 
Exhibit A to the Resolution) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 as prepared by the SBWMA’s audit 
firm, Maze & Associates. 

Summary 
The purpose of the financial statements is to present a summary of the financial position of the Authority for the 
fiscal year. These reports have been reviewed by the Board Finance Committee which recommends approval. 
The final step in the formal process of preparing these financial statements is to present them to the Board for its 
acceptance.   

Analysis 
The financial statements of the SBWMA for fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, have been prepared by the City of 
Redwood City Administrative Services Department and examined by the independent auditing firm Maze & 
Associates and SBWMA staff. It is the unqualified opinion of the audit firm that the financial statements present 
fairly the financial position of the SBWMA as of June 30, 2019, and that the financial statements were prepared in 
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. No exceptions or qualifications were found. 

Financial Condition Summary 
As shown in Table 1 of the Audit report, total net position increased by $1.1 million to $21.3 million.  The 
unrestricted net assets (Unrestricted Reserve) remained flat at $16.3 million at June 30, 2019 (see Tables 1 and 4 
in the Audit report).  Operating income including depreciation increased $1.0 million. 

General Operating Results 
The operating results for FY18/19 are compared to FY17/18 in Table 1 below: 
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Table 1 – Operating Results 

  
 
 
Variance explanations: 

 Higher Tip Fee Revenue mainly due to tip fee increases. 
 Commodity Revenue decrease due to higher standards set by China resulting in lower commodity prices. 
 Higher Shoreway Operations Expense primarily due to disposal and processing costs increasing $1.1 

million (6.4%) due to contracted disposal and processing fee increases.  SBR Compensation increased 
$0.3 million, while Shoreway facility costs decreased by $0.6 million.  

 The SBWMA Program budget increased in FY19 by $0.5 million primarily due to a full year of cost for the 
Fellowship Program and filling a vacated staff position with a Management Analyst.  Increased consulting 
costs arose for Amendment 1, Franchise Agreement, Landfill Disposal RFP, Interim Finance Manager 
and Board Counsel.  Additionally, the Agency performed a large battery outreach campaign. 

 Franchise Fees paid to the City of San Carlos increased $0.2 million due to the increased tip fee revenue. 
 Investment income increased due to higher balances and interest rates. 
 The agency received Grant Revenue from CalRecycle to help fund the Organics to Energy Project.  

  
Long-Term Debt 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the SBWMA had bond debt outstanding of $44,812,247. 

 
   FY2018   FY2019  
Revenue Bonds 2009A $46,239,747 $44,812,247  
 
Payment of principal on the 2009A bonds began on September 1, 2013. Additional information on the SBWMA’s 
long-term debt can be found in note (5) to the accompanying financial statements.   
 

 FY2018 FY2019 Variance
Better / (Worse)

Tip Fee Revenue 42,678,598$     46,377,395$     3,698,797$        
Commodity Revenue 7,282,216$        6,140,314$        (1,141,902)$      

Other Revenue 1 29,392$             28,329$             (1,063)$              
Total Revenues 49,990,206$     52,546,038$     2,555,832$        

Shoreway Operations Expense 41,208,573        42,195,199        (986,626)            
SBWMA Program Expense 2,543,223          3,019,870          (476,647)            

Franchise Fees 2,032,946          2,206,790          (173,844)            
Depreciation Expense 3,145,332          3,075,887          69,445                

Total Expenses 48,930,074$     50,497,746$     (1,567,672)$      
Operating Income 1,060,132$        2,048,292$        988,160$           

Investment Income, Other 263,423$           621,287$           357,864$           
Interest Expense (2,702,669)         (2,633,833)         68,836                

Grant Revenue 1,020,000          1,020,000          
NET POSITION (1,379,114)$      1,055,746$        2,434,860$        
1 E-w aste & other miscellaneous rev enue
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Note: In July 2019, the Series 2009A Bonds were refunded as part of the Series 2019A Refunding Bond 
issuance.  Additional information on the refunding can be found in note (10) to the accompanying 
financial statements.  

Fiscal Impact 
There is no financial impact associated with the adoption of this Resolution. 

Attachments: 
Resolution 2020-01.  Accepting the Authority’s FY18/19 Financial Statements 
Exhibit A – SBWMA FY18/19 Audited Annual Financial Statements 

FULL PACKET PAGE 49 of 265



 
 

 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020  AGENDA ITEM: 8C - p4 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-01    
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 ACCEPTING THE FISCAL YEAR 2018-2019 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

  
 
 WHEREAS,  the South Bayside Waste Management Authority contracted with the audit firm Maze & 
Associates to conduct an audit of the Agency’s financial records in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 34; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the financial statements for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019 as prepared by said firm 
have been completed and are attached as Exhibit A; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is recommended that the Board accept the financial statements.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves the Annual Financial Report as prepared by Maze & Associates for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 30th day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-01 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 
 
    
ATTEST:        Jay Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton     Menlo Park     
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist.     
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To Members of the Board of Directors of the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority (Authority), California, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial 
statements as listed in the Table of Contents.   

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such 
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements.   

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinions. 

1
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the Authority as of June 30, 2019, and the changes in financial position and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information  

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis as listed in the Table of Contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 18, 2019 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in 
considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 18, 2019 

2
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2019 

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section presents an overview and analysis 
of the financial performance of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) for 
the fiscal year (FY) ended June 30, 2019.  It should be read in conjunction with the audited 
financial statements that follow this section. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The SBWMA’s financial statements include: 

Statement of Net Position presents information on the SBWMA’s assets and liabilities as of the 
fiscal year-end, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases 
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the 
Authority is improving or deteriorating.  

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the results of the 
SBWMA’s operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position 
changed during the fiscal year.  These statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which 
the Authority has successfully recovered its costs through user fees and other charges. 

Statement of Cash Flows presents changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, 
capital, non-capital, and investing activities.  The statement summarizes the annual flow of cash 
receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the 
obligation or receipt and exclude non-cash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of 
assets. 

Notes to Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the 
financial statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial statements. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The following table summarizes the Authority’s change in net position from last fiscal year to 
this fiscal year. 

FY 2018 FY 2019 $ Change %  Change

Current and other assets 28,446,570$    29,127,137$   680,567$        2.4%

Capital assets, net of depreciation 46,060,056      45,604,576     (455,480)         -1.0%

Total assets 74,506,626      74,731,713     225,087          0.3%

Long-term debt outstanding 46,239,747      44,812,247     (1,427,500)      -3.1%

Other liabilities 7,995,729        8,592,570       596,841          7.5%

Total liabilities 54,235,476      53,404,817     (830,659)         -1.5%

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 3,950,710        5,008,608       1,057,898       26.8%

Unrestricted 16,320,440      16,318,288     (2,152)             0.0%

Total net position 20,271,150$    21,326,896$   1,055,746$     5.2%

Table 1

Comparative Net Position

June 30, 2018 and 2019
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Net Position 
 

The total net position increased by $1.1 million or 5.2% from the prior fiscal year. This increase 
is comprised solely of an increase in net investment in capital assets of $1.1 million. 
 
The total liabilities decreased by $0.8 million or 1.5%. The decrease of $1.4 million or 3.1% in 
long-term debt is associated with the $1.4 million principal payment made on the 2009A bonds. 
This change is later explained in the “Long-term Debt” section. The increase of $.6 million or 
7.5% in other liabilities is primarily related to an increase in accounts payable, which is a result of 
the timing of payments for the Shoreway operations. 
 
The largest portion of the Authority’s assets is its investment in net capital assets totaling $45.6 
million.  These assets are comprised of land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure, less 
accumulated depreciation, and are primarily located at the Shoreway Environmental Center.  The 
actual year-over-year comparison of the capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, shows a 
decrease of $.5 million or 1.0% due to the increase in accumulated depreciation exceeding annual 
capital asset additions.  These changes are explained further in the “Capital Assets” section. 
 
The net investment in capital assets is $5.0 million as of June 30, 2019.  It represents the 
Authority’s investment in infrastructure and other capital assets, net of amounts borrowed to 
finance that investment. It should be noted that these funds are not available for spending because 
the capital assets cannot be liquidated to settle liabilities. Therefore, the resources needed to repay 
the debt must be provided from other sources. Unrestricted net position totaling $16.3 million 
represents the part of net position that can be used to finance operations. 
 

Results of Operations 

The following table summarizes the Authority’s revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

  

FY 2018 FY 2019 $ Change %  Change

Revenues

Charges for services 42,678,598$   46,377,395$   3,698,797$   8.7%

Commodity revenue 7,282,216       6,140,314       (1,141,902)    -15.7%

Other operating revenues 29,392            28,329            (1,063)           -3.6%

Net Insurance Proceeds 88,592            -                  (88,592)         -100.0%

Grant revenue 1,020,000       1,020,000     

Investment Income 263,255          621,287          358,032        136.0%

Total Revenues 50,342,053     54,187,325     3,845,272     7.6%

 Expenses

Operating expenses 48,930,074     50,497,746     1,567,672     3.2%

Fire-related expenses 88,424            -                  (88,424)         -100.0%

Interest expense 2,702,669       2,633,833       (68,836)         -2.5%

Total Expenses 51,721,167     53,131,579     1,410,412     2.7%

Increase (decrease) in net position (1,379,114)      1,055,746       2,434,860     176.6%

Beginning net position 21,650,264     20,271,150     (1,379,114)    -6.4%

Ending net position 20,271,150$   21,326,896$   1,055,746$   5.2%

Table 2

Comparative Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2019
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While the Statement of Net Position (Table 1) shows the change in financial position, the Statement 
of Activities (Table 2 above) provides answers as to the nature and sources of the changes. 

Charges for services, also known as tipping fee revenue, increased by $3.7 million or 8.7%, from 
$42.7 million in FY18 to $46.4 million in FY19.  $.4 million of the revenue growth was due to an 
increase in “self-haul” public tipping fees and $3.3 million was due to an increase in franchise 
tipping fees.  Public revenue is the revenue generated from non-franchised waste that is delivered 
to the Shoreway facility by members of the public, while franchise revenue is from solid waste 
and organic materials collected by Recology San Mateo County from customers of SBWMA’s 
member agencies and delivered to the Shoreway facility. FY19 was a challenging year for 
recyclable commodities due to the crash in commodity market price for mixed paper as a result of 
China’s tightening of contamination standards.  Due to this event, commodity revenue decreased 
by $1.1 million or 15.7% from $7.3 million in FY 2018 to $6.1 million in FY19.  Other operating 
revenues were virtually unchanged from FY18 to FY19.  Investment income, which is 
nonoperating revenue, was $0.4m higher in FY19 than FY18 due to stronger performance by both 
the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) and San Mateo County Investment Pool.  The 
Authority also received a grant in the amount of $1.0 million in FY19 from CalRecycle for the 
Organics to Energy Project.  

The primary component of operating expenses (83.6%) is related to the Shoreway operations that 
include contractually obligated costs incurred to pay the Shoreway operator, and disposal and 
processing expenses. The Shoreway operations expense (Table 3) increased by $1.0 million, or 
2.4%, from FY18 to FY19.   

Table 3 below shows just the operating results of the Authority (excluding depreciation). It 
excludes all revenue and expenditure not directly associated with operating activities such as 
investment income, grant revenue, and interest expense.  For the current fiscal year, operating 
results were $5.1 million compared to $4.2 million for the prior fiscal year, an increase of 21.8%. 

FY 2018 FY 2019 $ Change %  Change

Operating Revenue

Charges for Services 42,678,598$    46,377,395$   3,698,797$   8.7%

Commodity Fee 7,282,216        6,140,314       (1,141,902)   -15.7%

Other Operating Revenue 29,392             28,329            (1,063)          -3.6%

Total Operating Revenue 49,990,206      52,546,038     2,555,832     5.1%

Operating Expense (excl Depn.)

Shoreway Operations 41,208,573      42,195,199     986,626        2.4%

Program Admin 2,543,222        3,019,870       476,648        18.7%

Franchise Fee 2,032,946        2,206,790       173,844        8.6%

Total Operating Expense (excl Depn.) 45,784,742$    47,421,859$   1,637,118     3.6%

Total Operating Results (excl Depn.) 4,205,464$      5,124,179$     918,714$      21.8%

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2019

Table 3

Operating Results
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Reserves 
 
Table 4 below reflects the amount of reserves that have been designated by the Board as of June 
30, 2018 and 2019. 

   
In 2002, the SBWMA Board established a cash reserve policy to set aside certain portions of 
unrestricted net position for specific uses in order to protect the short and long-term financial 
operation of the Authority.  In May 2013, the Board revised the Cash Reserve Policy to accomplish 
the goal of more clearly defining the reserve accounts.  In November 2018, the Board further 
revised the Cash Reserve Policy to include a Capital Reserve Fund to fund future capital projects 
that cannot be absorbed in one budget period.  The current policy consists of a Rate Stabilization 
Reserve, Emergency Reserve, Equipment Replacement Reserve, Capital Fund Reserve, and 
Undesignated Reserve.  The Rate Stabilization Reserve & Emergency Reserve are calculated at up 
to 10% of operating expenses.  Operating expenses include Shoreway Operations expense, 
SBWMA program expenses, bond interest expense, and franchise fees.  Operating expenses 
exclude depreciation, buyback, and household hazardous waste payments.  The Emergency 
Reserve is to address unexpected and sudden capital needs or significant one-time increases in 
Shoreway operating expenses associated with “damage by natural disasters, acts of war or 
terrorism, or other community emergency scenarios that are not covered by existing insurance 
policies”.  The current policy prioritizes the order of the accounts so the Rate Stabilization Reserve 
is first in priority followed by the Emergency Reserve. 
   
All reserve fund levels are approved by the Board each year as part of the adoption of the fiscal 
year budget. 
 
Capital Assets 

The following table summarizes changes in the Authority’s capital assets. 
 

 

FY 2018 FY 2019

Rate Stabilization Reserve 4,764,699$               4,100,000$               

Emergency Reserve 4,764,699                 4,454,754                 

Equipment Replacement Reserve 1,192,148                 1,397,514                 

2009 A Bond Repayment 1,183,333                 

Capital Fund Reserve 4,886,222                 

Undesignated Reserve 4,415,561                 1,479,798                 

Total Unrestricted Reserves 16,320,440$             16,318,288$             

Table 4

Unrestricted Reserves Balances

FY 2018 FY 2019 $ Change %  Change

Land 14,000,000$        14,000,000$        -$                 0.0%

Construction in progress 2,435,552            2,435,552        

Buildings and systems 35,704,825          35,884,604          179,779           0.5%

Machinery and equipment 23,480,648          23,579,722          99,074             0.4%

Total accumulated depreciation (27,125,417)         (30,295,302)         (3,169,885)       11.7%

Total Net Capital Assets 46,060,056$        45,604,576$        (455,480)$        -1.0%

Table 5

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2019
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The net capital assets decreased by $.5 million, or 1.0%, from $46.1 million in FY18 to $45.6 
million in FY19. This decrease is the net of the annual $3.2 million depreciation charge and $2.7m 
in capital expenditures to replace equipment and start the Organics-to-Energy pilot project.   

Additional information on the capital assets can be found in Note (4) of the financial statements. 

Long-term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Authority had $44.8 million total debt outstanding. 

Long-term debt consists of the Series 2009A Revenue Bonds that were issued to finance the 
construction and renovation of a solid waste materials recovery facility and transfer station as well 
as related equipment.   

Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note (5) to the 
accompanying financial statements. 

In July 2019, the Series 2009A Revenue Bonds were refunded as part of the Series 2019A 
Refunding Revenue Bond issuance.  Additional information on the refunding can be found in Note 
(10) to the accompanying financial statements.

CONTACTING THE AUTHORITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our member agencies, investors and creditors with a 
general overview of the Authority’s finances and to show the Authority’s accountability for the 
revenues and expenses in the course of doing business. If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Executive Director, South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority, 610 Elm Street, San Carlos, California 94070. 

FY 2018 FY 2019 $ Change %  Change

2009A Revenue Bond 46,105,000$       44,685,000$       (1,420,000)$  -3.1%

Net Premium 2009A 134,747 127,247 (7,500) -5.6%

Total 46,239,747$       44,812,247$       (1,427,500)$  -3.1%

Table 6

Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs

June 30, 2018 and 2019
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and investments for operations (Note 2) $18,457,739
Accounts receivable 3,942,454
Interest receivable 115,113
Prepaid items 962

Total Current Assets 22,516,268

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and investments with fiscal agent (Note 2) 6,610,869
Capital assets (Note 4):

Land 14,000,000
Construction in progress 2,435,552
Building 35,884,604
Equipment 23,579,722
Less Accumulated Depreciation (30,295,302)

Net capital assets 45,604,576

Total Noncurrent Assets 52,215,445

Total Assets 74,731,713

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 6,359,454
Interest payable 876,500
Current portion of compensated absences 69,020
Long-term debt due in one year (Note 5) 1,495,000

Total Current Liabilities 8,799,974

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated absences due in more than one year 53,956
Accrued liabilities (Note 7) 1,233,640
Long-term debt due in more than one year (Note 5) 43,317,247

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 44,604,843

Total Liabilities 53,404,817

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 5,008,608
Unrestricted 16,318,288

Total Net Position $21,326,896

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $46,377,395
Commodity revenue 6,140,314
Other 28,329

Total Operating Revenues 52,546,038

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Shoreway operations 42,195,199
SBWMA program administration 3,019,870
Franchise fee - transfer station 2,206,790
Depreciation (Note 4) 3,075,887

Total Operating Expenses 50,497,746

Operating Income 2,048,292

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Grant revenue 1,020,000
Investment income 621,287
Interest expense (2,633,833)

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) (992,546)

Change in Net Position 1,055,746

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF FISCAL YEAR 20,271,150

NET POSITION AT END OF FISCAL YEAR $21,326,896

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts from customers $53,329,421
Payments to suppliers (45,282,216)
Payments to employees (1,386,354)

Net Cash Flows (used for) Operating Activities 6,660,851

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant revenue 1,020,000

Net Cash Flows (used for) Noncapital and Financing Activities 1,020,000

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 575,721

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities 575,721

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital assets additions (2,620,407)
Retirement of long-term debt (1,420,000)
Interest paid (2,665,000)

Net Cash Flows (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities (6,705,407)

Net Cash Flows 1,551,165

Cash and investments for operations - beginning of fiscal year 23,517,443

Cash and investments - end of fiscal year $25,068,608

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
flows from operating activities:

Operating income (loss) $2,048,292
Adjustments to reconcile operating income
to cash flows from operating activities:

Depreciation 3,075,887
Net change in:

Accounts receivable 783,383
Prepaids 132,781
Accounts payable 847,677
Accrued liabilities (252,493)
Compensated absences 25,324

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities $6,660,851

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Amortization related to long-term debt $7,500

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Organization

The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (the Authority) is a joint powers
authority formed on October 13, 1999 for the purpose of joint ownership,
financing and administration of the Facilities, currently the Shoreway
Environmental Center in San Carlos; and the planning, administration
management, review, monitoring, enforcement and reporting of solid waste,
recyclable material and plant material collection activities within Authority's
service area.

Members of the Authority currently include the towns of Atherton and
Hillsborough, and the cities of Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City,
Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, as well as the West Bay
Sanitary District and the County of San Mateo.

The Authority is controlled by a twelve member board consisting of one elected
representative from each member. None of the member entities exercise specific
control over the budgeting and financing of the Authority's activities beyond
their representation on the board. Accounting services are provided by the City of
San Carlos.

Based on the franchise agreements with each member agency and Recology
effective January 1, 2011, the Authority collects service fees from Recology for
the processing and disposal of collected materials. The facility operator, South
Bay Recycling, also collects fees from public customers which are remitted to
the Authority. South Bay Recycling is paid by the Authority to operate the
facility and transport materials to disposal and processing facilities on a per
ton basis pursuant to the Operations Agreement. The compensation to both
contractors is adjusted annually based primarily on various CPI indices. The
Authority also directly pays for disposal and processing of solid waste and
organics materials to vendors such as BFI/Republic, Recology Grover, Zanker
Road.

b. Enterprise Fund Accounting

The Authority is a proprietary entity; it uses an enterprise fund format to report its
activities for financial statement purposes. Enterprise funds are used to
account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises, where the intent of the governing body is that
the costs and expenses, including depreciation, of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily
through user charges and the sale of commodities.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

An enterprise fund is used to account for activities similar to those in the private 
sector, where the proper matching of revenues and costs is important and the 
full accrual basis of accounting is required. With this measurement focus, all 
assets and all liabilities of the enterprise are recorded on its balance sheet, all 
revenues are recognized when earned and all expenses, including depreciation, 
are recognized when incurred. Enterprise fund equity includes retained earnings 
and contributed capital. 

c. Net Position Flow Policy

Sometimes the Authority will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both
restricted (e.g., restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In
order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted – net position and
unrestricted – net position in the proprietary fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered
to be applied. It is the Authority’s policy to consider restricted – net position to
have been depleted before unrestricted – net position is used.

d. Capital Assets

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Contributed capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date contributed. Expenditures which
materially increase the value or life of capital assets are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. The Authority’s policy
is to capitalize all assets with costs exceeding the $10,000 threshold and a
useful life of more than one year.

All capital assets with limited useful lives are depreciated over their estimated
useful lives. The purpose of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets
equitably among all users over the life of these assets. The amount charged to
depreciation expense each year represents that year's pro rata share of the cost
of capital assets.

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method; meaning the cost of the
asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the result is charged to
expense each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has
assigned the useful lives of capital assets by type as listed below:

Building 10 - 40 years
Improvements 5 - 20 years 
Equipment 5 - 15 years 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects 
are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase is reflected in 
the capitalized value of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the 
invested proceeds over the same period. 

e. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences comprise unpaid vacation which is accrued as earned.
All employees who hold full-time regular positions are entitled to 15 working
days' vacation pay upon successful completion of their first year of continuous
service. The accrual rate increases as length of service exceeds 5 years.
Maximum accumulation of vacation is two years' vacation accrual. Upon
termination or retirement, full-time employees are entitled to receive
compensation at their current base salary for all unused vacation and 50% of
their sick leave balance. The liability for compensated absences is determined
annually.

f. Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans

The Authority offers its employees a retirement plan created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 401a. The employer contribution to the 401a is
10% plus a match up to 2% of the employee contribution.

The Authority also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created
in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457b. Pursuant to the IRC
subsection (g), all amounts of compensation deferred under the deferred
compensation plan, all property, or rights are solely the property and rights of
the employee and beneficiaries of the Plan. Deferred compensation funds are
not subject to the claims of the Authority’s general creditors; consequently, the
assets and related liabilities of the plan are not included within the Authority’s
financial statements.

g. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section
for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that
applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of
resources (expense/ expenditure) until then. The Authority has no items that
qualify for reporting in this category.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position
that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The Authority has no items that qualify for
reporting in this category.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

h. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.  The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within
the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.
The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which inputs used in
measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs – other than quoted prices included within level 1 – that
are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than
one level of the fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based
on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

Note 2: Cash and Investments 

The Authority pools cash from all sources except cash and investments held by fiscal 
agents so that it can be invested at the maximum yield consistent with safety and 
liquidity, while individual funds can make expenditures at any time. 

a. Policies

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge
government securities with a market value of 110% of the Authority's cash on
deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes with a market value of 150% of the
deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California Law this collateral is
held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority's name
and places the Authority ahead of general creditors of the institution. The
Authority Treasurer may waive the collateral requirement for deposits that are fully
insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC.

The Authority invests in individual investments and in investment pools. Individual
investments are evidenced by specific identifiable securities instruments, or by an
electronic entry registering the owner in the records of the institution issuing the
security, called the book entry system. In order to increase security, the Authority
employs the Trust Department of a bank as the custodian of certain Authority
managed investments, regardless of their form.

The Authority's investments are carried at fair value, as required by generally
accepted accounting principles. The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its
investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal year end, and it includes the
effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 

Classification 

Cash and investments are classified in the financial statements as shown below, 
based on whether or not their use is restricted under the terms of Authority debt 
instruments or agreements. 

Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments for operations 18,457,739$         
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 6,610,869

Total Cash and Investments 25,068,608$         

Cash and investments for operations is used in preparing proprietary fund 
statements of cash flows because these assets are highly liquid and are 
expended to liquidate liabilities arising during the year. 

b. Investment Authorized by the California Government Code and the
Authority’s Investment Policy

The Authority's Investment Policy and the California Government Code allow the
Authority to invest in the following, provided the credit ratings of the issuers are
acceptable to the Authority; and approved percentages and maturities are not
exceeded. The table below also identifies certain provisions of the California
Government Code, or the Authority's Investment Policy when the Authority's
Investment Policy is more restrictive.

Maximum
Minimum Investment 

Maximum Credit Maximum In One
Authorized Investment Type Maturity Quality in Portfolio Issuer

State Local Agency Investment Fund Upon 
Demand N/A

50% to 70% of the 
investment portfolio, as 

approved by the SBWMA 
Board but no more than $65 

million  permitted by LAIF 

$65 million per 
Account

San Mateo County Investment Pool Upon 
Demand N/A

30% to 50% of the 
investment portfolio, as 

approved by the SBWMA 
Board

N/A

U.S. Treasury Bonds, Notes and Bills 5 Years N/A 100% N/A
U.S. Government Agency and Federal 
   Agency Securities
Bankers Acceptances 180 Days N/A 40% (B)

Commercial Paper 270 Days

Highest 
letter and 
number 

rating by an 
NRSRO

25% (A)

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 Years N/A 30% (A)
Time Certificates of Deposit - Banks
   or Savings and Loans
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 Years A 30% (A)

(A) 5% of outstanding paper of issuing corporation and 10% of the portfolio in one corporation
(B) No more than 30% of the agency's money may be in bankers' acceptances of any one commercial bank.

(A)

5 Years N/A 100% N/A

5 Years N/A 30%
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 

c. Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

The Authority must maintain required amounts of cash and investments with
trustees or fiscal agents under the terms of certain debt issues. These funds are
unexpended bond proceeds or are pledged reserves to be used if the Authority
fails to meet its obligations under these debt issues. The California Government
Code requires these funds to be invested in accordance with Authority
resolutions, bond indentures or State statutes. The table below identifies the
investment types that are authorized for investments held by fiscal agents. The
table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements:

Minimum
Credit

Authorized Investment Type Quality
Direct obligations of the Department of the Treasury of the

United States None
Obligations issued or guaranteed by FMHA, FHA, General

Services Administration, GNMA, U.S. Maritime Administration,
HUD, and backed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America None

Direct obligations of FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA, REFCORP,
Farm Credit Enterprise, Federal Agriculture Mortgage
Association, Tennessee Valley Authority None

Money Market Fund AA
U.S. dollar denominated Certificates of Deposit, savings 

accounts, deposit accounts None
Investment agreements, including GIC's forward purchase

agreements and reserve fund put agreements None
Commercial Paper A-1
General obligations of States or municipalities AAA
Bankers acceptances A-1+
Medium Term Notes AAA
State of California Local Agency Investment Fund None
San Mateo County Investment Pool None

d. Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely
affect the fair value of an investment. Normally, the longer the maturity of
an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. The Authority generally manages its interest rate risk by holding
investments to maturity.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Authority's investments
(including investments held by bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations
is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the Authority's
investments by maturity or earliest call date:
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 

12 Months
or less Total

California Local Agency Investment Fund 11,642,950$   11,642,950$   
San Mateo County Investment Pool 5,275,348 5,275,348
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:

Money Market Fund 6,610,869 6,610,869

Total Investments 23,529,167$   23,529,167

Total Cash in Bank and Cash on Hand 1,539,441

Total Cash and Investments 25,068,608$   

Investment Type

Local Agency Investment Fund 

The Authority is a participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is 
regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the oversight of 
the Treasurer of the State of California. The Authority reports its investment in 
LAIF at the fair value amount provided by LAIF, which is the same as the value of 
the pool share. The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting 
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
Included in LAIF's investment portfolio are collateralized mortgage obligations, 
mortgage-backed securities, other asset-backed securities, loans to certain state 
funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal agencies, government-
sponsored enterprises, United States Treasury Notes and Bills, and corporations. 

San Mateo County Investment Fund 

The Authority is a voluntary participant in the San Mateo County Investment Fund 
(SMCIF) that is regulated by California Government Code Section 53600 
under the oversight of the treasurer of the County of San Mateo. The Authority 
reports its investment in SMCIF at the fair value amount provided by SMCIF. The 
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by SMCIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
Included in SMCIF’s investment portfolio are U.S. Treasury Notes, obligations 
issued by agencies of the U.S. Government, LAIF, corporate notes, 
commercial paper, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed 
securities, other asset-backed securities, and floating rate securities issued by 
federal agencies, government-sponsored enterprises, and corporations. The 
Authority reports its investments in SMCIF at the fair value amounts provided by 
SMCIF, which is the same as the value of the pool share. 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 

e. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Investments in
California Local Agency Investment Fund and San Mateo County Investment
Pool are not rated and therefore no rating is shown.

Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2019, for each investment type
as provided by S&P ratings:

Investment Type AAAm Total

Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent:
Money Market Fund 6,610,869$     6,610,869$     

Totals 6,610,869$     6,610,869

Not rated:
California Local Agency Investment Fund 11,642,950
San Mateo County Investment Pool 5,275,348

Total Investments 23,529,167

Total Cash in bank and cash on hand 1,539,441
Total Cash and Investments 25,068,608$    

f. Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy
is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of the assets.  Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in an active market for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable
inputs.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 2: Cash and Investments (Continued) 

The following is a summary of the fair value hierarchy of the fair value of 
investments of the Authority as of June 30, 2019: 

Exempt Total
Investments by Fair Value:

California Local Agency Investment Fund 11,642,950$   11,642,950$   
San Mateo County Investment Pool 5,275,348 5,275,348

Total Investments at Fair Value 16,918,298$   16,918,298
Investments Measured at Amortized Cost:

Money Market Fund 6,610,869

Total Investments 23,529,167
Cash in banks 1,539,441

Total Cash and Investments 25,068,608$   

Investment Type

Both the California Local Agency Investment Fund and the San Mateo County 
Investment Pool are external investment pools and exempted in the fair value 
hierarchy, under GASB 72.  

g. Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority's Investment Policy contains certain limitations on the amount that
can be invested in any one issuer. In certain categories, these limitations surpass
those required by California Government Code Sections 53600 et seq.
Investments in any one issuer, other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual
funds, and external investment pools that represent 5% or more of total Entity-
wide investments. There were no such investments at June 30, 2019.

Note 3: Capital Assets and Facilities Operations 

Pursuant to a sales agreement with Republic Services, Inc., the Authority purchased 
land, and buildings and personal property amounting to $14 million and $5.228 
million, respectively. These facilities comprise the Shoreway Environmental Center 
in San Carlos. The Authority signed an agreement to lease back the facilities to 
Republic Services, Inc. to operate them. This agreement expired on December 31, 
2006 and the Authority had extended the agreement until December 31, 2010. The 
Authority signed a new agreement effective January 1, 2011 with South Bay 
Recycling to operate the facility. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the Authority 
paid $21,029,629 to South Bay Recycling to operate the Facility. 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 4: Capital Assets 

Changes in capital assets were as follows for fiscal year ended June 30, 2019: 

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2018 Additions Adjustment June 30, 2019

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 14,000,000$       -$  -$  14,000,000$      
Construction in progress - 2,435,552 - 2,435,552 

Total non-depreciable assets 14,000,000         2,435,552      - 16,435,552 

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 35,704,825         197,493         (17,714)          35,884,604        
Equipment 23,480,648         60,728           38,346            23,579,722        

Total capital assets being depreciated 59,185,473         258,221         20,632            59,464,326        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (13,144,551)        (1,193,112)     17,712            (14,319,951)       
Equipment (13,980,866)        (1,882,775)     (111,710)        (15,975,351)       

Total accumulated depreciation (27,125,417)        (3,075,887)     (93,998)          (30,295,302)       

Net capital assets being depreciated 32,060,056         (2,817,666)     (73,366)          29,169,024        

Capital assets, net 46,060,056$       (382,114)$      (73,366)$        45,604,576$      

Note 5: Revenue Bonds 

The Authority's debt issues and transactions are summarized below and discussed in 
detail thereafter. 

 

Balance Balance Due Within
June 30, 2018 Retirements June 30, 2019 One Year

2009A Solid Waste
System Revenue Bonds 46,105,000$     (1,420,000)$    44,685,000$     1,495,000$     

Bond premiums 134,747 (7,500) 127,247 - 

46,239,747$     (1,427,500)$    44,812,247$     1,495,000$     

a. Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds Series 2009A

On September 2, 2009, the Authority issued $53,500,000 of Solid Waste Enterprise
Revenue Bonds Series 2009A. The 2009A Bonds were issued to pay for the
construction and renovation of a solid waste materials recovery facility and transfer
station and related equipment, to fund a Reserve Fund, to fund capitalized interest,
and to fund certain working capital and pay other costs, including issuance costs.
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 5: Revenue Bonds (Continued) 

Principal payments are payable annually on September 1, c ommencing 
September 1, 2012. The bond bears interest at 3.5%-6.0% which is payable 
semi-annually on September 1 and March 1, commencing on March 1, 2010. 

The series 2009A bonds are solely payable from and secured by the net revenues 
and debt service reserve fund held by the Authority's trustee, as defined under the 
bond indenture. Net Revenues means, for any period, all of the revenues during 
such period less all of the maintenance and operation costs during such period. 
Revenues mean all gross income and revenue received or receivable by the 
Authority.  

The bond covenants contain events of default that require the revenue of the 
Authority to be applied by the Trustee as specified in the terms of the agreement if 
any of the following conditions occur: default on debt service payments; the failure 
of the Authority to observe or perform the conditions, covenants, or agreement 
terms of the debt; bankruptcy filing by the Authority; or if any court or competent 
jurisdiction shall assume custody or control of the Authority. There were no such 
events occurred during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019. 

b. Revenue Pledge

The bonds are secured by a pledge of the Authority’s Net Revenue as defined
under the bond indenture. For the 2009A bonds, the pledge of future net revenue
ends upon repayment of the 2009A bonds in the amount of $78,925,076 million in
remaining debt service on the bonds which is scheduled to occur in fiscal year
2037.

According to the Rate Covenant in the 2009A Bond Indenture, the Authority will
maintain a Net Revenue to Debt Service coverage ratio of 1.40. As of the Fiscal
Year 2019, the Net Revenues to Debt Service Coverage ratio was 2.09.

c. Debt Service Requirements

Annual debt service requirements on the bonds are shown below with specified
repayment terms:

For the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2020 1,495,000$   2,592,125$   4,087,125$   
2021 1,570,000 2,554,750 4,124,750
2022 1,650,000 2,554,750 4,204,750
2023 1,735,000 2,554,750 4,289,750
2024 1,830,000 2,554,750 4,384,750

2024 - 2028 10,815,000 10,716,013 21,531,013
2029 - 2033 14,570,000 7,261,438 21,831,438
2034 - 2037 11,020,000 3,451,500 14,471,500

Total 44,685,000$   34,240,076$    78,925,076$    
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 6: Insurance 

The Authority purchases commercial insurance policies to protect itself from claims 
arising from the following types of losses: 

Type of Coverage Coverage Limits
General Aggregate Limit 2,000,000$       
General Liability deductible 2,500 SIR
Environmental Impact Liability aggregate 2,000,000
Environmental Liability deductible 25,000 SIR
Hired & Non-Owned Auto Limit 1,000,000
Employee Benefits Liability 1,000,000
Excess Liability 10,000,000

Note 7: Pollution Remediation 

In 2000 the South Bay Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) purchased the 
property located at 225/333 Shoreway Road in San Carlos. The property had pre-
existing ground water contamination issues and the former property owner Allied 
Waste (now Republic Services) was identified as the responsible party. The ground 
water contamination is the result of hydrocarbon and petroleum products. Both Allied 
Waste and the SBWMA have managed a remediation effort under supervision from 
the County of San Mateo Department of Environmental Health. 

The San Mateo County Health System (SMCHS) and the California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board (RWQCB) have reviewed and approved the SBWMA’s “Closure 
Report” submitted on January 29, 2013 to close the Shoreway Environmental Center 
(“Shoreway”) groundwater remediation project and issued a NOTICE OF CASE 
CLOSURE on April 29, 2014. This case closure letter is the final step in the Shoreway 
remediation closure and “no further remediation action” is required at the Shoreway 
facility. While no further remediation effort was deemed necessary, due to concerns 
about potential residual contamination, the property has a deed restriction requiring it 
to remain industrially zoned. 

In March of 2010, the SBWMA received a lump sum settlement payment of 
$1,500,000 from Republic Services (formerly Allied Waste and BFI). This money was 
deposited into a SBWMA account dedicated to the ongoing clean-up efforts at 
Shoreway (the remediation cost estimate was negotiated with Allied per methods 
approved by County regulators and based on input from environmental engineers). At 
the close of remediation efforts on April 29, 2014 the Shoreway Remediation Fund 
had an unspent balance of $1,239,826. The unspent balance as of June 30, 2019 is 
$1,233,640 and is reported as accrued liabilities. 
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2019 

Note 8: Net Position 

Designations 

The Authority has designated $14,838,490 of the unrestricted net position for several 
reserves which include: $4,100,000 for rate stabilization, $4,454,754 for emergency 
reserve, $1,397,514 for equipment replacement, and $4,886,222 for capital items. 
These designations may be modified, amended or removed by Authority Board 
action. 

Note 9: Commitments and Contingent Liabilities 

Litigation 

SBWMA is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion 
of legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of SBWMA. 

Construction Commitments 

There are no significant construction commitments as of June 30, 2019. 

Note 10: Subsequent Events 

On July 9, 2019 SWBMA issued Solid Waste Enterprise Refunding Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2019A, Non-Alternative Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $31.86 
million and Solid Waste Enterprise Revenue Bonds, Series 2019B, Alternative 
Minimum Tax Green Bonds in the amount of $16.915 million.  The Series 2019A 
Bonds were issued to refund, in full, the Series 2009A bonds, pay a portion of the cost 
of a debt reserve insurance policy, and pay costs of issuance of the Series 2019A 
Bonds, including a portion of the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy.  The 
Series 2019B Bonds were issued to pay certain costs incurred by SBWMA in 
connection with the construction of various improvements and acquisition of certain 
associated equipment to SBWMA’s solid waste materials recovery facility and transfer 
station located in the City of San Carols, CA, pay a portion of the cost of the Reserve 
Policy, and pay costs of issuance of the series 2019B Bonds, including a portion of 
the cost of a municipal bond insurance policy. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON  
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING  

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN  
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial 
statements of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (Authority), as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated December 18, 2019.   

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Authority’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements 
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which 
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 
Standards. 

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated December 18, 2019, 
which is an integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.  

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Authority’s internal control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s 
internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 18, 2019 
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1 

MEMORANDUM ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of the South Bayside Waste 
Management Authority (Authority) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Authority’s 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.   

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  In addition, 
because of inherent limitations in internal control, including the possibility of management override of 
controls, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected by such controls.  Given these 
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, Board of Directors, 
others within the organization, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 18, 2019 

1

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C EXHIBIT A - p35

FULL PACKET PAGE 85 of 265



This Page Left Intentionally Blank 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 8C EXHIBIT A - p36

FULL PACKET PAGE 86 of 265



REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS 

To the Members of the Board of Directors of the 
South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
San Carlos, California 

We have audited the basic financial statements of the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority (Authority) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. Professional standards require that 
we communicate to you the following information related to our audit under generally accepted 
auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. 

Significant Audit Findings 

Accounting Policies 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The 
significant accounting policies used by the Authority are described in Note 1 to the financial 
statements.  No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was 
not changed during the fiscal year. 

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Authority during the fiscal year for which there is a 
lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in 
the financial statements in the proper period. 

Accounting Estimates 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and 
are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimate(s) 
affecting the Authority’s financial statements were): 

Estimated Fair Value of Investments:  As of June 30, 2019, the Authority held 
approximately $25.1 million of cash and investments as measured by fair value as 
disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.  Fair value is essentially market pricing in 
effect as of June 30, 2019.  These fair values are not required to be adjusted for changes 
in general market conditions occurring subsequent to June 30, 2019. 
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Estimate of Depreciation:  Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful 
lives determined by management.  These lives have been determined by management 
based on the expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 1 to the financial 
statements.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the 
depreciation estimate and determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Estimate of Compensated Absences: Accrued compensated absences which are 
comprised of accrued vacation, holiday, and certain other compensating time is estimated 
using accumulated unpaid leave hours and hourly pay rates in effect at the end of the 
fiscal year as disclosed in Note 1e to the financial statements.  We evaluated the key 
factors and assumptions used to develop the accrued compensated absences and 
determined that it is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a 
whole. 

Disclosures 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate 
level of management.  We did not propose any audit adjustments that, in our judgment, could 
have a significant effect, either individually or in the aggregate, on the Authority’s financial 
reporting process. 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements 
identified during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the 
appropriate level of management.  We have no such misstatements to report to the Authority 
Board. 

Disagreements with Management 

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, 
or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the 
financial statements or the auditor’s report.  We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 
arose during the course of our audit. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management 
representation letter dated December 18, 2019. 
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Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Authority’s financial statements or a 
determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 

Other Audit Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, with management each fiscal year prior to retention as the Authority’s 
auditors.  However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional 
relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 

Other Information Accompanying the Financial Statements 

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies 
and supplements the basic financial statements.  Our procedures consisted of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We did not audit the 
required supplementary information and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
required supplementary information.  

****** 

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and management and is 
not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

Pleasant Hill, California 
December 18, 2019 
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STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Director’s Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving Revised SBWMA Investment Policy for 2020 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-02 attached hereto 
authorizing the adoption of the Investment Policy for 2020. See Exhibit A to the Resolution for the proposed 2020 
Investment Policy. 
Summary 
The Investment Policy states that the policy shall be reviewed and adopted by resolution of the Board on an 
annual basis. It was last approved by the Board on January 24, 2019. The 2020 policy has been reviewed by the 
Board Finance Sub-Committee (comprised of Board Members Bill Widmer, Jay Benton, Fran Dehn and Member 
Agency Finance Directors Carol Augustine and Brenda Olwin) which recommends approval. The recommended 
minor changes to the policy are shown in the attached redline version (see Exhibit A). The changes involve the 
assignment of managing the SBWMA’s investments to the newly selected City of Redwood City Accounting 
Services Team (serving as the Fiscal Agent for the Authority) and updating language to be consistent with 
California Code.  Redwood City Staff and Redwood City’s investment advisory firm, PFM Consulting, also 
reviewed the investment policy and provided the redline edits related to California code language.  There are no 
substantial changes to the policy.  

Analysis 
On August 24, 2000, the Board approved the first Investment Policy based on the City of San Carlos’ Investment 
Policy. The Board has since approved revisions on an annual basis. The attached 2020 Investment Policy is fully 
compliant with California Code.  The primary objective of the Investment Policy is safety of principal, while 
meeting the cash flow needs of the JPA, through prudent investment of surplus cash.  

Background 
In January 2015, the Audit Committee reviewed the mix of investments between the County Pool and the state 
LAIF fund. The Audit Sub-Committee agreed to increase the County Fund to 30% to 50% while keeping the state 
LAIF Fund at 50% to 70%. This change was approved by the Board at the January 22, 2015 Board meeting.  

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact associated with approving the attached revised Investment Policy. 

Attachments: 

Resolution 2020-02 
  Exhibit A – Investment Policy (red-line version) 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-02    

RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 
 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

APPROVING A REVISED INVESTMENT POLICY FOR 2020  
   

 
 WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) and the City of Redwood City 
has reviewed and revised the SBWMA’s current Investment Policy;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board’s Finance Sub-Committee has also reviewed the Policy and supports the 
recommended changes; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves the 2020 SBWMA Investment Policy document as shown in Exhibit A. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 30th day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

 
 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-02 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 
 
 
    
ATTEST:       Jess E (Jay) Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA 
 
_________________________________ 
Cynthia Urman, Board Secretary 
 
 
  

 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton     Menlo Park     
Belmont     Redwood City     
Burlingame     San Carlos     
East Palo Alto     San Mateo     
Foster City     County of San Mateo     
Hillsborough     West Bay Sanitary Dist.     
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SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
INVESTMENT POLICY 

January 20192020 

POLICY 

The investment of the funds of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is 
directed to the goals of safety, liquidity and yield. This Investment Policy incorporates the policies 
defined by the certified investment policy standards recommended by the California Debt and 
Investment Advisory Commission (CDIAC).  The authority governing investments for municipal 
governments is set forth in the California Government Code, Sections 53601 53600 through 53686. 

The primary objective of the investment policy of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority 
is SAFETY OF PRINCIPAL. Investments shall be placed in those securities as outlined by type and 
maturity sector in this document. Effective cash flow management and resulting cash investment 
practices are recognized as essential to good fiscal management and control. The SBWMA's 
portfolio shall be designed and managed in a manner responsive to the public trust and consistent 
with state and local law. Portfolio management requires continual analysis and as a result the 
balance between the various investments and maturities may change in order to give the SBWMA 
the optimum combination of necessary liquidity and optimal yield based on cash flow projections.  

SCOPE  

The investment policy applies to all financial assets of the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority as accounted for in the Annual Financial Statements. Policy statements outlined in this 
document focus on the SBWMA's pooled funds and debt-related funds held by the trustee/ fiscal 
agent.  

PRUDENCE 

The standard to be used by investment officials shall be that of a "prudent investor" and shall be 
applied in the context of managing all aspects of the overall portfolio. When investing, reinvesting, 
purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing public funds, a trustee shall act with care, 
skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, 
the general economic conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person 
acting in a like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a like 
character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity needs of the 
agency.  Within the limitations of this section and considering individual investments as part of an 
overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized by law. 

It is the SBWMA's full intent, at the time of purchase, to hold all investments until maturity to ensure 
the return of all invested principal dollars.  

However, it is realized that market prices of securities will vary depending on economic and interest 
rate conditions at any point in time. It is further recognized that in a well-diversified investment 
portfolio, occasional measured losses are inevitable due to economic, bond market or individual 
security credit analysis. These occasional losses must be considered within the context of the overall 
investment program objectives and the resultant long-term rate of return. 
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The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and 
Principal Analyst of the City of Redwood City (RWC) San Carlos (City) and other individuals 
assigned, as approved by the SBWMA Executive Director and SBWMA Senior Finance Manager to 
manage the SBWMA investment portfolio, acting within the intent and scope of the investment policy 
and other written procedures and exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal 
responsibility and liability for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided 
deviations from expectations are reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to 
control adverse developments.  
 
OBJECTIVES 
 
Safety of Principal 
Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority. 
Each investment transaction shall seek to ensure that capital losses are avoided, whether from 
securities default, broker-dealer default or erosion of market value. The SBWMA shall seek to 
preserve principal by mitigating the two types of risk: credit risk and market risk. 
 
Credit risk, defined as the risk of loss due to failure of the issuer of a security, shall be mitigated by 
investing in investment grade securities and by diversifying the investment portfolio so that the 
failure of any one issuer does not unduly harm the SBWMA's capital base and cash flow. 
 
Market risk, defined as market value fluctuations due to overall changes in the general level of 
interest rates, shall be mitigated by limiting the average maturity of the SBWMA's investment 
portfolio to two years, the maximum maturity of any one security to five years, structuring the portfolio 
based on historic and current cash flow analysis eliminating the need to sell securities prior to 
maturity and avoiding the purchase of long term securities for the sole purpose of short term 
speculation. 
 
Liquidity 
Historical cash flow trends are compared to current cash flow requirements on an ongoing basis in 
an effort to ensure that the SBWMA's investment portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the 
SBWMA to meet all reasonably anticipated operating requirements. 
 
MATURITY MATRIX 
Maturities of investments will be selected based on liquidity requirements to minimize interest rate 
risk and maximize earnings. Current and expected yield curve analysis will be monitored and the 
portfolio will be invested accordingly. The weighted average maturity of the pooled portfolio should 
not exceed two years and the following percentages of the portfolio should be invested in the 
following maturity sectors: 
 
Maturity Range 
Suggested Percentage 
1 day to 7 days  10 to 50% 
7 days to 180   10 to 30% 
180 days to 360 days  10 to 30% 
1 year to 2 years  10 to 20% 
2 years to 3 years   0 to 20% 
3 years to 4 years   0 to 20% 
4 years to 5 years   0 to 20% 
Over 5 years   Board Authorization Required * 
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* One exception does exist regarding the investment of bond reserve funds. If, in the opinion of the
Executive Director or the SBWMA Board of Directors, matching the segregated investment portfolio
of the bond reserve fund with the maturity schedule of an individual bond issue is prudent given
current economic analysis, the investment policy authorizes extending beyond the five year maturity
limitation as outlined in this document.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 

Investment performance is monitored and evaluated by the Investment Advisory Committee, whose 
membership is outlined in the following section. Investment performance statistics and activity 
reports are generated on a quarterly basis for presentation to the Investment Advisory Committee 
and to the SBWMA Board of Directors. Annually, a statement of investment policy, and any 
proposed changes to the policy, will be rendered to the Investment Advisory Committee and to the 
SBWMA Board of Directors for Board consideration at a public meeting. 

The SBWMA’s investment portfolio is designed to at least attain a market average rate of return 
through economic cycles.  The market average rate of return is defined as average return on the 
Local Agency Investment Fund (assuming the State does not adversely affect LAIF’s returns due to 
budget constraints). 

DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY 

The Joint Powers Authority Agreement of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority and the 
authority granted by SBWMA Board assign the responsibility of investing unexpended cash to the 
City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director or Principal Analyst. Daily 
management responsibility of the investment program may be delegated to the City’s Financial 
Services Manager, who shall establish procedures for the operation consistent with this investment 
policy. 

INVESTMENT OVERSIGHTCOMMITTEE 

The Assistant City Manager and Administrative Services Director, Financial Services Manager, and 
Principal Analyst (City Treasurer) of the City of Redwood City will provide general oversight and 
direction concerning the An investment committee consisting of the City of San Carlos Treasurer, 
City Manager, and Administrative Services Director shall be established to provide general oversight 
and direction concerning the policy related to management of the SBWMA's investments pool. In 
conjunction with the City’s investment advisory firm, Tthe Financial Services Manager shall not be 
a member of the committee but shall serve in a staff and advisory capacity. The committee shall 
review and approve quarterly investment reports prepared by the Finance Divisionepartment and 
reviewed by the Financial Services Manager or and meet as necessary to discuss changes to the 
report or the investment strategy.  The SBWMA Board will be provided with Investment Committee 
serving as the legislative body of the Investment Policy will have the quarterly reports for their review 
within thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter covered by the report as per Section 53646 
(b)(1) of the California Government Code. 

ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business 
activity that conflicts with proper execution of the investment program, or impairs their ability to make 
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impartial investment decisions. Additionally the City’s Assistant City Manager and Administrative 
Services Director and the Financial Services Manager are required to annually file applicable 
financial disclosures as required by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC).  
 
 
 
SAFEKEEPING OF SECURITIES 
 
To protect against fraud or embezzlement or losses caused by collapse of an individual securities 
dealer, all securities owned by the SBWMA shall be held in safekeeping by a third party bank trust 
department, acting as agent for the SBWMA under the terms of a custody agreement.  All trades 
executed by a dealer will settle delivery versus payment (DVP) through the SBWMA's safekeeping 
agent.  
 
Securities held custody for the SBWMA shall be monitored by the City’s Financial Administrative 
Services Manager Director to verify investment holdings. 
 
All exceptions to this safekeeping policy must be approved by the City’s Financial Administrative 
Services Manager Director in written form and included in the quarterly reporting to the Investment 
Committee and the SBWMA Board of Directors. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
Separation of functions between the City’s Administrative Services Director or Financial Services 
Manager and/or the Principal Analyst, Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or 
Account Clerk is designed to provide an ongoing internal review to prevent the potential for 
converting assets or concealing transactions. 
 
Investment decisions are made by the City’s FinancialAdministrative Services ManagerDirector, 
executed by the Principal Analyst, Administrative Services Director or Financial Services Manager 
and confirmed by the Senior Accountant, Accountant, Account Technician, and/or Account Clerk.  
All wire transfers initiated by the Accountant or Account TechnicianAdministrative Services Director 
or Financial Services Manager must be reconfirmed by the appropriate financial institution to the 
Financial Services ManagerSenior Accountant.  Proper documentation obtained from confirmation 
and cash disbursement wire transfers is required for each investment transaction. Timely bank 
reconciliation is conducted to ensure proper handling of all transactions. 
 
The investment portfolio and all related transactions are reviewed and balanced to appropriate 
general ledger accounts by the Account TechnicianSenior Accountant on a monthly basis.  An 
independent analysis by an external auditor shall be conducted annually to review and perform 
procedure testing on the Agency’s cash and investments that have a material impact on the financial 
statements.  The FinancialAdministrative Services ManagerDirector and/or Investment Committee 
shall review and assure compliance with investment process and procedures.   
 
REPORTING 
 
The City’s Financial Administrative Services Manager Director shall review and render quarterly 
reports to the Investment Advisory Committee and to the Board of Directors which shall include the 
face amount of the cash investment, the classification of the investment, the name of the institution 
or entity, the rate of interest, the maturity date, the current market value and accrued interest due 
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for all securities.  The quarterly reports will be submitted to the Board of DirectorsInvestment 
Committee within thirty (30) days  following the end of the quarter covered by the report as per 
Section 53646 (b)(1) of the California Government Code.  Once approved by the Investment 
Committee, the quarterly reports shall be placed on the Board of Director’s meeting agenda for its 
review and approval no later than 60 days after the quarter ends. If there are no Board of Director 
meetings within the 360-day period, the quarterly report shall be presented to the Board of Directors 
at the soonest possible meeting thereafter. 

QUALIFIED BROKER/DEALERS 

The SBWMA shall transact business only with banks, savings and loans, and with broker/dealers. 
The broker/dealers should be primary or regional dealers. The City currently does not maintain a list 
of broker/dealers approved to do business with the City.  When necessary, the City shall go through 
the Request for Proposal processes to select the broker/dealers.  The City’s Administrative Services 
Director will make exceptions only upon written authorization.  Investment staff shall investigate 
dealers wishing to do business with the SBWMA to determine if they are adequately capitalized, 
have pending legal action against the firm or the individual broker and make markets in the securities 
appropriate to the SBWMA's needs.  The SBWMA’s investment policy shall be made available on 
the Authority’s website for broker/dealers’ review. 

COLLATERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Collateral is required for investments in certificates of deposit.  In order to reduce market risk, the 
collateral level will be at least 110% of market value of principal and accrued interest.  

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS 

Investment of SBWMA funds is governed by the California Government Code Sections 53600 et 
seq. Within the context of the limitations, the following investments are authorized, as further limited 
herein: 

1. United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, and Notes or those for which the full faith and credit of
the United States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There is no percentage
limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.

2. Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) which is a State of California managed investment
pool, and San Mateo County Investment pool, may be used up to the maximum permitted
by California State Law.  A review of the pool/fund is required when they are part of the list
of authorized investments, with the knowledge that the pool/fund may include some
investments allowed by statute but not explicitly identified in this investment policy.

3. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations,
participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed as to 
principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored 
enterprises. There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this 
category, although a five-year maturity limitation is applicable. 

Commented [AK1]: Language from Code to replace paragraph 
below.  

Commented [FR2R1]: This should be sufficient and includes 
agency mortgage-backed securities.  
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3. Most mortgage-backed securities are oObligations issued by the Government National 

Mortgage Association (GNMA), the Federal Farm Credit System (FFCB), the Federal Home 
Loan Bank Board (FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), the Student 
Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 
(FHLMC). There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio that can be invested in this 
category, although a five-year maturity limitation is applicable.A mortgage passthrough 
security, collateralized mortgage obligation, mortgage-backed or other pay-through bond, 
equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable passthrough certificate, or 
consumer receivable-backed bond of a maximum of five years’ maturity. Securities eligible 
for investment under this subdivision shall be issued by an issuer rated in a rating category 
of “A” or its equivalent or better for the issuer’s debt as provided by an NRSRO and rated in 
a rating category of “AA” or its equivalent or better by an NRSRO. Purchase of securities 
authorized by this subdivision shall not exceed 20 percent of the agency’s surplus moneys 
that may be invested pursuant to this section. 

 
4. Bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by commercial banks, otherwise 

known as banker's acceptances. Banker's acceptances purchased may not exceed 180 days 
to maturity or 40% of the cost value of the portfolio. Also, no more than 30% of the agency’s 
money may be in bankers’ acceptances of any one commercial bank. 

 
5. Commercial paper ranked the highest letter and number rating by a nationally recognized 

statistical rating organization (NRSRO), such as Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch 
Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s Investors Services, , and issued by domestic corporations having 
assets in excess of $500,000,000 and having an rating in the rating category of “A” or the 
equivalent or better rating on its' long term debentures as provided by NRSRO. Purchases 
of eligible commercial paper may not exceed 270 days to maturity nor represent more than 
10510% of the outstanding paper of the issuing corporation. Purchases of commercial paper 
may not exceed 25% of the cost value of the portfolio. No more than 5% of the market value 
of the portfolio may be invested in any one issuer. 

 
6. Negotiable Certificates of Deposit issued by nationally or state chartered banks (FDIC 

insured institutions), a savings association or a federal association (as defined by Section 
5102 of the Financial Code), a state or federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or 
state-licensed branch of a foreign bank.  or state or federal savings institutions. Purchases 
of negotiable certificates of deposit may not exceed 30% of total portfolio. A maturity 
limitation of five years is applicable. No more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio 
may be invested in any one issuer.  

 
 
7. Time deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized in accordance with the California 

Government Code, may be purchased through banks or savings and loan associations. 
Since time deposits are not liquid, no more than 30% of the investment portfolio may be 
invested in this investment type.  A maturity limitation of five years is applicable. 

 
8. Medium Term Corporate Notes, with a maximum maturity of five years may be purchased. 

Securities eligible for investment shall be rated in a rating category of “A” or the equivalent 
or better by an NRSRO. Purchase of medium term notes may not exceed 30% of the market 
value of the portfolio and no more than 5% of the market value of the portfolio may be 
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invested in notes issued by one corporation. Commercial paper holdings should also be 
included when calculating the 1510% limitation. 

9. Ineligible investments are those that are not described herein, including but not limited to,
common stocks and long term (over five years in maturity) notes and bonds are prohibited
from use in this portfolio. It is noted that special circumstances arise that necessitate the
purchase of securities beyond the five-year limitation. On such occasions, requests must be
approved by Board of Directors prior to purchase.

10. Various daily money market funds administered for or by trustees, paying agents and
custodian banks contracted by the SBWMA may be purchased as allowed under State of
California Government Code. Only funds holding U.S. Treasury or Government agency
obligations can be utilized.

The following summary of maximum percentage limits, by instrument, is established for the 
SBWMA's total pooled funds portfolio: 

Authorized 
Investment Type 

Government 
Code 

Maximum 
Maturity 

Minimum 
Credit 

Quality 
Maximum in 

Portfolio 

Maximum 
Investment 

in One Issuer 

Local Agency 
Investment Fund 
(LAIF) 

16429.1  
Upon 

Demand 
N/A 

50% to 70% of the 
investment 
portfolio, as 
approved by the 
SBWMA Board 
but no more than 
$675 million  
permitted by LAIF 

N/A 

San Mateo County 
Investment Pool 

53684 
Upon 

Demand 
N/A 

30% to 50% of the 
investment 
portfolio, as 
approved by the 
SBWMA Board 

N/A 

Treasury Obligations 
(bills, notes & bonds) 

53601(b) 5 Years N/A 100% N/A 

US Government 
Agency and Federal 
Agency Securities 

53601(f) 5 Years N/A 100% N/A 

Mortgage Pass-
Through Securities or 
Mortgage-Backed 
Securities 

53601(o) 5 Years (AC) 20% N/A 

Bankers’ 
Acceptances 

53601(g) 180 Days N/A 40%  30% 

Commercial Paper 53601(h) 270 Days 
Highest 

letter and 
25% 5%
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number 
rating by 

an 
NRSRO 

Negotiable 
Certificates of 
Deposit 

53601(i) 5 Years N/A 30% 5% 

Time Certificates of 
Deposit – Banks or 
Savings and Loans 

53601.8 5 Years N/A 30% N/A 

Medium Term 
Corporate Notes 

53601(k) 5 Years 

Rating 
category 
“A” by 
NRSRO 

30% 5% 

 
(A) 10% of outstanding paper of issuing corporation. and 10% of the portfolio in one 

corporation 
 No more than 30% of the agency’s money may be in bankers’ acceptances of any one 

commercial bank. 
(B) Issued by an issuer rated in a rating category of “A” or its equivalent or better for the 

issuer’s debt as provided by an NRSRO and rated in a rating category of “AA” or its 
equivalent or better by an NRSRO. 

 
DERIVATIVE INVESTMENTS 
 
Derivatives are investments whose value is "derived" from a benchmark or index. That benchmark 
can be almost any financial measure from interest rates to commodity and stock prices. The use of 
derivatives is prohibited under this policy.  
 
LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 
 
Any State of California legislative action that further restricts allowable maturities, investment type, 
or percentage allocations will be incorporated into the South Bayside Waste Management 
Authority's Investment Policy and supersede any and all previous applicable language. 
 
INTEREST EARNINGS 
 
All moneys earned and collected from investments authorized in this policy shall be allocated 
quarterly to various fund accounts based on the cash balance in each fund at quarter end as a 
percentage of the entire pooled portfolio. 
 
LIMITING MARKET VALUE EROSION 
 
The longer the maturity of securities, the greater their market price volatility. Therefore, it is the 
general policy of the SBWMA to limit the potential effects from erosion in market values by adhering 
to the following guidelines: 
 
All immediate and anticipated liquidity requirements will be addressed prior to purchasing all 
investments. 
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Maturity dates for long-term investments will coincide with significant cash flow requirements where 
possible, to assist with short term cash requirements at maturity. 

All long-term securities will be purchased with the intent to hold all investments to maturity under 
then prevailing economic conditions. However, economic or market conditions may change, making 
it in the SBWMA's best interest to sell or trade a security prior to maturity. 

PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY 

The investment program shall seek to augment returns consistent with the intent of this policy, 
identified risk limitations and prudent investment principals. These objectives will be achieved by 
use of the following strategies: 

Active Portfolio Management.  Through active fund and cash flow management, taking advantage 
of current economic and interest rate trends, the portfolio yield may be enhanced with limited and 
measurable increases in risk by extending the weighted maturity of the total portfolio. 

Portfolio Maturity Management.  When structuring the maturity composition of the portfolio, the 
SBWMA shall evaluate current and expected interest rate yields and necessary cash flow 
requirements. It is recognized that in normal market conditions longer maturities produce higher 
yields. However, the securities with longer maturities also experience greater price fluctuations when 
the level of interest rates change.  

Security Swaps.  The SBWMA may take advantage of security swap opportunities to improve the 
overall portfolio yield. A swap, which improves the portfolio yield, may be selected even if the 
transactions result in an accounting loss. Documentation for swaps will be included in the SBWMA 
permanent investment file documents.  

Competitive Bidding.  It is the policy of the SBWMA to require competitive bidding for investment 
transactions that are not classified as "new issue" securities. For the purchase of non-"new issue" 
securities and the sale of all securities at least three bidders must be contacted. Competitive bidding 
for security swaps is also suggested, however, it is understood that certain time constraints and 
broker portfolio limitations exist which would not accommodate the competitive bidding process. If 
a time or portfolio constraining condition exists, the pricing of the swap should be verified to current 
market conditions and documented for auditing purposes. 

POLICY REVIEW 

The South Bayside Waste Management Authority's investment policy shall be adopted by resolution 
of the Board on an annual basis. This investment policy shall be reviewed at least annually to ensure 
its consistency with the overall objectives of preservation of principal, liquidity and yield, and its 
relevance to current law and financial and economic trends. Any amendments to the policy shall be 
forwarded to Board for approval. 

Glossary of Terms 

Accrued Interest- Interest earned but not yet received. 

Active Deposits- Funds which are immediately required for disbursement. 
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Amortization- An accounting practice of gradually decreasing (increasing) an asset's book value by 
spreading its depreciation (accretion) over a period of time. 
 
Annual Financial Report - The official annual financial report for the SBWMA. It includes five 
combined statements and basic financial statements for each individual fund and account group 
prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
 
Asked Price- The price a broker dealer offers to sell securities.  
 
Basis Point- One basis point is one hundredth of one percent (.01).  
 
Bid Price- The price a broker dealer offers to purchase securities. 
 
Bond- A financial obligation for which the issuer promises to pay the bondholder a specified stream 
of future cash flows, including periodic interest payments and a principal repayment.  
 
Bond Swap – Selling one bond issue and buying another at the same time in order to create an 
advantage for the investor.  Some benefits of swapping may include tax-deductible losses, 
increased yields, and an improved quality portfolio. 
 
Book Entry Securities – Securities, such stocks held in “street name,” that are recorded in a 
customer’s account, but are not accompanied by a certificate.  The trend is toward a certificate-free 
society in order to cut down on paperwork and to diminish investors’ concerns about the certificates 
themselves.  All the large New York City banks, including those that handle the bulk of the 
transactions of the major government securities dealers, now clear most of their transactions with 
each other and with the Federal Reserve through the use of automated telecommunications and the 
“book-entry” custody system maintained by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York.  These banks 
have deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank a major portion of their government and agency 
securities holdings, including securities held for the accounts of their customers or in a fiduciary 
capacity.  Virtually all transfers for the account of the banks, as well as for the government securities 
dealers who are their clients, are now effected solely by bookkeeping entries.  The system reduces 
the costs and risks of physical handling and speeds the completion of transactions. 
 
Bearer and Registered Bonds - In the past, bearer and registered bonds were issued in paper form.  
Those still outstanding may be exchanged at any Federal Reserve Bank or branch for an equal 
amount of any authorized denomination of the same issue.  Outstanding bearer bonds are 
interchangeable with registered bonds and bonds in “book-entry” form.  That is, the latter exist as 
computer entries only and no paper securities are issued.  New bearer and registered bonds are no 
longer being issued.  Since August 1986, the Treasury’s new issues of marketable notes and bonds 
are available in book-entry form only.  All Treasury bills and more than 90% of all other marketable 
securities are now in book-entry form.  Book-entry obligations are transferable only pursuant to 
regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the Treasury. 
 
Book Value- The value at which a debt security is shown on the holder's balance sheet. Book value 
is acquisition cost less amortization of premium or accretion of discount. 
 
Broker – In securities, the intermediary between a buyer and a seller of securities.  The broker, who 
usually charges a commission, must be registered with the exchange in which he or she is trading, 
accounting for the name registered representative. 
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Certificate of Deposit- A deposit insured up to $250,000 by the FDIC at a set rate for a specified 
period of time. 
 
Collateral- Securities, evidence of deposit or pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to 
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposit of public moneys. 
 
Constant Maturity Treasury (CMT) - An average yield of a specific Treasury maturity sector for a 
specific time frame. This is a market index for reference of past direction of interest rates for the 
given Treasury maturity range. 
 
Coupon- The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises to pay the bondholder on the 
bond's face value. 
 
Credit Analysis- A critical review and appraisal of the economic and financial conditions or of the 
ability to meet debt obligations. 
 
Current Yield- The interest paid on an investment expressed as a percentage of the current price of 
the security. 
 
Custody- A banking service that provides safekeeping for the individual securities in a customer's 
investment portfolio under a written agreement which also calls for the bank to collect and pay out 
income, to buy, sell, receive and deliver securities when ordered to do so by the principal. 
 
Delivery vs. Payment (DVP) - Delivery of securities with a simultaneous exchange of money for the 
securities.  
 
Discount- The difference between the cost of a security and its value at maturity when quoted at 
lower than face value. 
 
Diversification- Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering independent returns 
and risk profiles. 
 
Duration- The weighted average maturity of a bond's cash flow stream, where the present value of 
the cash flows serve as the weights; the future point in time at which on average, an investor has 
received exactly half of the original investment, in present value terms; a bond's zero-coupon 
equivalent; the fulcrum of a bond's present value cash flow time line. 
 
Fannie Mae- Trade name for the Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), a U.S. sponsored 
corporation. 
 
Federal Reserve System- The central bank of the U.S. that consists of a seven member Board of 
Governors, 12 regional banks and approximately 3,000 commercial banks that are members. 
 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) - Insurance provided to customers of a subscribing 
bank that guarantees deposits to a set limit (currently $250,000) per account. 
 
Fed Wire- A wire transmission service established by the Federal Reserve Bank to facilitate the 
transfer of funds through debits and credits of funds between participants within the Fed system. 
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Freddie Mac- Trade name for the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC), a U.S. 
sponsored corporation. 
 
Ginnie Mae- Trade name for the Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA), a direct 
obligation bearing the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. 
 
Inactive Deposits- Funds not immediately needed for disbursement.  
 
Interest Rate- The annual yield earned on an investment, expressed as a percentage. 
 
Investment Agreements- An agreement with a financial institution to borrow public funds subject to 
certain negotiated terms and conditions concerning collateral, liquidity and interest rates.  
 
Liquidity- Refers to the ability to rapidly convert an investment into cash. 
 
Market Value- The price at which a security is trading and could presumably be purchased or sold. 
 
Maturity- The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes due and 
payable. 
 
Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSRO): A U.S. Securities & Exchange 
Commission registered agency that assesses the creditworthiness of an entity or specific security. 
NRSRO typically refers to Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, Fitch Ratings, Inc. or Moody’s 
Investors Services. 
 
New Issue- Term used when a security is originally "brought" to market. 
 
Perfected Delivery- Refers to an investment where the actual security or collateral is held by an 
independent third party representing the purchasing entity. 
 
Portfolio- Collection of securities held by an investor. 
 
Primary Dealer- A group of government securities dealers that submit daily reports of market activity 
and security positions held to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and are subject to its informal 
oversight.  
 
Purchase Date- The date in which a security is purchased for settlement on that or a later date. 
 
Rate of Return- The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its current market 
price. This may be the amortized yield to maturity on a bond or the current income return. 
 
Repurchase Agreement (REPO) - A transaction where the seller (bank) agrees to buy back from 
the buyer (SBWMA) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period of time.  
 
Reverse Repurchase Agreement (REVERSE REPO) - A transaction where the seller (SBWMA) 
agrees to buy back from the buyer (bank) the securities at an agreed upon price after a stated period 
of time. 
 
Risk- Degree of uncertainty of return on an asset. 
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Safekeeping- see custody. 

Sallie Mae- Trade name for the Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA), a U.S. sponsored 
corporation. 

Secondary Market- A market made for the purchase and sale of outstanding issues following the 
initial distribution. 

Settlement Date- The date on which a trade is cleared by delivery of securities against funds. 

Time Deposit – A deposit in an interest-paying account that requires the money to remain on account 
for a specific length of time.  While withdrawals can generally be made from a passbook account at 
any time, other time deposits, such as certificates of deposit, are penalized for early withdrawal. 

Treasury Obligations- Debt obligations of the U.S. Government that are sold by the Treasury 
Department in the forms of bills, notes, and bonds. Bills are short-term obligations that mature in 
one year or less. Notes are obligations that mature between one year and ten years. Bonds are 
long-term obligations that generally mature in ten years or more. 

U.S. Government Agencies- Instruments issued by various US Government Agencies most of which 
are secured only by the credit worthiness of the particular agency. 

Yield- The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage. It is obtained 
by dividing the current dollar income by the current market price of the security. 

Yield to Maturity- The rate of income return on an investment, minus any premium or plus any 
discount, with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase to the date of 
maturity of the bond, expressed as a percentage. 

Yield Curve- The yield on bonds, notes or bills of the same type and credit risk at a specific date for 
maturities up to thirty years. 
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8E 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Hilary Gans, Senior Contracts and Facilities Manager  
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving a contract with LPG Fire Protection Company Inc for a not to 

exceed amount of $77,778. 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the resolution 2020-03 for a contract with LPG Fire 
Protection Inc for a not to exceed amount of $77,778. 

Summary 
As a condition of approval by the San Carlos Building Department, a separate fire sprinkler system must be 
installed in the transfer station covering the new O2E equipment installation.  The sprinkler system is outside of 
equipment installation scope of work being performed by Anaergia so, upon approval, the SBWMA will contract for 
this work directly with fire protection companies to comply with permit requirements.  

Analysis 
During the permit review of the O2E equipment installation the San Carlos Building Department included a 
requirement that the existing building fire sprinkler system be augmented to cover the new equipment (the existing 
transfer station building has an advanced fire suppression system  that was installed during the 2010 
construction).  Anaergia and SBWMA have work to engage fire protection companies over the past six-months, 
have solicited bids from seven companies, and have obtained two bids for the work.  LPG Fire Protection Inc. was 
low at $58,570 with the next lowest bid from LiquidTech at $91,400. LPG Fire Protection Inc., provided a proposal 
for design, permitting, and installation of a system that meets national fire protection and City of San Carlos code 
requirement.  Due to the potential need for additional fire elements that may be required by the building 
department to obtain a permit, staff is requesting funds detailed below for a not to exceed amount of $77,778.  A 
15% contingency is requested to address any further related critical path items that may emerge during this 
specialized installation. 

$58,570  LPG Proposed base system cost 
$9,064  Additional recommended fire suppression equipment 
$67,634  Total LPG Proposal 
$6,763  15% contingency 
$77,778  Subtotal NTE amount requested 

Background 
The O2E Pilot project installation commenced in July 2019, will be completed in February 2020, and with a start of 
operations scheduled for March 2020.  The project design was approved by the San Carlos Building Department 
with a deferred submission requirement for the fire protection system.  Seven companies were contacted to 
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provide quotes for the fire protection installation and all but two declined. The completion of the fire suppression 
system installation is a permit condition that must be met prior to operations of the O2E system.  
 
Fiscal Impact 

The Organics to Energy Pilot project received grants from the State and the County of San Mateo totaling over 
$3M.  Due to the large grants supporting the Pilot, there is currently a fund surplus of roughly $1M beyond the 
total anticipated project expense which will be used to cover the fire protection system installation. As such, there 
will be no impact to the SBWMA operating budget. 
 

Attachments: 
Resolution 2020-03 
A. Proposal by LPG Fire Protection, Inc.  
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-03   
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH LPG FIRE PROTECTION 
COMPANY INC FOR A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $77,778

WHEREAS, South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) is installing an Organics to Energy 
Pilot project in the Shoreway transfer station,  

WHEREAS, the San Carlos building Department has required additional fire suppression be added to the 
equipment as a condition of permit approval,  

WHEREAS, the fire suppression system is an additional scope outside of the equipment installation and 
therefore falls on the SBWMA to install, 3 to 5 years;  

. WHEREAS, the SBWMA and Anaergia have solicited bids from seven companies and have obtained a low bid from 
LPG Fire Protection Inc for an amount of $67,634 (base proposal plus recommended items).  

WHEREAS, an additional project contingency of 15% is recommended for the project for a total of $77,778. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the SBWMA Board hereby authorizes Resolution Approving a 
contract with LPG Fire Protection Company Inc for a not to exceed amount of $77,778 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the January 30, 2020, by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-03 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting 
of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 

ATTEST:

 ____________________________________ 
  Jess E. (Jay) Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA  

___________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton Menlo Park 
Belmont Redwood City 
Burlingame San Carlos 
East Palo Alto San Mateo 
Foster City County of San Mateo 

Hillsborough West Bay Sanitary 
District 
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LPG Fire Protection, Inc. 
1742 Seville Way 

San Jose, Ca. 95131 
Tel: 408-636-6803 
Fax: 669-235-5624 

luis@lpgfireprotection.com 
C-16 / Lic. #990237 

 
 
December 27, 2019 
 
Reference: SBWMA ti 
  Redwood City, Ca.  
     
To Whom It May Concern- 
 
LPG is pleased to submit for your review and consideration this proposal to provide:  
design, F.D. permit, labor, materials, and equip. necessary for a new code compliant 
fire sprinkler system additions. 
 
Proposal is based on REV 6 drawings dated 5-7-19. 
 

• Proposal is valid for 60 days.  
 
Our proposal is qualified as follows: 
 
CLARIFICATIONS 

 
1. LPG will provide Automatic Fire Sprinkler (AFS) system additions to the three new 

large pieces of sorting equipment, as well as conveyors which meet the minimum 
code requirement for AFS protection.  

2. Proposal is based on exposed fire sprinkler heads, lines, main supply lines. 
3. Proposal is based on the use of existing overhead fire sprinkler main for primary 

additions supply.  
4. LPG will install galvanized piping. All grooved fittings shall be factory painted finish.  
5. Sprinkler heads will be provided with head guards attached.  
6. All installation shall be per NFPA 13 and the City of San Carlos requirements. 
7. Material selection and/or manufacturer to be at LPG’s discretion.  All materials will 

be UL listed for use in fire protection systems. 
8. Proposal assumes the interior work areas will be accessible by mechanical 

scissor lift at time of installation.  
9. Proposal is based on work being performed during regular working hours. 
10. Proposal includes an ADD cost to provide AFS protection at the south side large 

conveyor under the same permit. LPG believes the fire dept. inspector will require 
protection at this conveyor. Add cost only includes AFS protection at interior portions 
of the conveyor.  
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EXCLUSIONs: 

1. Fire hose/extinguishers and/or cabinets.
2. Upgrades to the existing AFS overhead system and/ or risers.
3. Fire watch.
4. Overtime labor.
5. Structural calculations related to attachment load values to equipment.
6. Bonds. (Available upon request for an additional cost)

BASE BID: $ 58,570.00 

Add for south conveyor: $ 9,064.00 

Respectfully Submitted, 

LPG Fire Protection 

Should you have any questions or comments please do not hesitate to contact LPG. 

Proposal Acceptance: _____________________________  

Date: ___________ 

Title: ________________________________ 
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8F 

To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:  John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:  January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject: Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2019 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board review and accept the Quarterly Investment Report. 

Analysis 
The primary objective of the Investment Policy for the SBWMA is safety of principal, while meeting the cash flow 
needs of the Authority, through prudent investment of unexpended cash.  As of December 31, 2019, the investment 
portfolio was in compliance with the Investment Policy, with the exception of the LAIF and County Pool investment 
mix as explained in the Fiscal Impact section of this staff report.  The portfolio contains sufficient liquidity to meet 
the next six months of expected expenditures by the Authority as well as by other third parties. 

Fiscal Impact 
The attached Investment Portfolio Summary indicates that as of December 31, 2019, funds in the amount of 
$38,088,537 were invested, producing a weighted average yield of 2.07%.   

Below is a summary of the changes from the last quarter. 

Qtr Ended
9/30/19

Qtr Ended
12/31/19

Increase
(Decrease)

Total Portfolio 36,285,182$    38,088,537$    1,803,355$        
Weighted Average Return 2.15% 2.07% -0.08%
Interest/Dividends Earnings 177,684$   183,786$   6,102$   

The total quarter-end portfolio balance increased by $1,803,355 when compared to the previous quarter.  The 
increase was primarily due to transfers of excess operating cash into the investment portfolio, partially offset by 
drawdowns of bond proceeds, which were used to reimburse the Authority for project costs.  As a result of the 
increased portfolio balance, total interest and dividend earnings were higher than the previous quarter.   
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A table comparison of the portfolio components is provided below: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Note: There may be minor differences in totals as individual amounts are rounded to the nearest dollar 
 
Due to arbitrage restrictions, bond investments are not included in our LAIF rate or investment pool comparison.  
As of December 31, 2019, the bond cost of issuance and project accounts of approximately $18.4 million were 
invested with the trustee in short-term investments.   
 
As of December 31, 2019, investments in the County Investment Pool totaled 27.0% of SBWMA’s funds available 
for investment pools (see Attachment 1).  The percentage is slightly below the range specified by the SBWMA 
Board.  It is anticipated that during the quarter ending March 31, 2020, the percentage will adjust to within the range 
specified by the SBWMA Board.  The Board approved the following investment mix at its January 22, 2015 meeting.  
LAIIF – 50% to 70% and COPOOL 30% to 50%. 
 
The weighted average yield of the portfolio in the quarter excluding the bond proceeds was 2.18%.  LAIF is used 
as a benchmark and the average LAIF yield for the quarter ending December 31, 2019, was 2.29%.  The San Mateo 
County Pool average yield for the quarter was 1.88%. 
 
Derek Rampone, the Financial Services Manager of the City of Redwood City, has reviewed this report before 
presentation to the Board. 
 
Attachments:  

A. Summary of All Investments for Quarter Ending December 31, 2019 
B. Investment Portfolio 12/31/2019 - Chart 
C. Historical Summary of Investment Portfolio 
 
 
 

9/30/2019
Balance

% of
Total

12/31/2019
Balance

% of
Total

Change over 
Prior Quarter

SM County Pool 5,292,948$      15% 5,321,963$      14% 29,015$           
LAIF 10,891,545      30% 14,412,065      38% 3,520,520        
Bond Accounts 20,100,689      55% 18,354,509      48% (1,746,180)      
Total Portfolio 36,285,182$    100% 38,088,537$    100% 1,803,355$      
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Attachment A

Category
Rate of 
Return Historical Cost

% of 
Portfolio Market Value*

Interest/Dividend 
Earned

Liquid Investments:

San Mateo County Investment Pool (COPOOL) 1.88% 5,321,963$          27.0% 5,326,687$        29,015$  
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 2.29% 14,412,065          73.0% 14,437,579        68,309 

Weighted 
Average

Total - Investments 2.18% 19,734,028          100.0% 19,764,266        97,324 

Rate of 
Return

Bond Accounts - Cash with Fiscal Agents
BNY - 2009A Reserve Fund 1.85% - - 41 
BNY - 2009A Payment Fund 1.85% - - 21 
BNY - 2019AB Refunding Costs Fund 1.95% 23,720 23,720                105 
BNY - 2019AB Refunding Project Fund 1.95% 18,330,789          18,330,789        86,295 

Total - Bond Accounts 18,354,509          18,354,509        86,462 

Weighted 
Average

GRAND TOTAL OF PORTFOLIO 2.07% 38,088,537$        38,118,775$      183,786$  

Total Interest/Dividend Earned This Quarter 183,786 
Total Interest/Dividend Earned Fiscal Year-to-Date 361,470 

   LAIF - 50% to 70%
   COPOOL - 30% to 50%

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY

SUMMARY OF ALL INVESTMENTS
For Quarter Ending December 31, 2019

Note: SBWMA Board approved the following investment mix at its January 22, 2015 meeting:

*Difference in value between Historical Cost and Market Value may be due to timing of purchase.  Investments in the investment pools may have been 
purchased when interest rates were lower or higher than the end date of this report.  As interest rates increase or decrease, the value of the 
investment pools will decrease or increase accordingly.  However, interest rate fluctuations do not have any impact to SBWMA's balance in the 
investment pools (other than interest earnings).  The market values are presented as a reference only and are used for accounting purposes.
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San Mateo County Pool 14.0%
LAIF 37.8%
Bond Accounts 48.2%

San Mateo County Pool, 
14.0%

LAIF, 37.8%

Bond Accounts, 
48.2%

SBWMA
Investment Portfolio

12/31/2019

San Mateo County Pool LAIF Bond Accounts
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Attachment C

South Bayside Waste Management Authority Portfolio

Dec 2017 Mar 2018 June 2018 Sep 2018 Dec 2018 Mar 2019 June 2019 Sep 2019 Dec 2019
SM County Pool 6,160,258       6,178,931       5,950,328       4,677,171       5,453,401       5,230,212       5,261,667       5,292,948       5,321,963            
LAIF 8,882,011       9,657,438       10,043,712     9,683,992       11,840,565     10,553,938     11,623,054     10,891,545     14,412,065          
Bond Accounts 5,704,703       5,401,411       6,452,737       4,742,350       5,798,255       5,547,155       6,610,869       20,100,689     18,354,509          
Grand Total 20,746,972$  21,237,780$  22,446,777$  19,103,513$  23,092,221$  21,331,305$  23,495,590$  36,285,182$  38,088,537$       

Dec 2017 Mar 2018 June 2018 Sep 2018 Dec 2018 Mar 2019 June 2019 Sep 2019 Dec 2019
SM County Pool 29.7% 29.1% 26.5% 24.5% 23.6% 24.5% 22.4% 14.6% 14.0%
LAIF 42.8% 45.5% 44.7% 50.7% 51.3% 49.5% 49.5% 30.0% 37.8%
Bond Accounts 27.5% 25.4% 28.7% 24.8% 25.1% 26.0% 28.1% 55.4% 48.2%
Grand Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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9A 

STAFF REPORT 
To:  SBWMA Board Members 
From:  Jean Savaree, General Counsel 
Date:  January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject: Election of Board Officers for 2020 
Recommendation 
The Board is required to annually elect a Board Chair and Vice Chair per Article 8, Governance, of the JPA 
Agreement, Sections 8.5 and 8.6 which provide: 

8.5 Chair.  The Board shall annually select a Chair, by a vote taken in accordance with 
Section 10.8 of this Agreement, who shall serve without compensation at the pleasure of the 
Board.  The duties of the Chair include, but are not limited to the following:  

a. Conduct Board meetings.
b. Review and set meeting agendas with the Executive Director.
c. Sign any and all SBWMA official documents.

8.6 Vice Chair.  The Board shall annually select a Vice Chair, by a vote taken in 
accordance with Section 10.8 of this Agreement, who serves without compensation at the pleasure 
of the Board.  The Vice Chair shall act in the absence of the Chair, with full powers of the Chair.    

This selection traditionally occurred at the Board’s January meeting.  Staff recommends that the Board now select 
the Chair and Vice Chair for 2020.  

In addition to the duties enumerated in Section 8.5, as a matter of practice, the Board Chair and Vice Chair along 
with the Executive Director, General Counsel and Board Clerk have traditionally met on a monthly basis as the 
“Executive Committee” to conduct Board meeting agenda planning and discuss major items of note related to JPA 
operations, and function as the adhoc legislative review committee. The Executive Director also updates the 
Executive Committee on a regular basis on any major issues that may come up in the course of day-to-day 
operations. 

Background 
Staff recommends the following process for the Board to follow in electing a Chair and Vice Chair for calendar 
year 2018: 

1. Chair calls for nominations for the position of Chair (nominations do not require a second).

2. Motion is adopted to close nominations.

3. Board votes on nominations in the order in which the nominations were made until a Chair is elected.
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4. Sections 8.5 and 10.8 of the JPA Agreement require the successful vote to be by 2/3 of the Directors 

present. 
 

5. The new Chair takes the gavel and assumes the office and calls for nominations for Vice Chair and 
the same procedure is followed for electing the Vice Chair. 

 
Fiscal Impact 
None. 
 
 
Attachments: 
None. 
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9B 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Accepting Mid-Year Review of FY19/20 Annual Operating Budget 
Board Action 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-04 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action: 

Approval of the Mid-Year Budget Adjustments for FY19/20.  

Analysis 
Staff has conducted a thorough analysis of year-to-date revenues and expenditures, and has made projections 
through year-end (June 30th).  These findings were reviewed and discussed by the SBWMA Finance Committee 
at its January 14th meeting.  At the request of the Finance Committee, Staff reviewed the investment income 
projections, but no change has been made.  The Finance Committee also requested the yardage gate rates be 
converted to tonnage gate rates.  Attachment D has been provided in response to this request.  Attachment A 
has been prepared to provide the Board with key budget and related information as follows: 

 Attachment A contains budget worksheets providing line item detail for all projected revenues,
expenditures and capital spending.

Net Income is projected at $5,087,253 which is $1,488,196 more than was projected in the Adopted FY19/20 
Budget (see Table 1).  

Revenues 

As shown in Table 1 and Table 2 below, there was a Total positive Revenue variance of $1,238,903 due to the 
following: 

Table 1

Total Revenue $55,137,230 $56,376,132 $1,238,903 2.2%
Total Expenditures $51,538,173 $51,288,879 (249,293) -0.5%

Net Income to Reserve $3,599,057 $5,087,253 $1,488,196 41.3%

FY19/20 NET INCOME

Categories

FY19/20 
Adopted 
Budget

FY19/20 
MidYear 

Projection

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget Variance %
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1. $1 million revenue increase from San Mateo County grant to support the Organics to Energy Pilot Project. 
 

2. A decrease in projected franchise volume of 2,706 (1%) results in $335,075 decrease in franchise 
revenue.  All major volumes are projected to be slightly lower than budgeted.  
 

3. Favorable public revenue of $496,804 mainly driven by projected increases in solid waste and public dirt 
tons. 

 
4. Favorable interest income of $380,480 vs. the adopted budget mainly due to projected interest earning on 

the 2019 Bond Project Fund balance. 
 

5. Net commodity revenue decrease of $303,726 driven by an unfavorable blended rate projection of $17.82 
per ton vs. the Adopted Budget ($97.59 vs $115.41 as budgeted).  The rate/ton decrease is due to lower 
container revenue from the closure of the Buyback Center, and lower paper and cardboard scrap value.  
The loss in container revenue from the closure of the Buyback Center is offset by the lower buyback 
payments to customers (see Table 3 below). 
 

a. Included in the $303K net commodity revenue decrease is a financial impact from an estimated 5 
day plant shutdown.  The MRF Phase 1 Equipment Improvements Contract (BOD Resolution 
#2019-54) stipulates a 5 day plant shutdown in March of 2020, which is projected to negatively 
impact commodity revenue by $130,000.  This impact is mostly offset by projected increase in 
total recycling tonnage (see the projected Volume Impact of $30,950 in Table 3 below) 

Table 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tip Fee Revenue $49,142,560 $49,304,289 $161,729 0%
Non Franchised     12,112,251     12,609,055          496,804 4%

Franchised     37,030,309     36,695,234         (335,075) -1%
Net Commodity Sales Revenue*       5,598,516       5,294,789         (303,726) -5%

Interest Income          376,994          757,835          380,840 101%
Grant Income       1,000,000        1,000,000 

Other Revenue            19,160            19,219                  60 0%
Total Revenue:     55,137,230     56,376,132        1,238,903 2%
*Gross commodity sales less 25% revenue share with SBR and buyback payments.

FY19/20 REVENUE

Revenue

FY19/20 
Adopted 
Budget

FY19/20 
MidYear 

Projection

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget Variance %
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Table 3 

Expenses 
Lower than budgeted Expenditures of $249,293 are primarily due to the following (see Table 4 and Table 5): 

1. SBR compensation is lower due to a $0.41M credit issued by SBR correcting prior years’ compensated
profit related to the VRS Program.  This decrease is partially offset by an increase in projected material
volume increasing SBR’s projected base compensation.  Additionally, the previously-mentioned MRF
plant closure is projected to increase operations expense by $50K.

2. Higher disposal and processing cost of $0.46 million mainly due to C&D volume increase of 4,726 tons
resulting in an increase of $336,237 in C&D processing cost.

3. The SBWMA Program expense is projected to be 1% lower than in the Adopted Budget.

4. Sewer expense will be $20K higher than the original projection.  Sewer expense is based on water usage.

5. Bond interest expense is expected to be $0.45M lower than the Adopted Budget.  Early bond refunding
models were used to project bond interest.  The actual refunding results netted significantly less interest
expense than predicted in the early refunding models.

COMMODITY REVENUE

FY19/20 
Adopted 
Budget

FY19/20       
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted 
Budget Variance %

Tons Sold 59,249      58,980  (268) -0.5%
Wtd Avg. Price 115.41$        97.59$    (17.83)$         -15.4%

Gross Revenue 6,838,073$         5,755,713$   (1,082,361)$       -15.8%
Revenue Share w/ SBR (395,652)$          (297,884)$    97,768$        -24.7%
Buyback Payments (843,906)   (163,039)$    680,867$            -80.7%

Net Commodity Revenue 5,598,516$         5,294,789$   (303,726)$          -5.4%

Price / Volume Impact Price Volume Total
Tonnage Change 115.41      (268) (30,950)$   
Price Change (17.83)$         58,980  (1,051,410)$       
Total Change (Gross) (1,082,361)$       

COMMODITY REVENUE
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Table 4 

 
 
Table 5 

 
 
Capital Spending 
Projected Capital Spend is projected to be $8,668,109, which is $2,128,137 more than the Adopted Budget (see 
Attachment A, Page 5).  The bulk of the increase is from MRF Phase 1 Improvements that have advanced quicker 
than previously anticipated and are projected to be $2.1M more than the adopted FY19/20 budget.  The adopted 
budget anticipated half of the $7.3M project spend in each of FY19/20 and FY20/21.  The Storm Water Treatment 
System was budgeted at $1.2M. The cost of this (possibly first phase) project was approved by the Board at the 
November BOD meeting (Resolution 2019-58) at a cost of $236,500, which is $963,500 less than the original 
budget designated to fund the full-scale project.  Replacement of optical sort software and hardware was 
approved by the Board in the amount of $770,500 (Resolution #2019-54), which is being funded from the 
Equipment Replacement Reserve (see Table 6, line 9).  Transfer Station Tip Floor maintenance was budgeted at 
$50,000 and the solid waste permit regulator (the Local Enforcement Agent, or LEA) has determined that 
immediate repairs are necessary. These repairs are projected to be $200,000.  Due to the recent failure of two 
critical Leachate pumps that operate in the Transfer Station’s big rig tunnel,  the Executive Director authorized 

Administrative Expense $2,432,820 $2,449,532 $16,712 1%
Member Agency Support & Contract 

Compliance $446,750  $         436,750 ($10,000) -2%

State Manadated Public Education & 
Outreach $939,500 $897,000 ($42,500) -5%

Total SBWMA Program Expense: $3,819,070 $3,783,282 ($35,788) -1%
Shoreway Operations: $47,719,103 $47,505,598            (213,505) 0%
Total Expenses: $51,538,173 $51,288,879            (249,293) 0%

Variance %

FY19/20 SBWMA PROGRAM EXPENDITURES

Expenditures

FY19/20 
Adopted 
Budget

FY19/20 
MidYear 

Projection

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget

SBR Compensation $20,941,990 $20,701,545            (240,445) -1%
Disposal and Processing        20,026,803        20,485,690              458,887 2%

Property Insurance             999,117             985,459              (13,658) -1%
Education Center               65,000               65,000                        -   0%

Credit Cards Charge             123,610             106,702              (16,908) -14%
Other Operating Expense             316,036             338,351                22,315 7%

Sewer Charge               70,278               90,426                20,148 29%
Fire Related Expense 0%

Total Shoreway Operations:  $   42,542,834  $   42,773,172  $         230,338 1%
Bond Interest Expense          2,836,101          2,384,556            (451,545) -16%

Franchise Fee (San Carlos)          2,340,169          2,347,870                  7,702 0%
Total Expense  $   47,719,103  $   47,505,598  $        (213,505) 0%

FY19/20 SHOREWAY OPERATIONS EXPENSE DETAIL

Expenditures

FY19/20 
Adopted 
Budget

FY19/20 
MidYear 

Projection

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget Variance %
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their immediate replacement, by utilizing the Agency’s Emergency Procurement Provisions per section 3.12.180 
of theAgency’s Purchasing Policy to prevent  site flooding during anticipated wet weather in the immediate future. 
These pumps have been added  $100,000 to this expense item.  MRF Tip Floor maintenance of $50,000 has 
been removed.   

On July 9, 2019 the Agency refunded its Series 2009A Bonds and issued $48.8M in outstanding par amount 
Series 2019 Bonds.  The 2019 Bond Issuance include a $20,000,000 in New Money to fund near term capital 
needs at the Shoreway Facility.  This budget projects that $7.0M of the $8.7M total projected capital spend 
will be funded from the $20M Bond Project Fund, reducing the committed bond reserve to $13.0M by the close 
of FY19/20 (see Table 6 below). 
Please see Attachment A for a worksheet on capital projects.   

Reserve Balances 
Table 6 below captures the Mid-Year reserve balance projections for FY19/20 compared to the Adopted Budget 
reserve balance. The projected Total Reserve unfavorable variance of $1.282M is primarily due the projected 
$2.128M increase in capital spend plus the favorable increase in net income of $1.488M (Table 1), less $0.642M 
in the projected FY18/19 reserve balance. 

Table 6 

Fiscal Impact 
The Mid-Year Budget for FY19/20 shows Net Income of $5.08 million which is $1.48 million higher than the 
Approved FY19/20 Budget.  

An additional potential fiscal impact could result from South Bay Recycling’s intent to evoke section 7.11(2) of the 
Operating Agreement for Shoreway Center requesting a compensation Adjustment For Special Circumstances 
based on their expenses exceeding 2% of those expected.  The amount of the potential fiscal impact is unknown 

UNCOMMITTED RESERVE:
RATE STABILIZATON (9% of expense) 4,764,699$     4,100,000$     4,636,694$    4,615,999$     (20,695)$     
EMERGENCY RESERVE (9% of expense) 4,764,699  4,454,754  4,636,694  4,615,999   (20,695)   

Sub-Emergency Reserve (Prop Ins Premium) 113,985   113,985   
CAPITAL RESERVE 5,598,894  4,886,222  7,810,492  8,875,602   1,065,110   
UNDESIGNATED RESERVE 1,479,798  -  

TOTAL UNCOMMITTED RESERVES 15,128,292$     14,920,774$     17,197,866$     18,221,586$     1,023,719$     
COMMITTED RESERVE 32,008,265$    

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT (ANNUAL) 1,192,148$     1,397,514$     1,008,014$    766,789$    (241,225)$     
BOND PROCEEDS 15,085,028$     13,019,891$     (2,065,137)$    

TOTAL RESERVES 16,320,440$     16,318,288$     33,290,908$     32,008,265$     (1,282,643)$    
proof -$  15,920,070

SHOREWAY REMEDIATION PROJECT 1,233,640$     1,233,640$     1,233,640$    1,233,640$     -$     

FY19/20 BUDGET: RESERVE BALANCES 

 Variance 

 MID-YEAR  
BUDGET   
FY19/20 

 ADOPTED  
BUDGET  
FY19/20 

 ACTUAL 
FY17/18 

 ACTUAL 
FY18/19 
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at this writing.  See South Bay Recycling’s preliminary notice of proposed adjustment for special circumstances in 
Attachment C. 
 

Attachments:   
Resolution 2020-XX 
Attachment A – FY19/20 Budget Worksheets 
Attachment B – Mid-Year Budget Tables 
Attachment C – SBR’s Facilities Operations Agreement preliminary notice of proposed adjustment for special 
circumstances 
Attachment D – Gate Rate Conversion – Yards to Tons 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-04    
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
ACCEPTING MID-YEAR REVIEW OF FY19/20 ANNUAL OPERATING BUDGET 

WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority proposed budget adjustments as presented 
provide sufficient funds for normal operations.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby approves 
the adjustments to the fiscal year 2019/2020 operating budget.   

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 30th day of January 2020, by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-04 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular 
meeting of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 

ATTEST: _________________________________ 
Jay Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA 

_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton Menlo Park 
Belmont Redwood City 
Burlingame San Carlos 
East Palo Alto San Mateo 
Foster City County of San Mateo 
Hillsborough West Bay Sanitary Dist. 
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Attachment A - FY19/20 Mid- Year Budget Revenues by Major Source

REVENUE SUMMARY
ACTUAL       
FY18/19

ADOPTED 
BUDGET       
FY19/20

YTD Earned 
11/30/2019

MID-YEAR 
BUDGET       
FY 19/20

Variance to 
Adopted Budget

Variance % 
to Adopted 

Budget Notes 

1 ADMINISTRATIVE REVENUE:
2 INVESTMENT INCOME 621,287$            376,994$            124,702$            757,835$            380,840$            101.0% Higher balance from bond project fund.

3 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE 621,287$           376,994$           124,702$           757,835$           380,840$           101.0%

4 OPERATIONS REVENUE:

5 SHOREWAY TIP FEES - Non Franchised 11,694,389$       12,112,251$       4,572,530$         12,609,055$       496,804$            4.1% Higher projected Solid Waste and C&D volume.

6 SHOREWAY TIP FEES - Franchised 34,710,487         37,030,309         14,961,971         36,695,234$       (335,075) -0.9% 1% lower volume than projected

7 COMMODITY SALES REVENUE 6,579,151           6,838,073           2,230,866           5,755,713           (1,082,361)          -15.8%
Revenue impacted by lower commodity price and closure 
of Buyback Center.

8 COMMODITY REVENUE SHARING W/ SBR (438,837) (395,652) - (297,884)$           97,768                -24.7%
9 BUY BACK CENTER  - Payment to Customers (894,670) (843,906) (163,039) (163,039) 680,867              -80.7% Projections assume Buyback Center remains closed

10 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 28,324                19,160                9,058 19,219                60 0.3% Mattress Recycling Revenue

11 SUBTOTAL OPERATIONS REVENUE 51,678,845$       54,760,235$       21,611,386$       54,618,298$       (141,938)$           -0.3%
22

12 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 51,678,845$     54,760,235$     21,611,386$     54,618,298$     (141,938)$        -0.3%

13 NON-OPERATING RECEIPTS
GRANT REVENUE 1,020,000$         1,000,000          O2E Project CalRecycle grant 2019.  County grant 2020.

14 TOTAL REVENUE 53,320,131$     55,137,230$     21,736,088$     56,376,132$     1,238,903$       2.2%

15 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 49,188,504$     51,538,173$     15,457,284$     51,288,879$     (249,293)$        -0.5%

16 NET OPERATING INCOME 4,131,627$       3,599,057$       6,278,803$       5,087,253$       1,488,196$       41.3% Bond covenants achieved

MidYear 2020 Budget v5  Revenues
1/20/2020

2:11 PM
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line EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
1 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2 ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF

3 MANDATED COMPLIANCE SUPPORT STAFF
4 BOARD COUNSEL
5 BOARD MEETINGS
6 ACCOUNTING SERVICES
7 INFORMATION SYSTEMS 
8 WEBSITE 
9 ANNUAL AUDIT
10 D&O INSURANCE 
11 BANK FEES

12 RENT
13 PRINTING AND POSTAGE
14 UTILITIES
15 OFFICE/TENANT IMPROVEMENTS
16 OFFICE SUPPLIES
17 OFFICE EQUIPMENT COSTS 
18 PUBLICATIONS & PUBLIC NOTICES
19 PROFESSIONAL DUES & MEMBERSHIPS
20 VEHICLE MILEAGE & TOLLS
21 CELL PHONES
22 CONFERENCE & MEETINGS
23 TRAINING
24 SPONSORSHIPS & DONATIONS

25 LEGISLATIVE & REGULATORY ADVOCACY
26 COMPUTER PURCHASE
27 TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE

28 MEMBER AGENCY SUPPORT & CONTRACT COMPLIANCE
29 RATE REVIEW
30 FACILITY IMPROVEMENT OVERSIGHT
31 CONTRACT ANNUAL AUDITING
32 COLLECTION SERVICES FRANCHISE ADMIN.
33 FINANCE ANALYSIS  SUPPORT
34 RECYCLING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 
35 WASTE CHARCTERIZATION SUPPORT
36 COLLECTION RFP CONSULTING SUPPORT
37 BATTERY MANAGEMENT PLANNING
38

ACTUAL       
FY18/19

ADOPTED 
BUDGET       
FY19/20

YTD SPEND 
11/30/2019

MID-YEAR 
BUDGET FY19/20

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget

Variance % 
to Adopted 

Budget Notes

644,440$           738,094$           242,975$            764,264$             26,170$             3.5% Refinement of the original budget projections (benefit elections and retirement expense)

767,238             1,010,341$        255,114$            983,683               (26,658)$            -2.6% Includes approved part-time Senior Facilities Engineer.  BOD Resolution #2019-56.  Open Fellow postions to start FY20
140,587             90,000$             64,689$              120,000               30,000$             33.3% Support for Executive Director/Agency.  More complex contracting & regulation support.

5,271 7,000$               357$  7,300 300$                  4.3% $4K for Holiday lunch, and $2K for refreshments at Board meetings, community room rental fee.  Extra study session & holida
150,500             170,059$           12,836$              144,759               (25,300)$            -14.9% New City of Redwood City agreement and one-time transition period expenses of approximately $50K
29,145               31,930$             15,176$              31,930 -$                  0.0% Three year contract to increase by CPI currently 3%
35,186               40,000$             40,592$              42,815 2,815$               7.0% Website maintenance ($10k); Overdue Website upgrade--outdated tech platform/improved design ($30k)
6,065 8,896$               5,175$                8,896 -$                  0.0% Fees paid to auditors to prepare FY & CY financial statements

48,470               48,470$             47,030$              48,354 (116)$                 -0.2% Annual insurance premium for director's and officer's insurance
16,219               6,271$               3,331$                6,271 -$                  0.0% Bank fees on checking account and fees paid to BNY as the Bond Trustee

56,102               58,000$             23,775$              62,550 4,550                 7.8%
Office rent from San Carlos with 3.5% increase every Jan.1.  Space at Chamber of Commerce.  Eliminated $800/month 
offsite storage on line 68

226 300$                  -$  - (300)$                 -100.0% Cost is covered in the Accounting Services Agreement
21,405               41,480$             6,889$                41,480 -$                  0.0% Includes phone and janitor services.  Office phone system upgrade; current is obsolete.
6,426 30,000$             28,211$              32,000 2,000$               6.7% Build out storage room to accommodate two workstations.  Additional office sound suppression 

12,724               19,360$             4,320$                19,360 -$                  0.0% Office supplies
10,106               11,300$             3,950$                11,300 -$                  0.0% Base copier lease is $600/month plus cost per copy

-$  -$  1,500 1,500$               #DIV/0! Busing Contract and Transfer Station re-surfacing RFPs
2,634 3,500$               1,122$                3,500 -$                  0.0% Memberships to trade and community organizations (CRRA, SWMA, NCRA, CCAC )
1,389 1,320$               387$  1,320 -$                  0.0% Reimbursement for business use of personal cars (non-auto allowance-eligible employees/fellows).
1,437 1,000$               295$  1,750 750$                  75.0% Cell phone business expense.  Expected increased participation by Management Team.

22,351               18,000$             5,491$                18,000 -$                  0.0% CRRA conference, progress seminar, SWANA meetings, lunch for SBWMA meetings, State of the City addresses
5,016 7,500$               3,929$                8,500$                 1,000$               13.3% Professional development opportunities. CCAC training, etc.  Retreat & additional management leadership class.

29,000               35,000$             7,450$                35,000 -$                  0.0% Industry Sponsorships: CAW,CRRA,SWANA, Acterra, Sustainable San Mateo, CPSC, NCRA

25,853               45,000$             13,333$              45,000 -$                  0.0%
Mandated agency priorities include these initiatives : Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR); Product Stewardship; Source 
Reduction Initiatives; Lithium-ion Battery safety

11,807               10,000$             3,000$                10,000 -$                  0.0% Adobe pro for 2 users, warranties for sonic wall and server computer, replacement PCs
2,049,595$        2,432,820$        789,426$            2,449,532$          16,711$             0.7%

24,918$             31,520$             2,820$                31,520$               -$                  0.0% Office temp support, Consultant Rate Application Support.  Buyback Center consulting/review of options
75,000$             35,188                75,000 -$                  0.0% Engineering and construction management support 

49,820$             51,030$             - 51,030 -$                  0.0% Annual Financial & Systems Audit of RSMC and SBR by R3 ($51k). 
50,315               50,000$             - 50,000 -$                  0.0% FA compliance $40k; Amendment #1 support (BIC/AW/ storm water) $50k
92,409               19,200$             11,612                19,200 -$                  0.0% On-Call consultant support as needed.  
11,843               90,000$             33,127                90,000 -$                  0.0% Diversion consultant support; AB1383 planning

60,000$             - 50,000 (10,000)$            -16.7% Waste characterization studies to support OREX Pilot Project
100,903             30,000$             - 30,000 -$                  0.0% Franchise Agreement technical consulting.  Service Level Adjustment calculations, etc. 
36,114               40,000$             - 40,000 -$                  0.0% Consulting support for best-practices studying & recommend changes to collection programs

#DIV/0!

MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Expenses  - Pages 1 of 3
1/20/2020

2:11 PM
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line EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
39 TOTAL MA SUPPORT & CONTRACT COMPLIANCE

40 STATE MANDATED PUBLIC EDUCATION & OUTREACH

41 STATE'S REQUIRED ANNUAL REPORTS
42 SBWMA ANNUAL REPORT
43 DIVERSION PROGRAM SUPPORT
44 EVENT GIVEAWAYS
45 LONG RANGE PLAN
46 DIVERSION; COMPLIANCE; ZERO LANDFILL PROGRAMS
47 IN-SCHOOL ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATION
48 LARGE EVENT & VENUE SUPPORT
49 CLIMATE ACTION PLANNING

50 RECYCLING TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
51 COMMERCIAL/MFD CONTAINERS
52 MULTI-FAMILY OUTREACH
53 MEMBER AGENCY & RATE PAYER EDUCATION
54 RESIDENTIAL OUTREACH PROGRAMS
55 COMMUNITY EVENTS
56 HHW PROGRAM OUTREACH
57 CURBSIDE HOUSEHOLD BATTERY OUTREACH

58 SHRED EVENT SERVICE 
59 TOTAL STATE MANDATED PUBLIC EDUCATION & OUTREACH
60 TOTAL SBWMA PROGRAM BUDGET

61 SHOREWAY OPERATIONS
62 OPERATING CONTRACT - SBR OPERATIONS 
63 DISPOSAL
64 INSURANCE SHOREWAY
65 SHOREWAY FACILITY COST 
66 CREDIT CARDS CHARGES
67 SHOREWAY CHARGES
68 EDUCATION CENTER OPERATIONS
69 MAINTENANCE - OX MTN TIPPER 
70 SHOREWAY MRF EQUIP. MAINTENANCE > $10k
71 SEWER FEES (PROPERTY TAX)
72 E-RECYCLING
73 SUB SHOREWAY OPERATIONS COST

74 TOTAL SHOREWAY OPERATION

ACTUAL        
FY18/19

ADOPTED 
BUDGET       
FY19/20

YTD SPEND 
11/30/2019

MID-YEAR 
BUDGET FY19/20

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget

Variance % 
to Adopted 

Budget Notes
366,321$           446,750$           82,746$              436,750$             (10,000)$            -2.2%

26,864$             32,000$             28,311$              32,000$               -$                  0.0%
Annual AB 939 EAR submittal for 10-MAs. +$2K for possible Cal Recycle Reporting/Commodities (T+M only).                
Note: no consultant rate adjustment from 1999-2016.

1,962                 2,500$               82                       2,500                   -                    0.0% Creation of annual report
4,392                 90,000$             -                      90,000                 -                    0.0% Tech Data Capture Systems ($50k); Public spaces recycling assistance ($30k); Diversion program support ($10k) 
4,753                 7,500$               4,158                  7,500                   -                    0.0%

-$                   -$                    -                       -                    #DIV/0!
241,450             105,000$           30,129                90,000                 (15,000)              -14.3% Zero Waste initiatives-tech support ($55k); Compost events ($50k)

65,000$             7,814                  45,000                 (20,000)              -30.8% Materials ($6K), storage/transport ($12K), recognition ($5K), staff/tech support ($40K).  Previously budgeted on line 46.
11,704               -$                   -                      -                       -                    #DIV/0!

16,051               25,000$             -                      25,000                 -                    0.0% Annual climate register & Member Agency support.

1,324                 85,000$             -                      85,000                 -                    0.0%
AB 1826 & AB 341 Compliance ($10k); SB 1383  compliance and planning ($35k);  Promote reusables for businesses  
($25k); Recycling Technical Assistance ($15k)

44,529               35,000$             -                      35,000                 -                    0.0% MFD recycle bags, internal containers, MA containers per Franchise Agreements
20,368               90,000$             15,852                90,000                 -                    0.0% Compliance with state laws; MFD Toolkit and other outreach; battery bucket supplies
63,020               110,000$           43,463                110,000               -                    0.0% Biannual newsletters to Member Agency residents. 
60,442               90,000$             25,771                90,000                 -                    0.0% Outreach per FA, Annual Service Notice FA
22,630               52,500$             9,110                  45,000                 (7,500)                -14.3% Earth Day ($15K), Rethink Recycling Day ($10K), Fixit Clinics ($25K), other workshops ($2.5K)

30,000$             -                      30,000                 -                    0.0% Annual promotion of local HHW disposal options for all ratepayers
84,463               90,000$             15                       90,000                 -                    0.0% Educate customers about risk of battery fires and proper disposal options

(2,882)                30,000$             10,937                30,000                 -                    0.0%
Shred, e-waste, and compost events for Member Agencies (coordination, support, outreach, etc.)  RFP for Shredding 
Services

601,071$           939,500$           175,643$            897,000$             (42,500)$            -4.5%
3,016,987$        3,819,070$        1,047,814$         3,783,282$          (35,789)$            -0.9%

21,029,629$      20,941,990$      5,200,319$         20,701,545$        (240,445)            -1.1% Mid-Year includes one time $410K credit from SBR from prior years, offset by increased volume projections.
18,817,076        20,026,803$      6,360,234           20,485,690          458,887             2.3% Increased volume projections from public customers.

884,827             999,117$           956,241              985,459               (13,658)              -1.4% Property insurance premium. Large increase in 2018 due to 2016 fire loss.
205,145             200,000$           18,419                200,000               -                    0.0% Budget for unanticipated routine Shoreway maintenance items that are non-CapEx
77,968               123,610$           22,925                106,702               (16,908)              -13.7% SBR pass through their credit card fees from their bank from public customers.
26,690               26,690$             7,273                  26,690                 -                    0.0% Amortization of additional trailer cost added in 2015.
61,616               65,000$             6,670                  65,000                 -                    0.0% Tours program equipment, school bus services, poster and art contests.  Eliminate offsite Storage.

20,000$             -                      -                       (20,000)              -100.0% Maintenance expense for truck tipper located at Ox Mtn and owned by JPA.  Equipment has been scrapped
126,956             50,000$             -                      50,000                 -                    0.0% Unanticipated MRF equipment maintenance (non-CapEx) expense 
70,623               70,278$             46,512                90,426                 20,148               28.7% Actual sewer charge from City of San Carlos on tax bill based on prior year water usage
30,364               19,346               25,692                61,661                 42,315               E-waste market has shifted from a revenue source to expense.  Previously budgeted as revenue

41,330,894$      42,542,834$      12,644,284$       42,773,172$        230,338$           0.5%

41,330,894$    42,542,834$    12,644,284$     42,773,172$      230,338$         0.5%

MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Expenses  - Pages 2 of 3
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line EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
75 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
76 NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
77 LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY
78 DEBT SERVICE BOND INTEREST
79 FRANCHISE FEE TO CITY OF SAN CARLOS
80 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSES

81 TOTAL SHOREWAY OPERATING EXPENSES

82
TOTAL EXPENSES (SBWMA 
Program + All Shoreway Operations)

ACTUAL       
FY18/19

ADOPTED 
BUDGET       
FY19/20

YTD SPEND 
11/30/2019

MID-YEAR 
BUDGET FY19/20

Variance to 
Adopted 
Budget

Variance % 
to Adopted 

Budget Notes
44,347,881$      46,361,903$      13,692,098$       46,556,454$        194,549$           0.4%

2,633,833$        2,836,101$        982,274$            2,384,556$          (451,545)            -15.9% Budgeted interest expense based on early bond refunding projections
2,206,790          2,340,169          782,912              2,347,870            7,702                 0.3% 5% Franchise Fees paid by JPA  to the City of San Carlos on tip fee revenue.

4,840,623$      5,176,269$      1,765,186$       4,732,426$        (443,844)$       -8.6%

46,171,517$    47,719,103$    14,409,470$     47,505,598$      (213,505)$       -0.4%

49,188,504$    51,538,173$    15,457,284$     51,288,879$      (249,294)$       -0.5%

MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Expenses  - Pages 3 of 3
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FY19/20 BUDGET

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE BUDGET Year 1 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Description

 Approved 
Budget 

 Mid-Year    
Update 

 Proposed 
Budget 

 Proposed 
Budget 

 Proposed 
Budget 

 Proposed 
Budget 

Capital Project Name FY19/20 FY19/20 FY20/21 FY21/22 FY22/23 FY22/23

1 Site paving repairs and restriping2 45,000              45,000                 1,500,000           Repaving of collection fleet parking area. Planned after fuel tank removal project.
2 Truck shop building maintenance 25,000              25,000                 25,000                25,000                25,000                25,000               Place holder for unanticipated capital needs.
3 TS building and tip floor 50,000              200,000               300,000              50,000                50,000                50,000               Tip floor resurfacing needs to be completed
4 MRF building and tip floor 50,000              - 50,000                50,000                100,000              50,000               Not anticipating this work
5 Admin building maintenance 40,000              40,000                 40,000                40,000                40,000                40,000               Place holder for unanticipated capital needs.
6 Site maintenance 50,000              50,000                 50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000               Place holder for unanticipated capital needs.
7 Leachate Pumps - 100,000               Failing bunker pumps
8 Replace Optical Sorter Software & Hardware - 841,500               Equipment (without sales tax) approved by Board (Reso #44).  Funded by Equipment Replace Reserve

9 Fire suppression 100,000            100,000               100,000              100,000              100,000              
 Place holder for unanticipated capital needs. The agency has an interest in implementing new fire 
prevention technologies but does not have a specific project planned. 

10 Repairs to landfill tipper 15,000              - - - - - Place holder for unanticipated capital needs.

11 Storm Water Treatment System 1,200,000         236,500               50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000               
 Compliance new SW regulations require treatment of site storm water prior to release.  Board Resolution 
# 2019-58 approved expenditure of $236,500. 

12 Glass Conveyance & Loadout System
13 Enhancements to Public Recycling Center 50,000              50,000                 - - - - Need to remove from final FY 19/20 budget.  Project budgeted and completed in FY 18/19
14 Shredding to Public Recycling Center 100,000              Agency has interest in providing confidential document shredding services as benefit to residents. 
17 CIP Projects (See detail) 4,914,972         6,980,109            10,025,000        13,125,000         2,500,000           -
18 6,539,972         8,668,109            10,740,000        13,490,000         4,415,000           265,000             

19 FUNDING SOURCE
20 Bond Proceeds ($20M) 4,914,972         6,980,109            5,025,000          7,994,891           - -
21 Capital Reserve 1,625,000         1,688,000            5,715,000          5,495,109           4,415,000           265,000             
22 6,539,972         8,668,109            10,740,000        13,490,000         4,415,000           265,000             

(2,128,137)

23 CIP Project Detail Year 1 Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5

24 Organics 2 Energy Pilot 1,250,000         1,250,000            Project approved by BOD. Anticipated start date 1/2020.
25 Phase I MRF Upgrades 3,664,972         5,730,109            900,000              BOD Approval resolution numbers 2019-45 and 2019-54
26 Phase II MRF Upgrades 4,125,000          4,125,000           Project to be designed after assessment of Phase I improvements and market conditions
27 Organics 2 Energy Full Project 5,000,000          5,000,000           Project to be designed after assessment of Pilot O2E and market conditions
28 Underground Storage Tank Removal 1,500,000           Existing UST tanks are single wall and need to be removed using Remediation Reserve.
29 New Fueling System Project 2,500,000           System design pending replacement collection fleet fuel decision.  
30 New Biogas Fueling System 2,500,000           Same as above. Tied to O2E and planned GHG reduction goals. 
31 4,914,972         6,980,109            10,025,000        13,125,000         2,500,000           - 

Line

Total CIP Project Detail

Total Funding Source

Total Budget for Capital Projects

MidYear 2020 Budget v5 CAPITAL
1/20/2020
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MY19/20 BUDGET
Attachment B - MY19/20 Budget Support Files: REVENUE, EXPENSE DETAIL
Update: Dec 2019
Summary Tables

Table B.1

FY19/20 
Adopted Budget

FY19/20       
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

Franchise Revenue
Tons 298,681 295,975 (2,706)               -0.9%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 123.98$             123.98$             0.00 0.0%
Franchise Revenue 37,030,309$      36,695,234$      (335,075)$          -0.9%

Public Revenue
Cu/Yards 207,466 214,237 6,771                3.3%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 42.88$               42.85$               (0.03)                 -0.1%
Public Revenue Cu/YDS 8,896,073$        9,180,186$        284,113$           3.2%

Tons ( 3rd party - mostly Recology) 18,194 18,311 117 0.6%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 127.07$             127.26$             0.20 0.2%
Public Revenue Tons 2,311,880$        2,330,380$        18,500$             0.8%

Public Dirt Tons 8,221 9,986 1,765                21.5%
Wtd Avg.Tip Fee 110.00$             110.00$             - 0.0%
Sub Total 904,297$           1,098,489$        194,191$           21.5%

Public Revenue Total 12,112,251$      12,609,055$      496,804$           4.1%
Total Tip Fee Revenue 49,142,560$      49,304,289$      161,729$           0.3%

TIP FEE REVENUE

Attachment B
MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Page 1 of 5
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MY19/20 BUDGET
Table B.2

COMMODITY REVENUE
FY19/20 

Adopted Budget

FY19/20        
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

Tons Sold 59,249               58,980               (268)                   -0.5%
Wtd Avg. Price 115.41$             97.59$               (17.83)$              -15.4%

Gross Revenue 6,838,073$        5,755,713$        (1,082,361)$       -15.8%
Revenue Share w/ SBR (395,652)$          (297,884)$          97,768$             -24.7%
Buyback Payments (843,906)$          (163,039)$          680,867$           -80.7%

Net Commodity Revenue 5,598,516$        5,294,789$        (303,726)$          -5.4%

COMMODITY REVENUE

Attachment B
MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Page 2 of 5
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MY19/20 BUDGET
Table B.3

A. Summary
FY19/20 

Adopted Budget

FY19/20       
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

MRF 7,613,837$        7,178,224$        (435,613)$          -5.7%
Transfer Station 5,189,041         5,265,748         76,707$             1.5%
Transportation 8,098,228         8,216,689         118,461$           1.5%
Interest 40,885              40,885              -$  0.0%

TOTAL SBR EXPENSE 20,941,990$      20,701,545$      (240,445)$          -1.1%

B. SBR Expense Detail
FY19/20 

Adopted Budget

FY19/20       
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

MRF
Tons, Inbound 72,150              71,790              (359) -0.5%
Tons, residue (12,901)             (12,810)             91 -0.7%
Tons, net sold 59,249              58,980              (268) -0.5%
Wtd Avg.Rate * 120.02$             113.84$             (6.18)$                -5.1%
Expense 7,110,815$        6,714,273$        (396,542)$          -5.6%

MRF Additional Sorters 503,022$           463,951$           (39,071)$            -7.8%
Transfer Station

Tons 390,532            396,030            5,498                1.4%
Wtd Avg.Rate 13.29$               13.30$               0.01$                 0.1%
Expense 5,189,041$        5,265,748$        76,707$             1.5%

Transportation
Tons 390,532            396,030            5,498                1.4%
Wtd. Avg. Rate 20.74$               20.75$               0.01$                 0.1%
Expense 8,098,228$        8,216,689$        118,461$           1.5%

Interest 40,885$             40,885$             -$  0.0%

TOTAL SBR "PAID" TONS 840,312             851,040             10,728               1.3%
TOTAL SBR EXPENSE 20,941,990$      20,701,545$      (240,445)$          -1.1%

* Wtd Avg reduction due to credit issued by SBR correcting prior years compensated profit related to VRS Program

SBR OPERATING EXPENSE

Attachment B
MidYear 2020 Budget v5 Page 3 of 5
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MY19/20 BUDGET

Table B.4

FY19/20 
Adopted Budget

FY19/20        
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

A. Summary
Solid Waste  $      10,511,836  $      10,609,691  $            97,855 0.9%
Organics  $        6,280,246  $        6,292,011  $            11,765 0.2%
C&D, dirt  $        3,282,825  $        3,619,062  $           336,237 10.2%
Other  $           443,263  $           453,021  $              9,758 2.2%
Subtotal  $      20,518,170  $      20,973,785  $           455,615 2.2%
Paid by SBR on MRF residue  $         (491,368)  $         (488,096)  $              3,272 -0.7%

TOTAL DISPOSAL EXPENSE  $      20,026,803  $      20,485,690  $           458,887 2.3%

B. Detail
Solid Waste (Ox Mtn.)

Tons, net 220,793             222,760             1,967                 0.9%
Wtd Avg.Rate 47.61$               47.63$               0.02$                 0.0%
Expense 10,511,836$      10,609,691$      97,855               0.9%

Organics (Newby, Grover)
Tons, net 123,864             122,669             (1,195)                -1.0%
Wtd Avg.Rate 50.70$               51.29$               0.59$                 1.2%
Expense 6,280,246$        6,292,011$        11,765               0.2%

C&D (Zanker)
Tons, net 45,874               50,601               4,726                 10.3%
Wtd Avg.Rate 71.56$               71.52$               (0.04)$                -0.1%
Expense 3,282,825$        3,619,062$        336,237             10.2%

Other
Tires 4,022$               5,380$               1,358$               33.8%
Appliances 40,240$             41,120$             880$                  2.2%
Hazardous Waste 389,714$           397,788$           8,075$               2.1%
Sharps, Misc. 9,287$               8,733$               (555)$                 -6.0%

Expense 443,263$           453,021$           9,758$               2.2%
Summary

TS Tons 390,532             396,030             5,498                 1.4%
Wtd Avg.Rate 51.28$               51.73$               0.45$                 0.9%

Disposal Expense 20,026,803$      20,485,690$      458,887$           2.3%

DISPOSAL & PROCESSING EXPENSE
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MY19/20 BUDGET
Table B.4a (subset of Disposal Expense - Organics, only, Detail)

FY19/20 
Adopted Budget

FY19/20       
Mid-Year 
Budget

Mid-Year vs. 
Adopted Budget Variance %

Organics (Newby)
Tons, net 49,812              52,178              2,366                4.8%
Wtd Avg.Rate 68.45$               68.45$               0.00$                 0.0%
Expense 3,409,645$        3,571,690$        162,046            4.8%

Organics (Grover)
Tons, net 74,053              70,491              (3,562)               -4.8%
Wtd Avg.Rate 38.76$               38.59$               (0.17)$                -0.4%
Expense 2,870,602$        2,720,321$        (150,281)           -5.2%

Total Organics
Tons, net 123,864            122,669            (1,195)               -1.0%
Wtd Avg.Rate 50.70$               51.29$               0.59$                 1.2%
Total Organics Expense 6,280,246$        6,292,011$        11,765               0.2%

ORGANICS PROCESSING EXPENSE DETAIL

Attachment B
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1/20/2020
2:01 PM

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT B - p5

FULL PACKET PAGE 139 of 265



_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT C - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 140 of 265



MY 19/20 BUDGET

Low   
Range

High 
Range

Franchise 
Tonage 

Rate

Solid Waste 132$       352$       121$       
Gate Rate (Yards) 44$         44$         
Yards/Ton Conversion Rate (Yard per Ton) 3.0 8.0 - 

Green Waste 140$       270$       126$       
Gate Rate (Yards) 35$         35$         
Yards/Ton Conversion Rate (Yard per Ton) 4.0 7.7 - 

C&D 176$       308$       121$       
Gate Rate (Yards) 44$         44$         
Yards/Ton Conversion Rate (Yard per Ton) 4.0 7.0 

GATE RATE CONVERSION (YARDS to TONS) *

* Data for high and low ranges from three sources (US EPA April 2016 Volume-to-Weight Report, SBWMA 2018 
Self-Haul Material Bulk Density Test and South Bay Recyling's MASS Balance Reports.

Attachment D
1/17/2020

2:57 PM_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 9B ATTACHMENT D - p1

FULL PACKET PAGE 141 of 265



FULL PACKET PAGE 142 of 265



11 

SHOREWAY 
OPERATIONS AND 

CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT 

Agenda Item 11 

FULL PACKET PAGE 143 of 265



FULL PACKET PAGE 144 of 265



________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020  AGENDA ITEM 11A - p1 

11A 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Jo LaMariana, Executive Director 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Review Analysis of CRV Redemption Alternatives 

Recommendation: 
This report is for discussion purposes only and no formal action is requested of the Board of Directors at this time. 
The Board may choose to provide direction to staff and may choose to place items for potential action regarding 
CRV redemption centers at a future Board meeting.  
Summary 
The California Redemption Value (CRV) program, along with curbside recycling, has led to increased recycling 
rates in California and has helped recycling centers throughout the State prosper until recently, when the change 
in recyclables markets and declining scrap value forced many centers to close. In response to these 
circumstances, on August 9, 2019 the SBWMA ceased redemption activities for California Redemption Value 
(CRV) beverage containers at the Shoreway Environmental Center (Shoreway) due to a large increase in traffic 
following the widespread closures of other local CRV redemption centers in San Mateo County and throughout the 
State in early August.  
The large increase in traffic to the Shoreway CRV redemption center resulted in long vehicle traffic lines in public 
traffic lanes on Shoreway Road which caused unsafe traffic conditions, long wait times for franchised and public 
access to the transfer station and material recovery facility, and barriers to safe vehicle access to neighboring 
businesses on Shoreway Road. A comparison was done to determine the increase in customer volume at the 
buyback center during the two weeks after RePlanet closed. The CRV redemption center experienced a 49% 
increase in customers and a 79% increase in transactions with respect to the same two-week period in August 
2018. The average number of vehicles per hour also increased by 49%. These numbers reflect the large traffic 
surge that led to the decision to close the Shoreway CRV redemption center.  
R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3) was engaged by SBWMA to provide an analysis of alternatives for redemption of 
CRV beverage containers for the SBWMA service area. This report was presented and discussed at the SBWMA 
Finance Committee  on January 14th, 2020. 
In the attached Report, R3 finds that: 

 SBWMA is Not Obligated to Provide CRV Redemption at the Shoreway or Elsewhere
Access to CRV redemption is the responsibility of the State and vendors of CRV beverage 
containers, not the SBWMA. The State and CRV beverage container stakeholders continue to work 
towards Statewide solutions to the underlying conditions that led to widespread closure of CRV 
redemption centers. Depending on the outcomes of legislative solutions, future CRV redemption 
programs may or may not resemble the State’s current CRV program, making any additional 
investment reliant on the current program risky. 
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 Access to CRV Redemption in the SBWMA Service Area Still Exists 

While many CRV redemption centers in the SBWMA service area have closed, over 20 CRV 
redemption locations in the SBWMA service area continue to accept CRV for redemption. See 
Attachments 1 and 2 to the R3 Report for a specific listing.  
 

 Closure of the Shoreway CRV Redemption Center will Not Affect SBWMA’s Diversion Rate 
Historically, CRV beverage containers redeemed at the Shoreway account for less than 1% of total 
materials recycled in the SBWMA service area. Should the SBWMA not re-open the Shoreway CRV 
redemption center, it is expected that vast majority of CRV beverage containers would continue to be 
recycled either via one of the remaining CRV redemption locations noted above, or via existing 
curbside recyclables collection programs.  
 

 There Are No Cost-Effective Feasible Alternatives to Re-Open CRV Redemption at Shoreway 
SBWMA historically provided access to CRV redemption as a convenience without impacting its core 
operational objectives. Continuing to provide CRV redemption at the Shoreway under any scenario 
will require greater levels of funding without any guarantee that ongoing traffic concerns and other 
operational impacts would be mitigated. Additionally, because the exact nature of future changes to 
the State’s CRV redemption program are unknown at this time, there is a risk that any near-term 
investment by SBWMA in continuing to provide CRV redemption at the Shoreway would not be 
compatible with future State programs. 
 

 SBWMA Member Agencies Can Apply for State Grant Funding for New Mobile, Event, or 
Permanent CRV Sites 

The State has a new $5 Million grant program with limited funding available to cities and counties to 
implement new CRV redemption programs. Funding may be used to fund CRV redemption events, 
mobile CRV redemption operations, or other CRV redemption pilot programs. Funding is only 
available to local jurisdictions; as a Joint Powers Authority the SBWMA is not eligible to apply. See 
Attachment 3 of the R3 Report and visit 
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/bevcontainer/grants/bevcontainer/rpp for more details. 
 

R3 also evaluated alternatives to re-opening the CRV redemption center (see Section 3 of the R3 Report) as 
previously identified by the Board and SBWMA staff, including those listing below.  
 

 Operating a CRV Redemption Center Offsite from the Shoreway or Operate Multiple Dispersed 
Sites 

o R3 found this to be a feasible alternative, if pursued in conjunction with the State’s CRV grant 
program, referenced above.  
 

 Limiting the Time the CRV Redemption Center is Open 
o R3 found this alternative to be infeasible, both because CRV regulations require redemption 

centers to be open for 30 hours per week, and because traffic impacts would likely worsen during 
peak times.  
 

 Locate a CRV Redemption Center in a Different Location at Shoreway or Re-route Traffic 
o R3 found this alternative to be infeasible, as there are no immediately apparent options for such 

rerouting that would not require significant capital investment, which is not advised given the 
uncertain future of the State’s CRV program.  
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 Operate the CRV Redemption Center by Appointment
o R3 found this alternative to be infeasible because CRV regulations do not allow for CRV

redemption by appointment.

 Reopen the CRV Redemption Center Temporarily to Determine Whether Customer Volumes Might
Recover to Pre-RePlanet Closure Levels

o R3 found this alternative to be infeasible if not accompanied by improvements to mitigate traffic
impacts, which would be costly and risky. While Shoreway operator South Bay Reycling (SBR)
could re-apply for CRV redemption center certification, re-certifying will take a minimum of 90
days. Subsequent re-closure after re-certification could potentially affect future efforts for CRV
certification.

 Hold Events to Collect CRV
o R3 found this alternative to be feasible, especially if pursued in conjunction with the State’s CRV

grant program, referenced above.

 Advocate for a Statewide Solutions
o R3 recommends that SBWMA continue advocacy for Statewide solutions to improve access to

CRV redemption opportunities for residents and businesses in the SBWMA service area.

In R3’s assessment, the best alternative for near-term solutions to for CRV redemption in San Mateo County 
would be via application to a State’s new pilot grant program administered by CalRecycle. While this would only 
provide a temporary solution, an SBWMA member agency should consider applying for grant funds if there is a 
desire to supplement existing CRV redemption locations with mobile or event-based CRV redemption 
opportunities in the SBWMA service area.  

Fiscal Impact 
No Board action is requested at this time, and no there are no immediate and pressing financial implications 
requiring the immediate action of the SBWMA. However, continued closure of CRV redemption activities at the 
Shoreway reduces SBR’s ability to meet its the annual revenue guarantee to the SBWMA, and therefore its ability 
to share in revenues in excess of the guarantee.  
Future Board action approving long-term closure of CRV redemption activities until a broader State solution has 
been identified would result in reduced scrap revenues of approximately $3,500 annually, and reduced labor 
expenses of approximately $61,600 annually (resulting from a potential reduction in labor rates).  
Future Board actions directing near-term re-opening of the CRV redemption activities at the Shoreway are 
estimated to cost approximately $912,000 to $1,162,000 annually, and with no guarantee of mitigated traffic 
impacts on Shoreway Road. Associated scrap revenues from the sale of redeemed CRV material could increase, 
but with current scrap revenues of $3,500 any increases in scrap revenues are anticipated to be insignifant. 

Attachments: 

Attachment A - R3 Report: Analysis of CRV Redemption Alternatives 
Attachment B – R3 PowerPoint Presentation CRV Redemption Analysis 
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Northern California Office 
1512 Eureka Road, Suite 220, Roseville, CA 95661 

Tel: 916-782-7821  |  Fax: 916-782-7824 

San Francisco Bay Area Office 
2600 Tenth Street, Suite 424, Berkeley, CA 94710 

Tel: 510-647-9674 

January 17, 2020 

Mr. Joe La Mariana 
SBWMA Executive Director 
610 Elm St., Suite 202 
San Carlos, CA 94070 

Subject:  Analysis of CRV Redemption Alternatives 

Dear Mr. La Mariana: 

In August 2019, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) ceased redemption activities 
for California Redemption Value (CRV) beverage containers at the Shoreway Environmental Center 
(Shoreway) due to a large increase in traffic following the widespread closures of other local CRV 
redemption centers in San Mateo County and throughout the State. The large increase in traffic to the 
Shoreway CRV redemption center resulted in long vehicle traffic lines in public traffic lanes on Shoreway 
Road which caused unsafe traffic conditions, long wait times for franchised and public access to the 
transfer station and material recovery facility, and barriers to safe vehicle access to neighboring 
businesses on Shoreway Road. R3 Consulting Group, Inc. (R3)1 was engaged by SBWMA to provide an 
analysis of alternatives for redemption of CRV beverage containers for the SBWMA service area. In 
conducting our analysis, R3 considered:  
 Underlying financial realities pertaining to the State’s CRV redemption program, including new

State grant opportunities available to cities and counties to fund CRV redemption pilot programs;
 SBWMA’s roles and responsibilities for providing access to CRV redemption, versus those of the

State and others;
 Alternatives that SBWMA may consider with respect to ongoing ability for its residents and

businesses to participate in CRV redemption; and
 Financial impacts of potential SBWMA decisions regarding CRV redemption alternatives.

As a result of our research and analysis on this matter, R3 found that: 

SBWMA is Not Obligated to Provide CRV Redemption at the Shoreway Facility or Elsewhere 

Access to CRV redemption is the responsibility of the State and vendors of CRV beverage containers, not 
the SBWMA. The State and CRV beverage container stakeholders continue to work towards Statewide 
solutions to the underlying conditions that led to widespread closure of CRV redemption centers. 
Depending on the outcomes of legislative solutions, future CRV redemption programs may or may not 
resemble the State’s current CRV program, making any additional investment reliant on the current 
program risky. 

Access to CRV Redemption in the SBWMA Service Area Still Exists 

While many CRV redemption centers in the SBWMA service area have closed, over 20 CRV redemption 
locations in the SBWMA service area continue to accept CRV for redemption. See Attachments 1 and 2.  

1  In partnership with Debra Kaufman Consulting, jointly referred to as R3 in this report. 
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Closure of the Shoreway CRV Redemption Center will Not Affect SBWMA’s Diversion Rate 

Historically, CRV beverage containers redeemed at the Shoreway account for less than 1% of total 
materials recycled in the SBWMA service area. Should the SBWMA elect to not re-open the Shoreway CRV 
redemption center, it is expected that the vast majority of CRV beverage containers would continue to be 
recycled either via one of the remaining CRV redemption locations noted above, or via existing curbside 
recyclables collection programs.  

There Are No Cost-Effective Feasible Alternatives to Re-Open CRV Redemption at Shoreway 

SBWMA historically provided access to CRV redemption as a convenience without impacting its core 
operational objectives. Continuing to provide CRV redemption at the Shoreway Facility under any scenario 
will require greater levels of funding without any guarantee that ongoing traffic concerns and other 
operational impacts would be mitigated. Additionally, because the exact nature of future changes to the 
State’s CRV redemption program are unknown at this time, there is a risk that any near-term investment 
by SBWMA in continuing to provide CRV redemption at the Shoreway Facility would not be compatible 
with future State programs. 

R3 evaluated alternatives to re-opening the CRV redemption center (see Section 3 of this report). In 
summary, alternatives that would entail re-opening of the CRV redemption center at the Shoreway Facility 
either on a limited term test basis, with limited hours, or by appointment only are all infeasible because 
they are either not allowed by the State or because they would exacerbate the traffic conditions that led 
to the initial closure. Alternatives that would entail relocating the CRV redemption center to other areas 
of the Shoreway site could be considered in the future but are not advised until there is clarity regarding 
what future Statewide solutions to CRV redemption will be. Solutions that would entail mobile, off-site, 
or event based CRV collection may hold promise, but would best be undertaken in association with the 
State’s new CRV grant program, described below. 

Member Agencies Can Apply for State Grant Funding for New Mobile, Event, or Permanent CRV Sites 

The State has a new grant program with limited funding available to cities and counties to implement new 
CRV redemption programs. Funding may be used to fund CRV redemption events, mobile CRV redemption 
operations, or other CRV redemption programs. Funding is only available to local jurisdictions. As a Joint 
Powers Authority, the SBWMA is not eligible to apply. See Attachment 3 and visit 
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/bevcontainer/grants/bevcontainer/rpp for more details.  

* *   *   *   *   *   * * 

R3 appreciates the opportunity to be of service to the SBWMA. Should you have any questions or need 
additional information, please contact me by phone at (510) 292-0853 or by email at gschultz@r3cgi.com. 

Sincerely, 

R3 CONSULTING GROUP 

Garth Schultz | Principal 
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Section 1  Background on the Bottle Bill and CRV 
Redemption in CA and SBWMA 

The Bottle Bill 
In 1986, California adopted the Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act (Bottle Bill), which 
placed a 5 and 10 cent redemption value (depending on size) on beverage containers sold by retailers 
throughout the State. This created a network of CRV redemption centers to recycle these containers, 
returning redemption fees to consumers.  

California’s Bottle Bill created a system of “convenience zones”, areas within a one-half mile radius around 
supermarkets that have at least $2 million in sales annually. These convenience zones are required to 
have at least one certified recycling center in each zone, unless it has applied for and received an 
exemption from CalRecycle.  If this requirement is not met, then the retailer selling beverages (in a zone 
not deemed exempt) must either redeem containers in the store, make a daily payment to the State, or 
risk enforcement. Most recently, in December 2019, CalRecycle announced it was pursuing fines against 
CVS for $3.6 Million, accusing 81 of their 848 Statewide retail stores of not offering CRV redemption for 
beverage containers (because there are no certified recycling centers in these convenience zones).  

Overall, the Bottle Bill, in combination with utilizing curbside programs in most communities, has resulted 
in very high recycling rates for beverage containers in California. Those rates, however, have declined in 
recent years due to the unprecedented closure of recycling centers in the State. The recycling centers 
have been funded through a combination of sources including unredeemed redemption fee revenues that 
go to the State (administered by CalRecycle), who then distributes them back out to the recycling centers 
for distribution to their customers and to offset their processing costs. These funds, in combination with 
scrap values have enabled recycling centers around the State to prosper until the last few years. 

SBWMA historically provided a convenience service to its residents by accepting beverage containers and 
refunding CRV, as a supplementary activity to its core solid waste management services. 

Widespread CRV Redemption Center Closures 
Declining scrap values, rising costs at recycling centers, and insufficient funds from CalRecycle have 
resulted in the closure of 60% of the recycling centers in the State. From 2018 through mid-2019, more 
than 1,300 of the State’s redemption centers have closed, resulting in less recovered income for 
consumers, fewer recycling jobs, and a lower overall beverage container recycling rate. 

These recent changes caused RePlanet, a company that operated hundreds of recycling centers 
throughout the State, to completely close in August 2019, laying off all their workers and shutting down 
their recycling centers. This left only two certified CRV redemption centers active in the SBWMA service 
area. One of the CRV redemption centers was the CRV redemption center at the Shoreway solid waste 
facility, and the other is J&D Recycling (located in San Mateo), which remains open for CRV redemption 
from the public.  

While the entire State has been hit with challenges regarding the CRV program, San Mateo County is the 
least well served County in the Bay Area, losing 22 of its 25 recycling centers between 2012 and 2019. 
With the closure of the Shoreway CRV redemption center, only one certified recycling center in the 
SBWMA area, J&D Recycling, was left open. However, CalRecycle lists 31 stores in four cities of the 
SBWMA area that redeem CRV containers, and R3 confirmed that at least 19 of those stores participate 
in redeeming CRV material. SBWMA residents still have access to CRV redemption, and although SBWMA’s 
CRV redemption center provided a convenient service, its closure does not eliminate CRV redemption 
options. 
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Increased Traffic Flow Prompted Closure of Shoreway CRV Redemption Center 

In the wake of RePlanet’s closure, much of the remaining CRV redemption traffic began flowing to the 
Shoreway CRV redemption center, located in the Public Recycling Center (PRC) portion of the Shoreway 
Facility, accessible just off of Shoreway Road. The increased CRV redemption traffic caused long lines (with 
wait times in excess of two hours) that stretched along both directions of the two-lane Shoreway Road, 
from which franchised collection operations and public customers access the Shoreway facility. To 
accommodate the increased traffic volume, Shoreway operator South Bay Recycling (SBR) deployed seven 
to eight attendees (normally only three) at the PRC2 along with three personnel to assist in traffic control. 

A comparison was done to determine the increase in customer volume at the CRV redemption center 
during the two weeks after RePlanet closed (See Table 1). These two weeks in August 2019 are compared 
to the same two weeks in August 2018, when RePlanet was operational. As shown, the CRV redemption 
center experienced a 49% increase in customers and a 79% increase in transactions. The average number 
of vehicles per hour also increased by 49%.  

Table 1: Shoreway CRV Redemption Statistics Pre- (2018) and Post- (2019) RePlanet Closure 

Year Customers Transactions 
Weight 
(lbs.) Payment 

Transaction 
/ Customer 

Weight / 
Customer 

Payment/ 
Customer 

Avg 
Vehicles 
/ Hr. 

Avg 
Transactions 
/ Hr. 

2018 876 2337 48,589 $28,528 2.67 55.47 $32.57 12.98 34.62 
2019 1305 4185 75,452 $57,877 3.21 57.82 $44.35 19.33 62.00 

% Increase 49% 79% 55% 103% 20% 4% 36% 49% 79% 

Because of concerns about traffic congestion and safety, as well as impacts of that traffic on the franchise 
collection operation and neighboring businesses, SBWMA made the decision to close the Shoreway CRV 
redemption center effective August 16, 2019.  

Delay in Action by the State of California 

Inadequate State funding to recycling centers and declining scrap values have caused a high percentage 
of recycling centers to close in San Mateo County and throughout the State. Although the State has a 
significant amount of unused funds in the Bottle Bill system, on the order of $300 million, the existing 
legislation doesn’t allow the flexibility needed to increase funding for the recycling centers or to allow 
them to modify their operations to become more cost-effective and efficient.  

In order to “fix” the CRV redemption problem, CalRecycle needs authorizing legislation to increase 
payments to recycling centers and provide them with more operational flexibility. According to CRV 
experts at Californians Against Waste (CAW), one of the Agency’s legislative partners, there isn’t a 
consensus amongst the legislature on how to fix the problem, contributing to a bottleneck resulting in no 
solution.  According to Mark Murray, Executive Director of CAW and an expert on this issue, there are 
three different primary solutions being considered, with no consensus. The three solutions are:  
 Change the system to create enough funding to have convenient takeback via reverse vending

machines or other technology at retail sites, similar to the European system (highest cost);
 Let the CRV materials flow through curbside programs and consider that the solution (lowest

cost);

2  Note that the PRC operations have historically included three primary functions: 1) free drop-off of recyclables 
and other materials; 2) buyback of materials like cardboard (which have been ceased for some time), and; 3) 
the CRV redemption center activities. For the purposes of this report we refer primarily to the CRV redemption 
center activities that were previously undertaken in the PRC portion of the Shoreway facility. 
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 Fund recycling enough to create an evenly distributed network of recycling centers, but not 

necessarily as many as were required through the current system (medium cost) (the CAW 
preferred solution).  

These options all require authorizing legislation, as well as a legislative consensus. According to CAW, the 
problem stems not from a lack of lawmakers willing and interested in addressing this problem, and 
authoring a bill, but from a lack of consensus on how to solve it. Consensus is needed around a proposed 
solution. Mr. Murray also noted that this is a bad time to try to open a recycling center given the 
inadequate funding situation.  

Governor Newsom is expected to include additional funding for recycling centers in the January State 
Budget, but that funding is unlikely to be available until the summer at the earliest.  It is unclear how much 
assistance this will provide to recycling centers, and it is not expected to be the long-term solution that is 
needed. 

Long-term Solutions Being Sought 

There is a general consensus among recycling experts that some type of Statewide legislation is needed 
to fix the problems that exist with the Bottle Bill and restore the utility of recycling centers. This is a 
Statewide problem, and a long-term solution is a Statewide legislative solution. The State is sent CRV funds 
collected from consumer-purchased beverage containers, and consensus is needed on the most effective 
way to distribute those funds, as well as any modifications to the program such as an increase in CRV 
(currently 5 or 10 cents per container, depending on container size). 

Other communities in California are looking for their own solutions to the issues surrounding CRV 
redemption. However, due to the underlying financial realities of the CRV redemption program, there are 
few options for agencies to consider. The most viable near-term option is a new pilot program grant 
administered by CalRecycle that could provide temporary funding for event-based and/or mobile CRV 
collection programs. SBWMA member agencies may consider applying to the CalRecycle grant program if 
they desire to supplement remaining CRV redemption opportunities in the SBWMA service area.  

As part of this project, R3 spoke with staff from Stopwaste, the San Francisco Department of the 
Environment, the City of Santa Monica and City of Berkeley to get their view on this issue. Per R3 
correspondence, they are all concerned about the CRV redemption problem and are looking for solutions. 
Every jurisdiction and County in California appears to be ingrained with the same issue – the closure of 
numerous local recycling redemption centers due to financial issues stemming from the inadequacies of 
the Bottle Bill.  

Stopwaste recently provided a presentation to their Board outlining their view of the CRV problem. A copy 
of their recent Board Discussion on this topic is included as Attachment 4, for additional background.  The 
Stopwaste Board is interested in a legislative fix to the problem. R3 has communicated to Stopwaste and 
CAW, based on guidance from the Executive Director, that SBWMA is interested in participating in the 
advocacy for such a legislative solution, which is consistent with the SBWMA’s legislative platform.    

The San Francisco Department of the Environment (SF Environment) has been working on the concept of 
a mobile recycling center program for the last few years. They are planning on submitting a grant proposal 
to CalRecycle, in conjunction with the operator of their current recycling center, to fund this mobile 
recycling effort. Their proposed mobile CRV program consists of two trucks with two trailers each, which 
will be transported to two to three locations each day for two to three hours each day. This would allow 
them to have a CRV redemption recycling center in four to six locations per daily, with the idea that 
numerous locations around the city would be utilized. The locations being considered for the mobile CRV 
program include supermarket parking lots, schools, city recreation and park parking lots, and other public 
and private parking lots. All sites would be staffed and the estimated annual cost to run this program is 
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$2.5 million. While SF Environment hopes to receive a grant for the first year or two of running the mobile 
redemption program, they are also hopeful that the CRV program will be better funded in the future for 
the long-term financial viability of this system. Their program will use an electronic payment system and 
individuals will be provided with bags with bar codes that will allow them to be paid electronically two to 
three days after their drop-off.  

Although SF Environment is applying for CalRecycle’s CRV pilot program grant, they have concerns about 
the way the grant is structured. Those concerns include but are not limited to: 

 The city being the recipient of the grant (because it raises challenges for public procurement); 

 Ownership of equipment; 

 Administration of the grant; 

 Insurance liability and holder issues; and 

 Financial, personnel, and other associated risks. 

The City of Santa Monica closed its CRV redemption center in July 2019 and will be applying for the State’s 
CRV pilot program grant in hopes to fund mobile CRV collection events throughout the City. The City of 
Berkeley intends to continue operation of its CRV redemption center, but notably also reported no 
increase in CRV redemption traffic following RePlanet’s shuttering of operations.  

R3 also communicated with CalRecycle staff to acquire information and discuss possible Bottle Bill 
solutions. Thus far, the Beverage Container Redemption Pilot Project grant is the only identified viable 
near-term option for addressing the shortage of recycling centers. R3’s conversations with CalRecycle staff 
on the grant has led to communication with two potential recycling center operators. Additionally, 
CalRecycle staff recognize that they need a legislative fix to solve the larger issues associated with the 
Bottle Bill.   
SBWMA is Not Responsible for Access to CRV Redemption 
The responsibility for returning beverage CRV to consumers falls on the retailers who sell those beverage 
containers. CalRecycle has given affected retailers in non-exempt convenience zones the option to pay a 
daily fee or redeem containers. There are currently 31 stores in 4 cities in the JPA area of San Mateo 
County (Belmont, Burlingame, San Mateo and Menlo Park) that have agreed to redeem containers (are 
not paying the fee) and are required to return the CRV to consumers. Per direct communication, R3 
confirmed that at least 19 of those stores do participate in the redemption of CRV material. A list of those 
stores is included as Attachment 1 and can also be found on CalRecycle’s website at: 
https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/BevContainer/InStoreRedemption. 

Section 2  Financial Analysis of CRV Redemption 
Alternatives at Shoreway 

Historical PRC and CRV Redemption Labor Costs 
SBR has historically staffed the PRC portion of the Shoreway facility (which included the CRV redemption 
center activities) with three full time operators, six days per week, Monday through Saturday, for a total 
of 3.6 full time equivalent (FTE) employees. The costs of the 3.6 FTE in PRC staffing are included in the 
base compensation paid by SBWMA to SBR for operating the Shoreway facility. R3 estimates the annual 
cost for these positions – in 2020 dollars – to be $637,123 as shown in Table 2, on the following page.  
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Table 2: Estimated Historical Annual Staffing Costs at PRC 

Historical PRC Staffing Annual Staffing Cost at 3.6 FTE 

Direct Labor 

Wages $359,606 
Benefits $145,301 
Payroll Taxes $34,522 
Workers Compensation $52,142 
Subtotal $591,572 

 Profit Margin (O/H) 7.7% $45,551 

 Total Annual Costs $637,123 

Changes in Labor Costs if CRV Redemption is Not Re-Opened 
If the CRV redemption center were to remain closed, the operator of SBR estimates that only 1.2 FTE 
would be needed to run the remaining PRC services, resulting in a savings of 2.4 FTE in costs to that portion 
of the Shoreway Facility’s operations. The estimated labor savings resulting from permanently closing the 
CRV redemption center portion of the PRC is estimated at $462,100 in 2020 dollars, as shown in Table 3, 
below.  

Table 3: Estimated Annual PRC Cost Savings from Closing CRV Redemption 

Estimated Annual PRC Labor Cost Savings from Closing CRV 
Redemption at 2.4 FTE 

Direct Labor 

Wages $264,365 
Benefits $100,985 
Payroll Taxes $25,379 
Workers Compensation $38,333 
Subtotal $429,062 

 Profit Margin (O/H) 7.7% $33,038 

 Total Annual Costs $462,100 

Ongoing PRC staffing costs are estimated to be approximately $175,023 per year for the remaining 1.2 
FTE that would be needed for the limited PRC functions (which is the difference between the $637,123 in 
annual costs for 3.6 FTE as shown in Table 2 and the $462,100 in costs saved from a reduction of 2.4 FTE 
as shown in Table 3). Per SBR, these 2.4 FTE would be shifted to other Shoreway Transfer Station 
operations, so while there would be a savings to the PRC operations, there would be an increase of 2.4 
FTE in staffing costs for the Transfer Station operations, estimated at $402,686 annually as shown in Table 
4, on the following page.   
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Table 4: Estimated Annual Transfer Station Cost Increase from Transitioning 2.4 FTE PRC Staff 

2.4 FTE Sorters Moved to Transfer Station 

Direct Labor 

Wages $219,912 
Benefits $100,985 
Payroll Taxes $21,112 
Workers Compensation $31,887 
Subtotal $373,896 
Profit Margin (O/H) 7.7% $28,790 
Total Annual Costs $402,686 

Overall, there would be a net decrease in overall staffing costs of approximately $59,414 ($462,100 in PRC 
staffing cost savings less $402,686 in Transfer Station cost increases) annually, due to the hourly wage 
differential between the PRC hourly labor rate of $33.72 and the estimated Transfer Station sorter rate of 
$28.05. It should be clearly noted that SBR anticipates that no layoffs would be necessary as a result of 
this transition.  

Changes in Labor Costs if CRV Redemption is Re-Opened 

If the Shoreway CRV redemption center were to re-open operating under the same conditions 
immediately following RePlanet’s closure, increases in PRC staffing would be necessary in order to 
accommodate the increased customer volume. SBR provided two estimates for the needed increase in 
staffing: one that included use of in-house staff for traffic control, and one that included use of contracted 
staff for traffic control. Table 5 below show the cost if utilizing in-house staff as traffic control, with an 
estimated 2020 total cost increase of $1,162,445 per year, as shown below. Costs shown do not account 
for additional equipment or safety gear for personnel and are not inclusive of the base 3.6 FTE in PRC 
staffing, which would need to remain, for a total of 11 FTE in PRC staffing.  

Table 5: Estimated Labor Costs for Additional CRV Redemption Volume (In-House Traffic 
Control) 

Additional 7.4 FTE with In-House Traffic Control  

Direct Labor 

Wages $625,610 
Benefits $302,955 
Payroll Taxes $60,058 
Workers Compensation $90,713 
Subtotal $1,079,336 
Profit Margin (O/H) 7.7% $83,109 
Total Annual Costs $1,162,445 

To reduce costs associated with adding traffic control personnel, SBR could outsource to a third party. 
These costs are summarized in Table 6 on the following page, with a total estimated 2020 additional labor 
cost of $912,818.  
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Table 6: Estimated Labor Costs for Additional Customer Volume (Third-Party Traffic Control) 

Additional 3.6 FTE with Third-Party Labor for Traffic 
Control 

Direct Labor 

Wages $405,696 
Benefits $151,477 
Payroll Taxes $38,946 
Workers Compensation $58,826 
Subtotal $654,945 

 Profit Margin (O/H) 7.7% $50,544 

 Third-Party Wages $207,329 

 Total Annual Costs $912,818 

It should be noted that, while both of the scenarios would increase PRC staffing to accommodate 
increased traffic flow for CRV redemption activities, there is no guarantee that these solutions would 
prevent traffic from overflowing from the Shoreway Facility onto Shoreway Road. While such solutions 
certainly could help reduce wait times, if inbound CRV traffic to the PRC were to remain at the levels 
experienced in August 2019, it is possible that traffic would once again back up along Shoreway Road.  

Changes in Costs if CRV Redemption Moved to New Area of Shoreway  

R3 did not evaluate changes in costs that could potentially result from moving the CRV Redemption 
operations from the current PRC location (at the western most portion of the Shoreway site, nearest to 
Shoreway Road) because there appear to be no immediately feasible locations for such an action. While 
such a move – if feasible – could result in a greater likelihood of mitigating potential traffic impacts on 
Shoreway Road, it would also still likely require increased labor operating costs (as per Tables 5 and 6) 
while also likely requiring an larger (and as of yet unknown) amount of capital investment, all while still 
being subject to lack of certainty regarding the future of the State’s CRV program. If the State is able to 
resolve corrections to the Bottle Bill that would reinvigorate the State’s CRV redemption program, 
SBWMA might consider re-establishing a CRV redemption center at Shoreway, possibly in conjunction 
with potential plans for future facility/property expansion (such as to the adjoining parcel to east of the 
Shoreway scale house). 

Changes in Revenues if CRV Redemption is Not Re-Opened 

Figure 1 on the following page depicts the complex relationship between SBR and SBWMA regarding CRV 
materials. When customers redeem their CRV containers, they receive their refund directly from SBR. The 
CRV payments are passed through to SBWMA via CalRecycle reimbursements. SBR then sells the material 
for scrap to material recyclers, which is the primary net revenue associated with the CRV redemption 
center activities (because the CRV payments between SBR, the customer, SBWMA and CalRecycle net to 
zero).  
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Figure 1: Flow Chart of CRV Redemption Value Revenue Flows 

Because the CRV payments between SBR, the redeeming customer, SBWMA, and the State generally net 
to zero, the primary revenue generated from the CRV redemption center comes from scrap value from 
selling the CRV materials. The estimated net scrap revenue for 2019 (if the CRV redemption center had 
remained open) is $6,805, and is estimated in Table 7. This net revenue is immaterial with respect to the 
labor cost of operating the CRV redemption center. 
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Table 7: 2019 Scrap CRV Revenue to SBWMA 

 Month 
Total 
Scrap Glass Trans Proc. Fee 

Net 
Gain/(Loss) 

Actual 

JAN $6,939.30  ($1,525.23) ($5,177.41) $236.66  
FEB $6,104.57  ($1,337.04) ($4,525.91) $241.62  
MAR $8,123.37  ($1,769.34) ($6,016.52) $337.51  
APR $8,689.26  ($1,753.05) ($6,155.27) $780.94  
MAY $8,381.71  ($1,754.46) ($6,116.61) $510.64  
JUN $9,908.33  ($1,899.46) ($6,907.09) $1,101.78  
JUL $10,020.74  ($2,054.10) ($7,212.74) $753.90  

Projected 

AUG $8,418.95  ($1,750.25) ($6,095.09) $573.61  
SEP $8,036.27  ($1,670.70) ($5,818.04) $547.53  
OCT $8,801.63  ($1,829.81) ($6,372.14) $599.68  
NOV $8,036.27  ($1,670.70) ($5,818.04) $547.53  
DEC $8,418.95  ($1,750.25) ($6,095.09) $573.61  

 Total $99,879.35  ($20,764.39) ($72,309.95) $6,805.01  

Changes in SBR Revenue Guarantee if CRV Redemption is Not Re-Opened 

The agreement between the SBWMA and SBR includes a $5.5 million annual revenue guarantee to the 
SBWMA. Once the annual revenue guarantee to SBWMA is met by SBR, SBR shares in the revenues 
received for the remainder of the year. SBR’s ability to meet the revenue guarantee is affected by the 
closure of the CRV redemption center. Historically the revenue guarantee included CRV revenues as well 
as the scrap value of redeemed CRV materials. If CRV redemption activities at the Shoreway remain closed, 
SBR’s effective annual revenues will be reduced by approximately $700,000 annually. This reduction in 
revenues would mean that it would either (a) take SBR longer to meet its revenue guarantee to SBWMA, 
resulting in a reduction in the amount of revenue share that SBR would achieve, or (b) outright prevent 
SBR from meeting the revenue guarantee, increasing SBR’s operating expense due to payment of 
unachieved revenue guarantee (to SBWMA). 

If the SBWMA decides not to continue with CRV redemption activities at the Shoreway Facility, SBWMA 
and SBR should consider negotiating an amendment to the SBR operating agreement in order to modify 
the revenue guarantee such that SBR would be able to achieve levels of revenue share commensurate 
with prior operating configurations. For example, SBWMA and SBR could choose to reduce the amount of 
revenue guarantee to $4.8 Million, which is difference between the current $5.5 Million annual revenue 
guarantee and the estimated $700,000 in revenues from CRV redemption and scrap sales that would no 
longer be realized due to closure of the CRV redemption activities at the PRC.  

Section 3   Discussion of CRV Redemption Alternatives 
As described in the prior section, significant and expensive changes would be needed to reopen the CRV 
redemption center on the current property, and given the popularity of the Shoreway Facility, it is unlikely 
that traffic would be reduced to serviceable levels. Additionally, the net revenue generated from the CRV 
redemption center is immaterial to the cost of operations. While the State is interested in making 
legislative changes to the Bottle Bill to repair the deficiencies, it is unclear what that solution will be, and 
it could very well undermine the need for substantial (including capital) improvements to the Shoreway 
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CRV redemption center. Additionally, even if an SBWMA member agency were to apply for and receive 
funding via CalRecycle’s pilot program grant, there does not appear to be enough space in the current 
location to accommodate the increased CRV redemption center traffic without significant capital 
investment and/or procurement of additional property. Therefore, R3 believes any action other than 
keeping the CRV redemption center closed (at least temporarily until a Statewide solution is achieved) 
would be financially and operationally risky. As such, reopening CRV redemption at Shoreway is not 
feasible without recreating the same liabilities that caused it to shut down.  

Several potential alternatives for SBWMA for future CRV redemption were identified by the SBWMA Board 
and staff and are discussed below.  

Operate a CRV Redemption Center Offsite or Operate Multiple Dispersed Sites 

Operating a CRV redemption center offsite or at multiple dispersed sites (e.g. mobile collection) would 
allow SBWMA to continue to support the local community without creating the operational and safety 
liabilities that occurred prior to closing the CRV redemption center. This would require a large capital 
expense to fund such activities, which would likely be infeasible for SBWMA. However, the new Beverage 
Container Redemption Pilot Project grant administered by CalRecycle would be a means of implementing 
this option. Legislation adopted in 2018 (SB 458) and 2019 (AB 54) authorized funding for local pilot 
projects to increase residents’ access to recycling centers, as well as to expand the types of recycling 
centers eligible for funding, such as mobile sites and sites with reduced hours. As one of the more 
underserved Counties with respect to recycling centers in convenience zones, San Mateo County would 
be eligible for such a grant. The grant is a new initiative and is described in further detail in Attachment 3. 
It is important to note that JPAs like SBWMA are not permitted to be the lead applicant on this grant, as 
the actual jurisdiction where the pilot project is going to operate needs to apply; however SWBMA could 
potentially be a co-applicant to a lead member agency jurisdiction.  

As noted in Attachment 2, R3 has identified two operators that have expressed interest in opening new 
permanent or mobile recycling center sites in San Mateo County. Both have experience running recycling 
centers (including the one remaining certified CRV center in the SBWMA service area). Both operators are 
only interested in opening new recycling centers if grant funding is available, since current revenue 
sources do not make expansion financially viable otherwise. Unless SBWMA approves large capital 
expenditures, the only financially viable means of pursuing an offsite CRV redemption center would be 
via grant funding. 

Limit the Time the CRV Redemption Center is Open 

Reopening the CRV redemption center and limiting the time and/or days that it is open would likely only 
add to the traffic congestion issues previously experienced at Shoreway, by forcing those seeking to 
redeem CRV beverage containers to crowd in at even more limited times. While this could reduce traffic 
congestion on non-CRV collection days, this option would likely lead to the possibility of being turned 
away at closing time, likely after already waiting potentially hours in line. Additionally, to comply with 
CalRecycle requirements, the CRV redemption center would need to be open a minimum of 30 hours per 
week.  

Locate the CRV Redemption Center in a Different Location at Shoreway or Re-route Traffic 
Re-routing traffic and CRV redemption center activities at Shoreway is not a feasible option as there 
currently isn’t adequate space to guarantee that traffic wouldn’t continue to back up along Shoreway 
Road. Per communication with SBR staff, some reconfiguration took place to accommodate the increased 
flow, however it was still insufficient in preventing traffic and long wait times. New technology such as 
electronic payments and additional scales may aid a re-routing effort, but there is no guarantee that the 
traffic issues would be alleviated.  
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Currently, there is no available alternative location at Shoreway to open a CRV redemption center without 
impacting existing operations and requiring significant capital investment. Per discussion with SBWMA 
and SBR staff, an open land parcel adjacent to Shoreway could be an option that would allow for sufficient 
space to accommodate increased CRV redemption traffic flow. Acquiring the adjacent space would 
require an unknown level of capital investment. For this option to be economically viable, the land would 
need to be used for an overall expansion of revenue generating services (expansion of transfer station 
and/or MRF) with a new CRV redemption center being an ancillary service for the purpose of providing 
convenient CRV redemption. Furthermore, this option would be a time consuming and long-term 
investment, and the State may pass new Bottle Bill legislation that could affect the utility of this option 
prior to its development. Because it is unclear how the State will proceed with the Bottle Bill, planning a 
new CRV redemption center on this adjacent land presents financial risks. 

Operate the CRV Redemption Center by Appointment 

Operating a CRV redemption center by appointment is not permissible under CalRecycle regulations. 

Reopen the CRV Redemption Center Temporarily to Determine Whether Customer Volumes 
Might Recover to Pre-RePlanet Closure Levels 
This option involves reopening the CRV redemption center exactly as is, in hopes that the customer 
volume recovers to pre-Replanet closure or at least to a level that doesn’t create safety concerns. This 
option would involve closely monitoring traffic volume, with the ability to quickly shut down operations if 
conditions reverted to post-Replanet closure. When word gets out to the community that the Shoreway 
CRV redemption center has reopened, there is the possibility that customer volume would once again 
soar to unserviceable levels. Additionally, the CRV redemption center had to be decertified when it closed 
in August. In order to reopen, it would need to be recertified by the State, which takes a minimum of 90 
days. This option is a time-consuming effort with a substantial risk that customer volume will again reach 
unserviceable levels, resulting in the need to again shut the CRV redemption center down after waiting 
90 days to recertify. Additionally, in reapplying for certification, SBWMA and SBR would likely have to 
present a case to the State that the newly recertified CRV redemption center would remain open for the 
duration, because the State would likely have little interest in re-certifying the facility only to de-certify it 
(again) if traffic conditions required re-closure. 

Hold Events to Collect CRV 

Holding events for CRV collection is the most promising alternative available to SBWMA and other 
agencies facing the same CRV challenges. Hosting such events would be an eligible use for CalRecycle CRV 
pilot project grant funds, and if applied for this purpose, and would require the partnership of an SBWMA 
lead member agency in order to be possible. Events could be conducted via mobile CRV collection like the 
type being considered by San Francisco and the City of Santa Monica and could also be done in association 
with public agency events such as Earth Days, electronic collection events, HHW events or other events.  

Advocate for a Statewide Solution 

The Bottle Bill needs a legislative overhaul to address the State’s CRV problems. SBWMA can advocate 
with other agencies and legislative partners for legislative solutions, and support bills that adequately 
address the issue. In the meantime, let CRV material flow to curbside programs and publicize the CRV 
recycling center in San Mateo in addition to enhancing outreach and education on where residents can 
find locations (e.g. website) to redeem their CRV containers.  
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Section 4 Analysis of Impacts to SBWMA Diversion Rate 
Long-term closure of the Shoreway CRV redemption center is not anticipated to have a noticeable impact 
on SBWMA’s diversion rate. Overall, CRV containers account for about one-third of 1% of the total 
SBWMA materials diverted from landfills. The total amount of CRV containers previously redeemed at the 
Shoreway CRV redemption center accounts for less than 1% of total recyclables accepted at the Shoreway. 
It is anticipated that many if not most of the CRV materials that would have been brought to the Shoreway 
CRV redemption center will be redeemed at other recycling centers, retail stores, recycled via curbside 
collection programs, or dropped off for donation to the Shoreway PRC. Table 8 depicts the annual 
quantities of CRV materials redeemed in comparison to total Shoreway diverted tons. 

Table 8: Shoreway Inbound Tonnage and Percentage CRV Redemption 

SBR Inbound Weight in Tons 2015 2016 2017 2018 
2019 

(Through 
August) 

Redeemed CRV Containers 926 886 795 756 480 

Total Self Haul/Buyback/Drop-off 

(% Redeemed CRV Containers) 

71,748 

(1.29%) 

82,916 

(1.07%) 

87,134 

(0.91%) 

82,380 

(0.92%) 

61,207 

(0.78%) 

Total Shoreway Recyclables 

(% Redeemed CRV Containers) 

108,957 

(0.85%) 

98,171 

(0.90%) 

80,813 

(0.98%) 

79,446 

(0.95%) 

51,063 

(0.94%) 

Total Shoreway Diverted 

(% Redeemed CRV Containers) 

253,988 

(0.36%) 

254,118 

(0.35%) 

255,828 

(0.31%) 

252,123 

(0.30%) 

165,214 

(0.29%) 

Total Shoreway Tons 

(% Redeemed CRV Containers) 

471,890 

(0.20%) 

477,851 

(0.19%) 

477,768 

(0.17%) 

472,716 

(0.16%) 

319,754 

(0.15%) 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

__________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 11A ATTACHMENT A - p14

FULL PACKET PAGE 161 of 265



Attachment 1 
Stores in the JPA area of San Mateo that redeem CRV 
containers (as of 12/20/2019): 
Updates available here: https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/BevContainer/InStoreRedemption 
R3 confirmed stores that are accepting (marked with *) and not accepting (marked in strikethrough) CRV 
materials. Two stores could not be reached, and their status remains unconfirmed. 

City Name Address 
Belmont Carlmont Liquors* 2035 Ralston Ave 
Belmont Chevron* 2045 Ralston Ave 
Belmont Safeway Store* 2100 Ralston Ave 
Burlingame Beverages and More* 1462 Burlingame Ave 
Burlingame Kwik & Convenient Market* 505 California Dr 
Burlingame Mollie Stones Market 1477 Chapin Ave 
Burlingame Oak Grove Market* 1000 Oak Grove Ave 
Burlingame Safeway Store 1450 Howard Ave 
Burlingame Walgreens* 260 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park 7-Eleven* 525 Oak Grove Ave 
Menlo Park Beverages and More 700 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park CVS/pharmacy* 700 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park CVS/pharmacy 325 Sharon Park Dr 
Menlo Park Draegers Supermarket* 1010 University Dr 
Menlo Park Marsh Chevron 1110 Marsh Rd 
Menlo Park Menlo Park Chevron 1200 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park Safeway Store* 325 Sharon Park Dr 
Menlo Park Safeway Store 525 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park Sharon Heights Shell* 125 Sharon Park Dr 
Menlo Park Sharon Heights Wines & Liquors 325 Sharon Park Dr 
Menlo Park Shell Station 495 El Camino Real 
Menlo Park Trader Joes Market* 720 Menlo Ave 
Menlo Park Walgreens* 643 Santa Cruz Ave 
San Mateo Chevron* 790 Polhemus Rd 
San Mateo College Plaza Shell Svc* 1400 W Hillsdale Blvd 
San Mateo Crystal Springs Union Svc* 700 Polhemus Rd 
San Mateo Crystal Springs Wine & Spirits 740 Polhemus Rd 
San Mateo Liquor City 1230 W Hillsdale Blvd 
San Mateo Piazzas Fine Foods 1218 W Hillsdale Blvd 
San Mateo Rite Aid Pharmacies* 1320 W Hillsdale Blvd 
San Mateo Safeway Store* 100 De Anza Blvd 
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Attachment 2 
Operators Who have expressed interest in operating new or 
expanded Recycling Center(s) in San Mateo County: 

1. J&D Recycling, Marixa and Juan Ramos (Also currently operating as a Certified CRV
Redemption Center):

Marixa Ramos
J&D Recycling
1015 N. Amphlett Blvd
San Mateo Ca 94401
Office 650-685-1901 M-510-472-3068
jdsanmateo@gmail.com

2. Ors Csaszar
Our Planet Recycling SF LLC
415-866-6102
info@ourplanetsf.com
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Attachment 3 
CalRecycle Grant Opportunity for Recycling Center Funding 
This is an interim funding option to for communities to pilot new CRV recycling options. CalRecycle held a 
workshop on December 6th discussing the grant parameters, which R3 listened to on behalf of 
RethinkWaste. The following highlights some of the opportunities and challenges of applying for this 
grant.   

Key Grant Provisions: 

 The grant will provide a total of $5 million, with CalRecycle expecting to issue $1 million to five
applicants.

 Grant funds are considered first come, first served.

 Those that serve multiple convenience zones and multiple cities are encouraged to apply, with
one jurisdiction expected to act as lead applicant.

 The grant provides flexibility in the type of recycling center to be funded. The grant can be used
to fund permanent recycling locations, mobile locations, locations that are only open a few hours
a day, locations in public or private parking lots (e.g., a truck), staffed or unstaffed locations, and
temporary locations (such as at designated events). CalRecycle has shown interest in being flexible 
to what will work for a local community.

 Specific locations for the recycling centers, and type of recycling program needs to be identified.
Potential locations should be in areas currently zoned for recycling centers. These locations will
be considered permitted recycling centers, and therefore must obtain local land use approval.

 Grant applications must include budgeted line items (equipment, personnel, etc.) and should
identify the site operator.

 The jurisdiction or group of jurisdictions that applies, needs to be the administrator of the grant
and the recipient of the funds. The jurisdiction(s) may pass the funds through to the operator, but
they must be the entity that submits the invoices and documentation of expenses.

 If grant funds are used for equipment, the jurisdiction(s) own the equipment and cannot sell for
5 years.  The jurisdiction(s) may be able to lease the equipment to the operator for a minimal fee.

 The jurisdiction(s) will need to follow their own procurement procedures for equipment and other 
expenses associated with the grant.

 The grant is on a cost-reimbursement basis, meaning the jurisdiction(s) need to have enough
capital to spend upfront before being reimbursed.

 JPAs are not allowed to be the lead applicant since they do not issue the permit for a recycling
center. They are encouraged to be part of a joint application but cannot be the lead applicant.

For more information see: 

https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/bevcontainer/grants/bevcontainer/rpp 
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Meeting is wheelchair accessible.  Sign language interpreter may be available upon five (5) days notice by calling 
510-891-6500.  Members of the public wanting to add an item to a future agenda may contact 510-891-6500. 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL OF ATTENDANCE

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PRESIDENTS - (Members are asked to please advise the board or the council
if you might need to leave before action items are completed)

IV. OPEN PUBLIC DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR
An opportunity is provided for any member of the public wishing to speak on any matter within
the jurisdiction of the boards or council, but not listed on the agenda.  Total time limit of 30
minutes with each speaker limited to three minutes unless a shorter period of time is set by the
President.

Page V. CONSENT CALENDAR 

1 1. Approval of the Draft Minutes of October 23,  2019 (Jeff Becerra)

5 2. Lighting Contractor Authorization (Pat Cabrera)
That the WMA Board authorize the Executive to contract with Layman Electric for $113,250 to 
perform the lighting replacement and reconfiguration work.  

WMA Board & Energy Council (EC)  

Tim Rood, WMA President 
City of Piedmont, WMA, EC 
 

Deborah Cox, WMA 1st Vice President, EC President 
City of San Leandro, WMA, EC 
 

Shelia Young, WMA 2nd Vice President 
Oro Loma Sanitary District, WMA 
 

Melissa Hernandez, EC 1st Vice President 
City of Dublin, WMA, EC 
 

Dan Kalb, EC 2nd Vice President 
City of Oakland, WMA, EC 
Jim Oddie, City of Alameda, WMA, EC 
Keith Carson, County of Alameda, WMA, EC 
Rochelle Nason, City of Albany, WMA, EC 
Susan Wengraf, City of Berkeley, WMA, EC 
Dave Sadoff, Castro Valley Sanitary District, WMA 
Dianne Martinez, City of Emeryville, WMA, EC 
Jenny Kassan, City of Fremont, WMA, EC 
Francisco Zermeño, City of Hayward, WMA, EC 
Bob Carling, City of Livermore, WMA, EC 
Michael Hannon, City of Newark, WMA, EC 
Jerry Pentin, City of Pleasanton, WMA, EC 
Emily Duncan, City of Union City, WMA, EC 

Wendy Sommer, Executive Director 

AGENDA 

MEETING OF THE  
ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT 

AUTHORITY (WMA) BOARD  
AND 

THE ENERGY COUNCIL (EC) 

Wednesday, November 20, 2019 

3:00 P.M. 

StopWaste Offices 
1537 Webster Street 
Oakland, CA 94612 

510-891-6500 

Attachment 4
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VI. REGULAR CALENDAR

7 1. 2020 Legislative Priorities (Jeff Becerra)
Discuss and adopt legislative priorities for calendar year 2020. 

9 2. SB 1383 Short Lived Climate Pollutant Strategy: Update (Kelly Schoonmaker)
This item is for information only. 

3. Interim appointment(s) to the Recycling Board for WMA appointee unable to attend future
Board Meeting(s) (Arliss Dunn)
(Planning Committee and Recycling Board meeting, December 12, 2019 at 4:00 pm, StopWaste,
1537 Webster Street, Oakland, CA)

11 4. BayREN 2019 Contract Amendment #2 (Candis Mary-Dauphin) (EC only)
Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Executive Director to enter into a 2019 contract 
amendment of $625,550 for Bay Area Regional Energy Network (BayREN) multifamily 
incentives and other related actions. 

VII. MEMBER COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

VIII. ADJOURNMENT
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 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
ALAMEDA COUNTY WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (WMA) BOARD, 

THE ENERGY COUNCIL (EC) 

Wednesday, October 23, 2019 

3:00 P.M. 

StopWaste Offices 
1537 Webster Street 
Oakland, CA 94612 

510-891-6500

I. CALL TO ORDER
President Rood called the meeting to order at 3:02 p.m.

II. ROLL CALL OF ATTENDANCE
City of Alameda Jim Oddie, WMA, EC 
City of Albany Rochelle Nason, WMA, EC 
City of Berkeley Susan Wengraf, WMA, EC 
Castro Valley Sanitary District Danny Akagi, WMA (alternate) 
City of Dublin Melissa Hernandez, WMA, EC 
City of Emeryville Dianne Martinez, WMA, EC 
City of Fremont Jenny Kassan, WMA, EC 
City of Hayward Francisco Zermeño, WMA, EC 
City of Livermore Bob Carling, WMA, EC 
City of Newark Mike Hannon, WMA, EC 
City of Oakland Dan Kalb, WMA, EC 
Oro Loma Sanitary District Shelia Young, WMA 
City of Piedmont Tim Rood, WMA, EC 
City of Pleasanton Jerry Pentin, WMA, EC 
City of San Leandro Deborah Cox, WMA, EC 
City of Union City Emily Duncan, WMA, EC 

ABSENT: 
County of Alameda Keith Carson, WMA, EC 

Staff Participating: 
Wendy Sommer, Executive Director 
Jeff Becerra, Communications Manager 
Arliss Dunn, Clerk of the Board 
Richard Taylor, WMA Legal Counsel  

Others Participating: 
Susan Collins, President, Container Recycling Institute 
Jeff Donlevy, General Manager, Ming’s Recycling 
Priscilla Quiroz, Shaw Yoder Antwih Schmelzer & Lange 

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS BY PRESIDENTS
There were none.

IV. OPEN PUBLIC DISCUSSION FROM THE FLOOR
There was none.
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V. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Approval of the Draft Minutes of September 25, 2019  (Wendy Sommer)

There were no public comments for the Consent Calendar. Board member Hannon made the motion to 
approve the Consent Calendar. Board member Cox seconded and the motion carried 13-0: 
(Ayes: Akagi, Carling, Cox, Duncan, Hannon, Hernandez, Kassan, Martinez, Nason, Pentin, Rood, 
Wengraf, Young. Nays: None. Abstained: None. Absent: Carson, Kalb, Oddie, Zermeño). 

VI. REGULAR CALENDAR

1. Recycling Redemption Center Closures (Justin Lehrer)
This item is for information only. 

Wendy Sommer provided a brief summary of the staff report and introduced Susan Collins, President 
of the Container Recycling Institute, and Jeff Donlevy, General Manager of Ming’s Recycling. Ms. 
Collins and Mr. Donleavy shared information about the impacts at the state and local levels, and ideas 
for addressing the causes and restoring the effectiveness of California’s Bottle Bill. A link to their 
respective presentations are available here: CRI-Presentation-10-23-19.pdf and East-Bay-Recycling-
Centers-10-23-19.pdf 

Board member Duncan inquired about any solutions that would prove helpful in restoring the 
effectiveness of the Bottle Bill. Mr. Donlevy stated that there needs to be a bigger fix at the state level 
including investment in creating more recycling centers and an increase in enforcement on grocers to 
honor the redemption of the materials. Mr. Donlevy added the cities and the grocers need to 
collaborate to subsidize opening new recycling centers, and the legislation needs to allow reduced 
hours as well as mobile recycling centers to facilitate more flexible recycling. Board member Kalb 
inquired if curbside recycling is increasing as direct collection is decreasing. Mr. Donlevy stated that it 
is too soon to provide any analysis in that area; however, the City of San Francisco had two recycling 
centers and when one of the centers closed the volume at the remaining center increased 100%, but 
the lines were extremely long. Board member Kalb inquired if it would help or hinder to amend the 
Bottle Bill to include more glass, i.e. wine bottles and other glass not currently accepted. Ms. Collins 
stated that to add more glass would mean that people that live in recycling deserts (locations with no 
recycling centers) would pay more and adding more materials would not help-we need more 
infrastructure. Ms. Collins added with respect to an increase in curbside recycling, it is too soon to tell, 
but over the last six years the overall bottle recycling rate has decreased 10% from 85% to 75% as 
more materials are going to landfill. Mr. Donlevy stated that adding more materials to the program 
would only increase the already robust surplus of money in the program (currently at $300 million). 
Board member Young commented that CalRecycle is holding back a significant amount of money and 
stated that they should give the money to the cities to invest in their own recycling centers. Ms. Collins 
stated that CalRecycle has approximately $360 million in funds but they don’t have the authority to 
carry out any of the suggestions proffered at this meeting without authorizing legislation. Mr. Donlevy 
stated that Senator Bob Wieckowski is interested in carrying legislation and there is a placeholder bill 
slated for the next legislative session. Board member Cox stated her appreciation for the handout in 
the staff report and added even if the cities had the funding it wouldn’t be prudent for them to 
operate recycling facilities. Board member Zermeno inquired if there is political will in Sacramento to 
address the issue. Mr. Donlevy stated that it will require people reaching out to their local elected 
officials to take the leadership role. Mr. Donlevy added there is significant opposition to Bottle Bill 
fixes, including the beverage industry and waste haulers. Board member Oddie stated we are 
contracted with a highly respected lobbying firm and in December we will be setting our 2020 
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legislative priorities, and should place the item on the agenda to discuss the issue and possibly sponsor 
legislation. Board member Akagi stated the data presented indicates that 2007-2012 showed a growth 
in the industry and inquired about what was happening during that time. Ms. Collins stated that during 
that period the redemption rate was increasing from $0.04 to $0.05 and the program was expanded to 
cover non-carbonated beverages. Ms. Collins added this was also prior to implementation of the cost 
survey which caused the downward spiral. Board member Akagi inquired if the deposits are a fixed 
value. Ms. Collins stated yes. Board member Akagi stated that any legislative remedy should also 
include an escalation of the deposit to keep up with the cost of the product. Board member Kassan 
inquired about the state of the industry with respect to looking at refillable bottles. Ms. Collins stated 
that Oregon has the most successful deposit program in the country. It is a non-profit Extended 
Producer Responsibility (EPR) program and the board members are comprised of manufacturers and 
retailers. Board member Martinez inquired if the cost survey process is written into the legislation. Ms. 
Collins stated yes. President Rood thanked Ms. Collins and Mr. Donlevy for their presentations. Ms. 
Sommer distributed the Bottle Bill topic brief available here: Bottle-Bill-Topic-Brief-Oct-2019 

2. 2019 Legislative Wrap Up (Jeff Becerra)
This item is for information only. 

Jeff Becerra introduced Priscilla Quiroz from our contract lobbyist Shaw Yoder Antwih Schmelzer & 
Lange. Mr. Becerra provided a brief summary of the staff report and Ms. Quiroz provided an overview 
of the legislative highlights and what to expect for 2020. A link to the staff report is available here: 
Legislative-Update-10-23-19.pdf 

President Rood inquired about AB 1583 (The California Recycling Market Development Act) with regard 
to eliminating the chasing arrows symbol on products. Mr. Becerra stated that the chasing arrows 
symbol is confusing and misleading as it is on items that are not necessarily recyclable. Board member 
Oddie inquired if the agency had sponsored any bills last year and if this is something that the Board 
could do if it so desired. Mr. Becerra stated no, the agency did not sponsor any legislation last year but 
it will be part of the discussion next month.  Board member Oddie inquired about AB 54 (California 
Beverage Container Recycling and Litter Reduction Act) and if Assembly member Ting is working to 
address the budget shortfall with respect to this legislation. Ms. Quiroz stated that it was being 
discussed and they will further look into it. Ms. Quiroz added, even though the agency did not sponsor 
any legislation we were very involved. Mr. Becerra added, we are closely involved with SB1383 in 
coordinating the comments and hopefully shaping the final legislation. Board member Hannon 
recommended that future legislative updates include our position on the proposed bills, and added 
staff should notify the Board and utilize their influence with the East Bay delegation. Board member 
Hannon asked for clarification regarding the term “symbolic” with regard to AB 815 (Dual-Stream 
Recycling). Ms. Quiroz stated that the legislation is symbolic in that it is not enforced but encourages 
jurisdictions to adopt dual-stream programs. Mr. Becerra stated that the City of Berkeley has a curbside 
dual-stream program that utilizes split carts to separate the paper from the bottles and cans, which 
produces a cleaner stream. Board member Hannon stated his support for the dual-stream program and 
added it should be a consideration as we look at future legislation. Board member Duncan inquired 
about SB 724 (Bottle Bill Buy-Back Centers) and inquired about the lack of support for the bill. Ms. 
Quiroz stated that the bill is in suspense due to the cost but we did support the bill. Board member 
Nason asked for clarification regarding the lack of consensus on fixing the Bottle Bill and inquired about 
how to reach consensus. Mr. Becerra stated that organizations that we support, such as Californians 
Against Waste and others that are involved that are trying to address the Bottle Bill issues, may have 
different priorities and so the people that may influence the legislators may not agree on what the 
priority fixes are. Board member Young inquired if the $360 million that CalRecycle is holding is frozen, 
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and if so, it is a disservice to the community. Ms. Collins stated that the money is just sitting in a fund, 
nothing is happening.  

President Rood thanked Ms. Quiroz and Mr. Becerra for their report.  

3. Interim appointment(s) to the Recycling Board for WMA appointee unable to attend future
Board Meeting(s) (Arliss Dunn)

There were no requests for an interim appointment. Ms. Sommer distributed a copy of the October –
December 2019 Calendar of Events. 

Energy Council President Cox chaired the EC item. 

4. 2019 PG&E Local Government Partnership Contract Extension and Amendment
(Jennifer West) (EC only)

That the Energy Council adopt the attached resolution to authorize the Executive 
Director to enter into an amended contract with PG&E and other related actions. 

There were no public comments on this item. Board member Kalb made the motion to approve the 
staff recommendation. Board member Zermeño seconded and the motion carried 18-0: 
(Ayes: Carling, Cox, Duncan, Hannon, Hernandez, Kalb, Kassan, Martinez, Nason, Oddie, Pentin, Rood, 
Wengraf, Zermeño. Nays: None. Abstained: None. Absent: Carson) 

VII. MEMBER COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Board member Cox extended thanks to Jeanne Nader, Program Manager, for attending and providing a
very informative presentation at Assembly Member Quirk’s Reduce, Reuse, Recycle event. The event
received an amazing response from the public. The event included organizations such as Goodwill, and
a shredding and E-Waste company. Over 50 lbs. of batteries were collected at the event.  Board
member Oddie requested an electronic version of the community events.

VIII. ADJOURNMENT
The meeting was adjourned at 4:28 p.m.
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Client Logo

SL IDE 1

Presentation Overview

 Background
 Major Findings
 Financial Analysis
 CRV Redemption Alternatives
 Impacts on Diversion

 Key Conclusions
 Questions and Answers
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Client Logo

SL IDE 2

Background
 “Bottle Bill” implemented in 1987

 5 & 10 cent redemption value on beverage containers
 High recycling rates obtained in California

 2018‐19: “National Sword” and Declining Scrap $
 1,300 redemption centers close statewide

 RePlanet Closes in August 2019
 Increased traffic post‐RePlanet closure prompts

closure of Shoreway CRV redemption center
 Long‐term solution being sought after by State
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Client Logo

SL IDE 3

Background
Timeline

2018: 76% Bev. 
Container Recycling 
Rate 2012-2019: San Mateo 

County Loses 22 of 25 
Recycling Centers

2018-Mid 2019: 1,300 
Redemption Centers 

Close Statewide

August 2019: 
RePlanet Closes

August 16, 2019: 
SBWMA Closes the 
CRV Redemption 

Center at the Shoreway 
Facility

1986: “Bottle Bill” 
Adopted (effective 

1987)

1988: 52% Bev. 
Container Recycling 

Rate

1990s: Curbside 
Recycling Begins to 

Flourish

March 2018: China 
National Sword and 
Declining Scrap Value

August 2019: Traffic 
to Shoreway Facility 
Surges
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Client Logo

SL IDE 4

Financial Analysis

 $637,123 to run PRC with historical staffing (3.6
FTE)

 $462,100 savings if redemption center portion of
PRC is closed (2.4 FTE reduction)

 $59,414 savings if redemption center staff (2.4
FTE) transitioned to transfer station

 R3 did not evaluate costs resulting from
relocating CRV redemption center

*Annual savings based on 2020 rates
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Client Logo

SL IDE 5

CRV Redemption Alternatives

 Operate a redemption center offsite or at 
multiple dispersed sites
 Financially viable only through State’s pilot program 

grant

 Limit the hours for the redemption center
 Would likely exacerbate traffic volume
 CalRecycle requires CRV redemption centers to be 

open a minimum 30 hrs/wk

 Locate the redemption center in a different 
location or re‐route traffic
 No alternative location without large expenses
 Inadequate space to re‐route activities
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SL IDE 6

CRV Redemption Alternatives
Continued

 Operate the redemption center by appointment
 Not permissible under CalRecycle regulations

 Reopen the redemption center temporarily (to
assess traffic volume)
 High risk
 Decertified; takes 90 days to recertify redemption

center
 High potential for unserviceable traffic volume
 Would likely need to convince State that redemption

center would remain open for the duration
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SL IDE 7

CRV Redemption Alternatives
Continued

 Hold events to collect CRV
 Eligible use of pilot program grant funds
 Partnership with a lead member agency(ies)

 Advocate for a Statewide solution
 Advocate with other agencies and partners for 

legislative solution
 Let CRV material flow through curbside recycling or 

other redemption sites
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Client Logo

SL IDE 8

Impacts on Diversion

 Long‐term closure of the Shoreway CRV
redemption center is not anticipated to have a
noticeable impact on SBWMA’s diversion rate.

SBR Inbound Weight in Tons 2015 2016 2017 2018
2019 

(Through 
August)

Redeemed CRV Containers 926 886 795 756 480

Total Self Haul/Buyback/Drop-off

(% Redeemed CRV Containers)

71,748

(1.29%)

82,916

(1.07%)

87,134

(0.91%)

82,380

(0.92%)

61,207

(0.78%)
Total Shoreway Recyclables

(% Redeemed CRV Containers)

108,957

(0.85%)

98,171

(0.90%)

80,813

(0.98%)

79,446

(0.95%)

51,063

(0.94%)
Total Shoreway Diverted

(% Redeemed CRV Containers)

253,988

(0.36%)

254,118

(0.35%)

255,828

(0.31%)

252,123

(0.30%)

165,214

(0.29%)
Total Shoreway Tons

(% Redeemed CRV Containers)

471,890

(0.20%)

477,851

(0.19%)

477,768

(0.17%)

472,716

(0.16%)

319,754

(0.15%)
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Client Logo

SL IDE 9

Key Conclusions

 SBWMA is not obligated to provide CRV 
redemption

 Access to CRV redemption still exists
 There are no cost‐effective feasible alternatives 

to re‐open CRV redemption at Shoreway
 Member agencies can apply for State grant 

funding (pilot program)
 Mobile, event‐based, or permanent CRV sites

 Closure of the Shoreway CRV redemption center 
will not affect diversion rate
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THANK YOU FOR YOUR TIME

Garth Schultz| R3 Principal
(510) 292‐0853

gschultz@r3cgi.com

For additional questions, contact:

JM1
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11B 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
 Grant Ligon, Senior Management Analyst 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Director’s Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving contract amendment for $71,272 for payment of Sales Tax on 

Board-Approved MRF Controls Equipment 
 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-05 attached hereto 
Approving BHS (Bulk Handling Systems) contract amendment for $71,272 for payment of Sales Tax on MRF 
Controls Equipment, which was approved by the Board for an amount not-to-exceed $770,500 (see Attachment A 
– Staff Report and Resolution #2019-44). 
Summary 
On June 27, 2019 the Board approved the replacement and installation of optical sort hardware and software, and 
the replacement of the existing sort system electrical controls for an amount not-to-exceed $770,500 (Resolution 
#2019-44).  This approval did not include potential sales tax associated with the equipment purchase because 
staff envisioned its reimbursement through the California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transportation 
Finance Authority’s (CAEAFTA) grant program.    
 
Analysis 
Staff has pursued potential sales tax exemptions (including partial exemptions) associated with the purchase of 
qualifying recycling equipment, such as those under those under the CAEAFTA Sales Tax Exclusion (STE) 
program and California Sales and Use Tax Regulations Article 3 Regulation 1525 (Manufacturing and Research & 
Development Equipment).  The CAEAFTA exemption was the most likely opportunity to obtain sales tax 
exemption on the purchase of recycling equipment, but staff has been advised that this sales tax reimbursement 
program is currently being restructured (due to oversubscription) with an unknown program relaunch date. The 
CAEAFTA program requires that the application for exemption be submitted prior to the equipment being put into 
service.  As of this writing, the BHS equipment has not been put into service, so in theory it is eligible for STE 
application. However, based on conversations with the CAEAFTA representative associated with the Agency’s 
current Organics to Energy project STE agreement (which has led to an estimated $96k in STE up to this point), 
and how the rolling application mechanism for the CAEAFTA STE has been removed from the State’s website, 
the Agency has learned that the oversubscribed program has been discontinued pending review by an outside 
consultant. Staff is in contact with CAEAFTA staff to identify future reimbursement opportunities for the Agency. 
 
Similarly, Regulation 1525.4 mentions recycling equipment as potentially eligible, but later clarifies that it must be 
used for the purposes of altering the waste to reduce, avoid or eliminate it, rather than transport, bale, compress 
or otherwise process it for transfer to another location. The later description applies to Agency Shoreway 
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activities, rendering the 3.9375% possible ST deduction for the time period of January 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022 
inapplicable for SBWMA purposes.     
 
Fiscal Impact 
The likely fiscal impact is not-to-exceed $71,272, which is 9.25% of the $770,500 total price. This funding will 
come from the SBWMA Equipment Replacement Reserve so there will be no budget impact. This conservatively 
assumes that all expenses are sales-tax applicable, which is not the case for shipping and other expenses. It also 
assumes that the CAEAFTA program is not reinstated and the Agency’s application is not accepted before the 
equipment is put into service. 

 
Attachments: 
 
Resolution 2020-05 

         Attachment A - Staff Report and Resolution #2019-44 from June 27, 2019 approving MRF Optical Soft 
Hardware, Software and Electrical Controls  
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-05    
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
APPROVING CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR $71,272 FOR PAYMENT OF SALES TAX 

ON MRF HARDWARE, SOFTWARE AND CONTROLS EQUIPMENT 

WHEREAS, the South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) approved Resolution # 2019-44 
authorizing the purchase of MRF optical sort hardware, software and control equipment for an amount not to 
exceed $770,500; and 

WHEREAS, sales tax of $71,272 was not included with the equipment purchase price for approval; and 

WHEREAS, Staff is unable to apply for a sales tax exemption under California’s CAEAFTA program or 
other potential exemptions, exempting sales tax on recycling equipment purchases, as the program is currently 
being restructured with an unknown relaunch date; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
approves a contract amendment for $71,272 for the payment of sales tax on MRF optical sort hardware, software 
and controls equipment that was approved by Board Resolution #2019-44. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, 
County of San Mateo, State of California on the 30th day of January 2020, by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-05 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 

ATTEST: Jay Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA 

_________________________________ 
Cynthia Urman, Board Secretary 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton Menlo Park 
Belmont Redwood City 
Burlingame San Carlos 
East Palo Alto San Mateo 
Foster City County of San Mateo 
Hillsborough West Bay Sanitary Dist. 
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7A  

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Hilary Gans, Senior Contracts & Operations Manager 
Date:   June 27, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Approving a Contract with BHS, Inc. to 1. replace and install optical sorter hardware and 

software and 2. replace existing sort system electrical controls and software for a not-to-
exceed amount of $770,500 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2019-44 attached hereto 
authorizing the following action:  Approving a Contract with BHS, Inc. to 1. replace and install optical sorter 
hardware and software and 2. replace existing sort system electrical controls and software for a not-to- 
exceed amount of $770,500. 
Summary 
The original MRF sort system was installed by Bulky Handling Systems, Inc. (BHS, Inc.) in 2009.  The MRF sort 
system includes electronic controls that are now obsolete and must be replaced to accommodate upcoming new 
system operating software and to upgrades the existing system for the planned MRF sort system capital 
improvements project to be funded by new bond proceeds.  

Analysis 
The scope of work being considered in this contract with BHS, Inc. is for the following:  

1. New MRF Motor Controls System ($531,000). The +100 motors that operate the MRF sorting system
are controlled though electrical hardware (motor controllers/variable frequency drives) that are now
obsolete and must be replaced because they have reached their end-of-life and are no longer supported
by the manufacturer. Additionally, replacing the motor controls is a necessary step to installing new BHS,
Inc. operating system software that will be compliant with future MRF sort system upgrades. BHS, Inc.
proposed a scope of services and cost of $531,000 as detailed in the Agreement in Attachment A.

2. Exiting Optical Hardware & Software Upgrade ($239,500). The MRF uses high-speed optical sorters to
separate plastic containers by resin type. The optical sorters are ~9-year old and the computer systems
that run material identification software are obsolete and cannot receive software updates provided by
BHS, Inc..  Upgrading the four existing optical sorter units will make them compatible with the planned
MRF upgrades to the sort system. BHS proposed scope of services and cost of $239,500 is detailed in
the Agreement in Attachment A.

BHS, Inc. will perform the proposed equipment installation and system-testing work during off-operating hours and 
no down-time or additional operating expense will result from this work. 
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BHS Inc. is the original equipment manufacturer for the Shoreway MRF’s sorting equipment and BHS, Inc. is the 
only company that can perform the proposed upgrade services. BHS, Inc. is the only contractor capable of 
creating and installing the type of control system/software that is compatible with the proprietary BHS, Inc. 
hardware and software already installed. Other vendors’ products and services would not be compatible with that 
of the BHS, Inc. equipment used now and planned for the MRF upgrade project.  For this reason, staff is 
recommending that the Board award this contract on a sole source basis rather than putting it out for bid.   

Background 
The MRF sort system was designed by BHS, Inc in 2009 and installed in 2010.  The electronics that control the 
MRF sort system have advanced and the existing motor controllers/VFDs are no longer manufactured by BHS, 
Inc.’s electronics sub-manufacturer, Allen Bradley, or is currently supported. The computer/electronic hardware 
that run the existing optical sorters are no longer supported by BHS, Inc. and there is no ability to update software 
without replacing the computer hardware.   

In February the Board has discussed a CIP project that includes planned MRF Upgrades that will add optical 
sorters for paper that will require standardization of electronics, controls and software which will be accomplished 
by this contract for existing optical hardware replacement 

Fiscal Impact 
The cost of the work to be performed by BHS, Inc. is $770,500.  There will be no impact on the Agency’s 
operating budget because the funds for this project will, if approved, be withdrawn from the SBWMA’s existing 
MRF Equipment Replacement Reserve. This reserve was established ten years ago with the express purpose of 
covering replacement of worn and obsolete sort system equipment.  The current SBWMA’s MRF Equipment 
Replacement Reserve balance is $1,397,851.  After this project is competed the Reserve balance will be 
$627,351.   

Attachments: 
Resolution 2019-44 
Attachment A – Public Project Agreement for MRF Sort System Controls and Optical Hardware & Software 
Replacement – Available online only at www.rethinkwaste.org 
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12A  

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Emi Hashizume, Environmental Education Manager 
 Grant Ligon, Senior Management Analyst  
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Resolution Approving One-Year Base Contract with up to Two Additional Option Years for 

a Not-to-Exceed Total Contract value of $99,000 with Royal Coach Tours for SBWMA 
Environmental Education Programs Busing Services 

Recommendation 
It is recommended that the SBWMA Board of Directors approve Resolution No. 2020-06 attached hereto 
authorizing the approval of a one-year base contract with up to two additional option years for a total contract 
value of $99,000 with Royal Coach Tours for student bus services for the Shoreway Tour Program.  
 
Summary 
To meet current and necessary transportation needs and to satisfy a public procurement review via the RFP 
process, Staff recommends executing a contract with Royal Coach Tours for bus services for a base year term of 
not-to-exceed amount of $33,000, with the ability to execute up to two additional optional years for a total not-to-
exceed amount of $99,000 This amount include a 10% contingency to allow for expanded program use, as 
necessary. 
 
Analysis 
The SBWMA recognizes that procuring bus services is a large expense for schools – the high cost of student 
transportation is often a barrier that prevents classes from underserved and low-income communities from 
participating in off-campus field trips. To better accommodate all schools and offer more equitable and inclusive 
programming, the Shoreway Tours Program provides no-cost busing to 3rd through 5th grade classes from schools 
located in the SBWMA service area.  
 
An RFP for bus services was issued to fourteen (14) companies on Monday, January 6, 2020 and an ad was 
posted in the San Mateo Daily Journal. The SBWMA received nine (9) proposals by the January 14, 2020 
deadline.  
 
SBWMA Staff completed an initial review of all proposals and narrowed them down to four (4) based on quality of 
proposal and pricing structure. The proposals were briefly discussed with the Public Education and Outreach 
Subcommittee at a meeting on January 16, 2020. The Public Education and Outreach Subcommittee reviewers 
consisted of Andra Lorenz (Foster City TAC member), Gordon Tong (San Mateo County TAC member), Mia Rossi 
(Recology Waste Zero Manager), Joe La Mariana (SBWMA Executive Director), Emi Hashizume (SBWMA 
Environmental Education Manager), Julia Au (SBWMA Outreach and Communications Manager) and Joanna 
Rosales (SBWMA Outreach and Communications Coordinator). After contacting the top four (4) candidates and 
their references with follow-up questions, Staff further narrowed down the proposals to two (2) finalists based on 
the following criteria: 
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• quality of proposal
• pricing structure
• scheduling and cancellation policies
• proximity of local dispatch center and company headquarters
• staff responsiveness
• references
• experience with similar agencies

Based on Royal Coach Tours’ second-to-lowest trip rate (compared to the other eight proposals), highly 
responsive management, and strong references, Staff recommends Royal Coach Tours as the company to 
provide transportation services to classes participating in the Shoreway Tour Program. The proposed contract 
with Royal Coach Tours is in Exhibit A, which includes a full scope of work, timeline, and detailed costs. 

Background 
The Shoreway Tour Program currently utilizes First Student for bus services. First Student has been the bus 
service provider for the agency since 2012 due to the low price-per-trip costs compared to competitor companies. 
The Shoreway Environmental Center hosts well over a hundred school tours a year and necessitates a 
transportation provider that reflects the high standards of SBWMA.  

Fiscal Impact 
The adopted FY 19/20 budget includes $33,000 for busing services. SBWMA currently pays an average of $337 
per trip with First Student. With the approval of the recommended contract with Royal Coach Tours, the Agency 
will pay $480 per trip for a significantly higher level of service. This adjusted price will result in an increase to 
FY19/20 budget of about $5k due to the cost differential for the remaining tours through this remaining academic 
year. This will not substantively impact on our mid-year budget projections.  

Attachments: 
Resolution 2020-06 
Exhibit A - Proposed Contract with Royal Coach Tours, Scope of Work includes Royal Coach Tours' RFP Response 
Attachment A – School Tours Bus Transportation Services RFP 
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RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 
RESOLUTION OF THE SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE 

 MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE A ONE YEAR BASE CONTRACT WITH UP TO 
TWO ADDITIONAL OPTION YEARS FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT VALUE OF $99,000 

WITH ROYAL COACH TOURS FOR ENVIRONMENTAL EDUCATON PROGRAM 
BUSING SERVICES  

WHEREAS,  the SBWMA Board of Directors has considered entering into an agreement with Royal 
Coach Tours for the purpose of providing the following services:  

Transportation services for one base year starting January 31, 2020 as described in the Contract 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, and; 

WHEREAS,  no-cost bus transportation for students in the SBWMA service area is an important and vital 
component of the Shoreway Tour Program;  

WHEREAS,  the current bus company does not coordinate efficiently or effectively with Staff and does not 
reflect the Agency’s high standard of service;   

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the South Bayside Waste Management Authority hereby 
authorizes the Executive Director to execute a one-year contract with Royal Coach Tours for student bus services 
with a not-to-exceed budget of $33,000, with the possible execution of an optional term up to two additional years, 
for a total contract value not-to-exceed $99,000. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the South Bayside Waste Management Authority, County of 
San Mateo, State of California on the 30th day of January, 2020, by the following vote: 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution No. 2020-06 was duly and regularly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the South Bayside Waste Management Authority on January 30, 2020. 

____________________________________ 
ATTEST: Jess E (Jay) Benton, Chairperson of SBWMA 

Agency Yes No Abstain Absent Agency Yes No Abstain Absent 
Atherton Menlo Park 
Belmont Redwood City 
Burlingame San Carlos 
East Palo Alto San Mateo 
Foster City County of San Mateo 
Hillsborough West Bay Sanitary Dist 
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_________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Clerk of the Board 
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VENDOR AGREEMENT FOR PRODUCTS AND/OR SERVICES FOR 
SCHOOL TOURS BUS TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

This Agreement is made and entered into as of the 30th day of January, 2020 by and 
between the SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY hereinafter 
called "AUTHORITY" and ROYAL COACH TOURS, INC. hereinafter called "VENDOR". 

RECITALS 

This Agreement is entered into with reference to the following facts and circumstances: 

A. That AUTHORITY desires to engage VENDOR to provide a product and/or
services to the AUTHORITY;

B. That VENDOR is qualified to provide the product and/or services to the
AUTHORITY and;

C. That the AUTHORITY has elected to engage VENDOR upon the terms and
conditions as hereinafter set forth.

1. A.  Services.  The services to be performed by VENDOR under this
Agreement are set forth in Exhibit A, which is, by this reference,
incorporated herein and made a part hereof as though it were fully set
forth herein.

Performance of the work specified in said Exhibit A is hereby made an
obligation of VENDOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes that
may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written agreement of
the said parties.

Where in conflict, the terms of this Agreement and Exhibit A supersede
and prevail over any terms set forth in Exhibit C.

B. Product. The product to be supplied by VENDOR under this
Agreement is set forth in Exhibit A which is, by this reference, incorporated
herein and made a part hereof as though it were fully set forth herein.

Timely delivery of the product specified in said Exhibit A is hereby made 
an obligation of VENDOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes 
that may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written 
agreement of the said parties. 

2. Term; Termination.
(a) The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date
hereinabove written and shall expire upon December 31st, 2020 unless
extended at AUTHORITY’s sole discretion for up to two (2) one-year
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terms.  AUTHORITY shall give VENDOR notice of its intent to extend at 
least ninety (90) days prior to the end of the existing term. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of (a) above, either party may terminate
this Agreement without cause by giving written notice not less than thirty
(30) days prior to the effective date of termination, which date shall be
included in said notice. AUTHORITY shall compensate VENDOR for any
product delivered and/or for services rendered, and reimburse VENDOR
for costs and expenses incurred, to the date of termination, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of paragraph 3. In ascertaining the
services actually rendered to the date of termination, consideration shall
be given both to completed work and work in process of completion.
Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a limitation upon the right of
AUTHORITY to terminate this Agreement for cause, or otherwise to
exercise such rights or pursue such remedies as may accrue to
AUTHORITY hereunder.

3. Compensation; Expenses; Payment.  AUTHORITY shall compensate
VENDOR for all products supplied or services performed by VENDOR
hereunder as shown in Exhibit B attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the combined total of compensation and
reimbursement of costs payable hereunder shall not exceed the sum
$30,000 (Thirty Thousand Dollars) per year unless additional amounts
have been approved in advance of supplying the product, performing the
services or incurring the costs and expenses by AUTHORITY’s Executive
Director (for contracts less than $50,000) or Board of Directors (for
contracts $50,000 or more) evidenced by motion duly made and carried.

Compensation and reimbursement of costs and expenses hereunder shall
be payable upon VENDOR meeting contract milestones as defined in
Exhibit B. Billing shall include an itemized statement, briefly describing by
task and labor category or cost/expense items billed.

4. Additional Services. In the event AUTHORITY desires the delivery of
additional products or performance of additional services not otherwise
included within Exhibit A, such products or services shall be authorized in
advance by AUTHORITY’s Executive Director (for contracts less than
$50,000) or Board of Directors (for contracts $50,000 or more) by motion
duly made and carried. Such amendment to this Agreement shall include
a description of the product to be delivered or services to be performed
thereunder, the maximum compensation and reimbursement of costs and
expenses payable therefor, the time of performance thereof, and such
other matters as the parties deem appropriate. Except to the extent
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modified by written amendment, all other terms and conditions of this 
Agreement shall be deemed incorporated in each such amendment. 

5. Records. VENDOR shall keep and maintain accurate records of products
delivered or of all time expended in performing services and costs and
expenses incurred relating thereto. Said records shall be available to
AUTHORITY for review and copying during regular business hours at
VENDOR’s place of business or as otherwise agreed upon by the parties.

6. Authorization.  This Agreement becomes effective when endorsed by both
parties in the space provided below.

7. Documents. All documents, plans, drawings, renderings, and other
papers, or copies thereof, as finally rendered, prepared by VENDOR
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, shall, upon preparation and
delivery to AUTHORITY, become the property of AUTHORITY

8. Relationship of Parties.  It is understood that the relationship of VENDOR
to the AUTHORITY is that of an independent contractor and all persons
working for or under the direction of VENDOR are its agents or employees
and not agents or employees of the AUTHORITY.

9. Schedule. VENDOR shall adhere to the schedule set forth in Exhibit A;
provided, that AUTHORITY shall grant reasonable extensions of time for
the delivery of products or performance of services occasioned by
governmental reviews of VENDOR’s work product or other unavoidable
delays; provided, further, that such unavoidable delay shall not include
strikes, lockouts, work stoppages, or other labor disturbances conducted
by, or on behalf of, VENDOR’s officers or employees.

VENDOR acknowledges the importance to AUTHORITY of timely delivery
of products or services and agrees to put forth its best professional efforts
to perform in a manner consistent with that schedule.

10. Indemnity. To the fullest extent allowed by law, VENDOR hereby agrees
to defend, indemnify, and save harmless AUTHORITY, its boards, officers,
employees and agents, from and against any and all claims, suits, actions
liability, loss, damage, expense, cost (including, without limitation, costs
and fees of litigation) of every nature, kind or description, which may be
brought against, or suffered or sustained by, AUTHORITY, its boards,
officers, employees, and agents caused by, or alleged to have been
caused by, the negligence, intentional tortuous act or omission, or willful
misconduct of VENDOR, its officers, employees, subcontractors or agents
in the performance of any services or work pursuant to this Agreement.

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 12A EXHIBIT A - p3

FULL PACKET PAGE 197 of 265



4 
 
  

The duty of VENDOR to indemnify and save harmless, as set forth herein, 
shall include the duty to defend as set forth in Section 2778 of the 
California Civil Code. 
 
VENDOR’s responsibility for such defense and indemnity obligations shall 
survive the termination or completion of this Agreement for the full period 
of time allowed by law. 
 
The defense and indemnification obligations of this agreement are 
undertaken in addition to, and shall not in any way be limited by, the 
insurance obligations contained within this Agreement. 
 

11. Insurance. VENDOR shall acquire and maintain Workers’ Compensation, 
employer’s liability, commercial general liability, owned and non-owned 
and hired automobile liability insurance coverage relating to VENDOR’s 
services to be performed hereunder covering AUTHORITY’s risks in form 
subject to the approval of the AUTHORITY’s Attorney and/or 
AUTHORITY’s Risk Manager. The minimum amounts of coverage 
corresponding to the aforesaid categories of insurance per insurable 
event shall be as follows: 

 
Insurance Category   Minimum Limits 

 
Workers’ Compensation statutory minimum 

 
Employer’s Liability $1,000,000 per accident for 

bodily injury or disease 
 

Commercial General $1,000,000 per occurrence and  
Liability $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily 

injury, personal injury and 
property damage 

 
Automobile Liability $1,000,000 per accident for 

bodily injury and property 
damage (coverage required to 
the extent applicable to  
VENDOR’s vehicle usage in  
performing services hereunder) 

 
It shall be a requirement under this Agreement that any available 
insurance proceeds broader than or in excess of the specified minimum 
insurance coverage requirements and/or limits shall be available to the 
AUTHORITY as an Additional Insured.  Furthermore, the requirements for 
coverage and limits shall be the greater of either (1) the minimum 
coverage and limits specified in this Agreement or (2) the broader 
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coverage and maximum limits of coverage of any insurance policy or 
proceeds available to the named Insured.  

VENDOR agrees to include with all subcontractors in their subcontracts 
the same requirements and provisions of this agreement including the 
indemnity and insurance requirements to the extent they apply to the 
scope of the subcontractor’s work.  Subcontractors hired by VENDOR 
shall agree to be bound to VENDOR and AUTHORITY in the same 
manner and to the same extent as VENDOR is bound to AUTHORITY 
under this Agreement and its accompanying documents.  Subcontractors 
shall further agree to include these same provisions with any sub-
subcontractors.  A copy of the indemnity and insurance provisions of this 
Agreement will be furnished to the Subcontractor upon request.  VENDOR 
shall require all subcontractors to provide a valid certificate of insurance 
and the required endorsements included in the subcontract agreement 
and will provide proof of compliance to the AUTHORITY prior to 
commencement of any work by the subcontractor. 

Concurrently with the execution of this Agreement, VENDOR shall, on the 
Insurance Coverage form provided in Exhibit D, or equivalent, furnish 
AUTHORITY with certificates and copies of all declaration and 
endorsement pages for the insurance policy or policies required 
hereunder.  With respect to commercial general liability and automobile 
liability insurance coverage, VENDOR must obtain and provide the 
following original endorsements: 

(a) Precluding cancellation or reduction in per occurrence limits before
the expiration of thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment) after
AUTHORITY shall have received written notification of cancellation
in coverage or reduction in per occurrence limits by first class mail;

(b) Naming the AUTHORITY, its boards, officers, employees and
agents, as additional insureds; and

(c) Providing the additional insured coverage under VENDOR’s
insurance policy shall be primary and non-contributory insurance
with respect to AUTHORITY, its boards, officers, employees and
agents, and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
AUTHORITY for itself, its officers, boards, employees, or agents
shall be in excess of VENDOR’s insurance and not contributory
with it.  VENDOR and its insurer may not seek contribution from
AUTHORITY’s insurance or self-insurance.

The limits of insurance required in this agreement may be satisfied by a 
combination of primary and umbrella or excess insurance.  Any umbrella 
or excess insurance shall contain or be endorsed to contain a provision 
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that such coverage shall also apply on a primary and non-contributory 
basis for the benefit of AUTHORITY, to the extent required by this 
Agreement, before the AUTHORITY’s insurance or self-insurance may be 
called upon to protect AUTHORITY as a named Insured. 
 
All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to AUTHORITY for 
approval and shall not reduce the limits of liability coverage.  Policies 
containing and SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to provide that 
the SIR may be satisfied by either the named VENDOR/Named Insured or 
AUTHORITY.   
 
AUTHORITY reserves the right to obtain a full certified copy of any 
insurance policy and endorsements.  Failure to exercise this right shall not 
constitute a waiver of right to exercise later. 
 
Any and all Subcontractors shall agree to be bound to VENDOR and 
AUTHORITY in the same manner and to the same extent as VENDOR is 
bound to AUTHORITY under this Agreement.  Subcontractors shall further 
agree to include the same requirements and provisions of this Agreement, 
including the indemnity and insurance requirements, in any agreement 
with sub-subcontractors to the extent that they apply to the scope of the 
sub-subcontractor’s work.  A copy of the indemnity and insurance 
provisions of this Agreement shall be furnished to any subcontractor upon 
request. 
 
VENDOR shall maintain insurance as required by this Agreement to the 
fullest amount allowed by law and shall maintain insurance for a minimum 
of five (5) years following completion of this project or service.  In the 
event VENDOR fails to obtain or maintain completed operations coverage 
as required by this Agreement, the AUTHORITY at its sole discretion may 
purchase the coverage required and the cost will be paid by VENDOR. 
 

12. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.  VENDOR certifies that he is aware of the 
provisions of the Labor Code of the State of California which require every 
employer to be insured against liability for workers' compensation or to 
undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions of that Code, 
and VENDOR certifies that he will comply with such provisions before 
commencing the performance of the work of this agreement. 

 
13. NON-DISCRIMINATION.  The VENDOR will not discriminate against any 

employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex 
or national origin.  The VENDOR will take affirmative action to ensure that 
applicants are employed and the employees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex or national 
origin.  Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:  
employment, advancement, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment 
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advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of 
compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  The 
VENDOR shall at all times be in compliance with the requirements of the 
Federal Americans With Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336) which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability by public entities.  The 
VENDOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees 
and applicants for employment any notices provided by the AUTHORITY 
setting forth the provisions of this non-discrimination clause. 

14. Notice.  All notices required by this Agreement shall be given to the
AUTHORITY and VENDOR in writing, by first class mail, postage prepaid,
addressed as follows:

AUTHORITY: Rethink Waste 
610 Elm St, Suite 202 
San Carlos, CA 94070 
Attention: Grant Ligon, Management Analyst 
Emi Hashizume, Environmental Education 
Manager 

VENDOR: Royal Coach Tours, Inc. 
630 Stockton Ave. 
San Jose, CA 95126 
Attention: Lynee Cradduck, Sales Manager 

15. Non-Assignment.  This Agreement is not assignable either in whole or in
part. 

16. Amendments.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by
written agreement signed by both parties.

17. Validity.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this
Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this
Agreement.

18. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of California and any suit or action initiated by either party shall be
brought in the County of San Mateo, California.  In the event of litigation
between the parties hereto to enforce any provision of the Agreement, the
unsuccessful party will pay the reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses
of litigation of the successful party.

19. Mediation.  Should any dispute arise out of this Agreement, the parties
shall meet in mediation and attempt to reach a resolution with the
assistance of a mutually acceptable mediator.  Neither party shall be
permitted to file legal action without first meeting in mediation and making
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a good faith attempt to reach a mediated resolution.  The costs of the 
mediator, if any, shall be paid equally by the parties.  If a mediated 
settlement is reached neither party shall be deemed the prevailing party 
for purposes of the settlement and each party shall bear its own legal 
costs. 

 
20. Conflict of Interest.  VENDOR may serve other clients, but none that 

would place VENDOR in a "conflict of interest" as that term is defined in 
State law. 

 
21. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B C, and D, 

comprises the entire Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed on the date first above written by their respective officers duly authorized in 
that behalf. 
 

SOUTH BAYSIDE WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
 
Dated:                                    _________________________________ 

Joe LaMariana, Executive Director 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 

Dated:                                    ________________________________ 
Cyndi Urman, Board Secretary  

 
 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
Dated:                                       

Jean Savaree, Legal Counsel 
 
 

VENDOR 
 
Dated:                                       

Lynee Cradduck, Sales Manager 
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EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK AND SCHEDULE FOR 
BUS TRANSPORATION SERVICES 

Scope of Deliverables and Services: 

The services to be performed by VENDOR under this Agreement are outlined in the 
Scope of Work (see below). Performance of the work specified in the Scope of Work is 
hereby made an obligation of VENDOR under this Agreement, subject to any changes 
that may be made subsequently hereto upon the mutual written agreement of 
AUTHORITY and VENDOR. 

Project Schedule: 

Busing services shall be scheduled as needed. The term of this Agreement shall 
commence on or around January 31st, 2020 and terminate on December 31st, 2020. At 
most around seven bus trips per week will be required, or which half would need pick-up 
from schools at 8:45am and then from Shoreway at 11am (after morning tour ends). 
The other half would need pick-up from schools at 11:45am and from Shoreway at 2pm 
(after afternoon tour ends). 

Scope of Work: 

Royal Coach Tours, Inc. (herein VENDOR) will provide bus transportation to and from 
the Shoreway Environmental Education Center, located at 333 Shoreway Road San 
Carlos, California from schools located within the South Bayside Waste Management’s 
(herein SBWMA) service area. Member agencies include the cities of Belmont, 
Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos and 
San Mateo, the towns of Atherton and Hillsborough, the County of San Mateo and the 
West Bay Sanitary District. 

Buses will be scheduled as needed. The Environmental Education Manager, or 
designee, will contact VENDOR to make busing arrangements no less than a week in 
advance of the planned event. The Environmental Education Manager will provide email 
or phone call requests and/or changes to scheduling of buses. The Environmental 
Education Manager will provide pick up and drop off times for scheduled buses. 
VENDOR will provide written/email confirmation of all scheduled requests two weeks 
before the scheduled bus trips or within one week of request, with confirmation emails 
to include the name of the driver. If less than seven days prior notice has not been given 
on cancellation of bus service scheduled pursuant to this agreement, SBWMA will pay 
the full applicable charge (busing service charge) to VENDOR. 

If VENDOR cancels bus service without 24 hours’ notice to the Environmental 
Education Manager, VENDOR will arrange for comparable bus service from another 
provider at no added cost to SBWMA and will immediately notify the Environmental 
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Education Manager. If alternate bus service cannot be provided, or if a scheduled 
pickup or drop off is more than 30 minutes late, SBWMA and the affected school will 
incur costs to reschedule classroom activities, loss of staff time, and inconvenience to 
the public served by the SBWMA’s programs. As a remedy of VENDOR’s failure to 
provide service, the VENDOR will, at SBWMA’s discretion either: (1) provide bus 
services on an alternative date selected by SBWMA at no charge to SBWMA or; (2) pay 
liquidated damages to the SBWMA in an amount equal to busing services charge.   
If VENDOR driver expects to arrive at the pre-scheduled school site later than 15 
minutes after the appointed time, VENDOR will notify the Environmental Education 
Manager and school site with estimated time of arrival. If no such notification has been 
received, buses arriving later than 30 minutes after the appointed time will be 
considered to have been cancelled by VENDOR without 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Tours to the Environmental Education Center are provided to schools throughout the 12 
Member Agencies of SBWMA and multiple tours may occur on the same day. This will 
require that VENDOR provide two individual buses on such days. All buses provided by 
VENDOR shall be in good working order and equipped to provide the bus transportation 
services required by this Agreement.  
 
Certifications: 
1. Each bus used by VENDOR that is providing bus transportation services 
pursuant to this Agreement must be currently certified by the California Highway Patrol 
as a School Pupil Activity Bus (SPAB) and must possess and display its SPAB 
certificate as required by law. 
 
2. VENDOR motor carrier terminals and maintenance facilities shall maintain, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, a safety compliance rating of Satisfactory, as 
assigned by the California Highway Patrol (CHP). A current copy of your CHP rating 
report shall be forwarded to the Environmental Education Manager.  
 
3. VENDOR shall notify SBWMA in writing within 24 hours of any change in status 
or of change rating assigned by the California Highway Patrol to VENDOR’s motor 
carrier terminals and maintenance. Failure to keep the agencies informed of your rating 
can void any and all agreements between SBWMA and VENDOR.  VENDOR will not 
receive compensation for any remaining trips due to an unsatisfactory rating with the 
California Highway Patrol. 
 
4. Upon request by SBWMA at any time after this agreement, VENDOR shall 
immediately deliver to SBWMA copies of any and all certificates or inspection reports 
required by this Section and the California Highway Patrol. 
 
5. Upon request by SBWMA or school officials, including teachers, at any time 
immediately before, during or after a scheduled field trip, drivers employed by VENDOR 
to provide bus transportation service pursuant to this Agreement shall immediately 
produce for inspection valid evidence of their current certification to drive a School Pupil 
Activity Bus. 

_________________________________________________ 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020

____________________________________________________ __________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM: 12A EXHIBIT A - p10

FULL PACKET PAGE 204 of 265



11 

EXHIBIT B 

VENDOR’S FEES and PAYMENT MILESTONES 

Summary 

Total Contract Services: 

Payment under this Agreement shall be as per Exhibit A, not to exceed $30,000 per 
year. 

Itemized Fees: 

VENDOR will submit invoices to SBWMA for payment of serviced tours. The amount for 
each bus trip will be $480 for below or up to a 3 hour (minimum), plus $110 per hour in 
excess of 3 hours per bus trip. Trip is defined as the time from pick-up at school to drop-
off back at school.  

Project Payment Schedule 

Company will submit invoices to SBWMA for payment of serviced tours on a monthly 
basis (or within 2 months of each bus trip), using the sample invoice template provided 
below. The amounts for each bus trip are outlined above. 

Items highlighted yellow must be included on the invoice for approval; format of invoice is just 
a sample 

INVOICE 
Vendor Name 

Address 
City State Zip 

Phone Number 
        Date: ________ 

Project Number: ___________ 
Invoice Number: ___________ 

RethinkWaste 
Attn: Emi Hashizume, Environmental Education Manager 
610 Elm Street, Suite 202 
San Carlos, CA 94070 

SBWMA Project: Tours Bus Service Purchase Order Number: PO Number 
Invoice for Professional Services from 1/1/20 to 12/31/20 

TASK 1 TITLE/Description e.g. trip date, number of passengers, School and pickup/arrival times 
Professional Personnel: Hours: Rate: Amount: 
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 John Doe   1.5  $200.00 $300.00 
 Jane Smith   1.0  $100.00 $100.00 

TOTALS:   2.0    $400.00 
 
      TOTAL THIS TASK: $400 

TASK 2 TITLE/Description 
Professional Personnel:  Hours:  Rate:  Amount: 

 John Doe   3.0  $200.00 $600.00 
 TOTALS:   3.0    $600.00 

 
      TOTAL THIS TASK: $600.00 
 

TOTAL THIS INVOICE $1,000.00 
 
BILLING LIMITS: 
Total Contract 
Amount   $30,000.00 
Prior Invoices 0% $0.00 
Current Contract 
Balance  100% $30,000.00 
This Invoice e.g 10% $3,000.00 
Contract Balance e.g. 90% $27,000.00 
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EXHIBIT C 
ADDITIONAL TERMS and CONDITIONS 

ROYAL COACH TOURS PROPOSAL AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
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Statement of Qualifications in 

Response to                                        

South Bay Waste Management 

Authority 
 
 

  

 

 

School Tours Bus Transportation Services 

 
 

 

 
 

 
South Bay Waste Management Authority 
Grant Ligon | gligon@rethingwaste.org  
610 Elm St., Suite 202, San Carlos, CA 94070 
 
Royal Coach Tours Inc.   DOT # 164777  
Lynee Cradduck | Lynee@royal-coach.com  
630 Stockton Ave., San Jose, CA 95126 
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1/14/2020 
 
 
 
RE: Request for Proposal 

 
 
Dear Grant, 

 

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to submit a proposal to provide transportation 

for SBWMA. 

 

If we are awarded this opportunity, we are committed to providing you all of your Bus 

Shuttle needs at competitive prices and with world class customer service. The enclosed 

proposal details how we can meet the requirements as outlined in the Request for 

Proposal.  

 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 

 
 
Greg Gallup 
Chief Executive Officer 
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The mission of Royal Coach Tours is to provide top quality transportation service delivered with the highest 
standards in customer service, safety, and care in the San Francisco/Bay Area and Las Vegas. 

ROYAL COACH TOURS 

630 Stockton Ave. 
San Jose, CA  95126 
Web: www.Royal-Coach.com 
DOT # 164777 
EID # 94-2507755 

Sales Manager: Lynee Cradduck 
Email: Lynee@royal-coach.com 
Phone: 408.279.4801 
Fax: 408.286.1410 

Company history 

In the year 1960 founder Joanne Smith and husband purchased their very first 37 passenger motor coach, operating a commuter service from Fremont 
to Lockheed Missiles and Space Company in Sunnyvale. After running successful commuter services, two years later, they decided to transition into 
the charter bus business, hence the birth of Smith Charter Service. 
With the dramatic growth of the Bay Area, came the growth of Smith Charter Service. In late 1970 Joanne Smith changed the company name to 
Royal Coach Tours, a title that would convey to its clients the type of service which her company offered, the first-class Royal treatment. With the 
successful business practices and operations of Royal Coach Tours, the torch was passed to her two children Sandy Allen and Dan Smith, together 
building growth and introducing the charter bus industry with a new level of service.  In October 2017, Royal Coach tours has expanded into Las 
Vegas.  

Approach to scope of services 

Royal Coach Tours houses the largest and most modern fleet of motor-coach buses in the area, with a large variety of sizes and floor plans to select 
from. Whether your needs call for a day charter, split shifts or multiple motor-coaches for shuttle transportation we have the equipment and 
experience to make your event a success. Our fleet of vehicles includes two 14 passenger shuttle vans, one 23 passenger minibuses, two 38 passenger 
motor-coaches, two 48 passenger motor-coaches and eighteen 56 passenger motor-coaches. In addition, we have one 22 passenger specialty luxury 
coach with open seating.  For weekend only trips, we have twenty 50 passenger executive motor-coaches and ten additional 14 passenger shuttle vans.  
For pictures of our fleet, please check out our website http://www.royal-coach.com/fleet/. 

It all starts with the drivers: 

Royal coach Tours has over 70 drivers with 35 SPAB certified drivers.  Before any motor-coach operator or driver is considered for hire, they must 
first pass our rigorous screening process along with our behind-the-wheel performance analysis.  

  Drivers are screened for:    Drivers are trained on: 

• Drug & Alcohol (ongoing and random) 

• Driving Record (DMV pull notice, ongoing) 

• Past Employers 

• Assessment Test

• Pre & post vehicle inspection 

• Defensive driving techniques 

• Minor mechanical diagnostics 

• Adverse road condition 

• DOT Rules and Regulations 
Drivers are interviewed by our General Manager and Director of Human Resources. They also do a behind-the-wheel road test with our full-time on-
site State Certified SPAB Trainer.  The General Manager, Director of Human Resources and State Certified SPAB Trainer also meet to discuss how 
to proceed with all applicants. During the interview process, all potential drivers must pass an online JOBehaviors assessment 
(http://www.jobehaviors.com/) which is predictive of successful traits of our most experienced drivers.   Drivers are required to complete roughly 40 
hours (16 modules) of online driver safety training through IMG (International Motor Group Association).  In addition, we have a full-time on-site 
State Certified SPAB Trainer that conducts all of their proficiency / driver training.  The behind-the-wheel may vary based on driver experience level.  
All drivers are signed-off on training for different models of coaches.  Drivers receive training information on safety regulations, drug and alcohol 
testing and company policies.  The drivers go through the entry-level driver training that includes driver qualification requirements, drivers’ hours of 
service, driver wellness and whistle blower protection.  During the hiring process, all drivers go through a behind-the-wheel driving test with our 
State Certified SPAB Trainer to access their proficiency levels. At the completion of their training, new drivers receive a New Driver Certificate. We 
have driver meetings every other month to review specific training and updates.  We have remedial training for any driver that was involved in an 
accident or unsafe behavior.  

Safety meets technology: 

Our commitment towards safety can be exemplified though our award-winning safety management department, because to us, safety is not a concept 
it’s our culture.  When the cargo is people, safety is top priority, which is why we keep miles ahead of the industry when it comes to safety integrated 
technologies; such as: 

• Event Data Recorders 

• Fire Suppression System 

• Tire Pressure & Temperature Monitoring System 

• All passengers are shown a Pre-Trip safety video that explains all of the emergency exits, how to evacuate in case of an emergency, what
to do for different emergencies including locations of exits and fire extinguishers. 

Awards and Achievements 

• IMG 2018-2019 Operator of the Year 

• CHP 2017 STAR Award for Safety 

• 2015 Outstanding Maintenance Award 

• Stellar Safety Record from the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Association (FMCSA) 

• Certified Carrier by the Department of Defense 
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A look into our garage 

We pride ourselves behind the great facility we have built to support our goal of providing the highest level of mechanically sound vehicles for our 
passengers.  We keep your motor-coaches running safe by: 

• Housing our maintenance shop in a 13,000sq foot facility 

• Having five full sized, fully equipped mechanical bays 

• Employing certified and trained mechanics (with 100+ years of combined  
experience) 

• Housing our own tire and fabrication sectors 

• Supply our mechanics with the most advanced and complete resources for work 
 
Our maintenance program 

In the continued stride of ensuring top performance of all buses and vehicles, our award-winning maintenance department performs rigorous 
preventative practices throughout the entire fleet on a regularly scheduled inspection program.  We received Outstanding Maintenance Person (Steve 
Reseck) for 2015. 
 
Absences and backup coverage 

We have assigned backup vehicles available in case of breakdowns, along with a support staff on-site to leave within 5 minutes to rescue the broken-
down coach.  
 
Monitoring 

Our vehicles are equipped with Saucon, GPS, WIFI and Rosco Camera Systems to monitor Driver behavior.  
 
Dispatch 

• Our Dispatch Center is located at 630 Stockton Ave., San Jose, CA  95126 
o Charter Dispatch Hours of Operations are 8:00am - 5:00pm 
o 24-hour on-call Dispatch 

• Dispatch and Operations communicate via AT&T handheld devices that are mounted in each coach. 
 
Go green 

We at Royal Coach Tours have taken part in becoming environmentally friendly, constantly developing new and strategic business practice to 
promote sustainability. We understand the value of our environment and natural resources which is why we have taken part to become your Green 
Charter Bus Company provider. 
Why riding with us is a breath of fresh air 

• 60% of U.S. carbon emissions over the last 20 years come from passenger cars alone. 

• A single occupant vehicle achieves 28 passenger miles per gallon on highways. 

• On average, our charter buses transport 336 passengers’ miles per gallon of fuel. 
Clean-diesel engine technology 

We’ve cut particulate matter (black smoke) by 90 percent and reduced our nitrogen oxide output by 52 percent by: 

•   Installing diesel particulate filters to all later model coaches. 

•   Using Bio-Diesel blends for all motor coaches. 
Other ways we stay clean 

•   Minimize fuel consumption with tire pressure monitoring systems. 

•   Subscribed to our tire manufacturer’s recycling program. 

•   Process and recycle residual waste. 

•   Implemented recycling program in-house. 

•   Use of LED lighting. 

•   Minimize idle time with GPS monitoring. 
Customer service  

24/7 Contacts  
Royal Coach Tours has an experienced staff ready to assist you with all of your requests or concerns.   

• Our Main Office number is (408) 279-4801,  Mon–Fri: 8am –5pm 

• Our Dispatch phone number is (408) 477-2020, Mon–Fri:  5am –730pm 

• Our Night and Weekend on-call Manager’s phone number is (408) 640-6248, Mon– Fri: 730pm–5am and Sat–Sun: 24/7 
 
Customer Survey 
To ensure that we are satisfying your needs, we have created a Royal Coach Tours Customer Survey that we send out regularly.  If adjustments are 
needed, our team works with management to resolve the issue.  We are currently rated at an 87 NPS (Net Promoter Score).  
      Escalations          Quality Assurance 

• All Customer Concerns are addressed immediately.   

• Email notifications are sent out to all managers.   

• Our team works together to asses and resolve all incidents. 

• Our management team will do a formal review. 

• All concerns are followed up with a Resolution or Action Plan.  

• California Highway Patrol – yearly inspections 

• Daecher Consulting through our insurance company – 
yearly audits 

• Department of Defense – biyearly inspections 

• Internal Q/A – ongoing  
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References- 

Red Chair Events 
Peggy Smith 
peggy.smith@redchairevents.com 
707-766-7005

NVIDIA 
Michelle Hughes 
mhughes@nvidia.com 
650-823-3195

Singularity 
Carlos Oporta 
carlos.oporta@singularityu.org 
408-416-1336

Pac-12 Conference 
Dave Lucero 
dlucero@pac-12.org 
415-549-2857

Stanford University 
Danny Finale 
dfinale@stanford.edu 
650-724-9339
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Insurance – If awarded the contract, we will add your company as additional insured with waivers. 
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PROPOSED COST- 

*Quotations do not guarantee availability.

*Price is subject to change pending final itinerary. Quote is based on time stated and/or mileage

allowance. Should the charter exceed these, additional charges will apply.

*Exact itinerary must be provided for route verification and final rate. Route Verification is required to

check for any bus restrictions to your locations.*

*Group is responsible for parking, tolls, airport & entry fees not listed on itinerary.

3 hour minimum Miles Covered Each Additional 

Hour after 

Minimum 

Additional 

Miles per hour 

Covered 

Rate/Mile for 

additional 

miles and 

deadhead 

56 Passenger 

Coach 

$480 110 $110 20 miles $6.45 
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S.P.A.B. Terms and Conditions-

S.P.A.B Acronym for School Pupil Activity Bus. This certification is required in the state of California to carry California-based school 

students in a commercial motor vehicle. 

• Hours of Service Drivers cannot drive more than 10 hours within a work period. Drivers cannot be on-duty more than 16 consecutive hours in a
work period, which begins from the report time at the yard. It is RCT Company Policy that drivers are provided w/ a private room for any service
exceeding 14 hours and must be left uninterrupted for not less than 8.5 hours before reporting back to on-duty status. It is RCT Safety Policy that 
trips (300) miles or greater cannot depart between the hours of 10pm to 4am.

• Child Safety Alert Systems While we are exempt from having the alert system, the chaperone must comply with California Vehicle Code Section
28160.  Please review attachment before signing the terms to acknowledge your understanding and responsibilities.

• Chaperones RCT Company Policy requires a minimum of (2) Chaperones over the age of 18 years old on all SPAB moves. (1) Chaperone is to be
seated in front and (1) Chaperone is to be seated in the rear while coach is in motion. In the case of an unruly pupil, the pupil must be given into
the custody of a parent or any person designated by the parent or school. It is at the driver’s discretion whether or not to involve the CHP if a
problem persists.

• Standing on Coach Vehicle cannot be put in motion until all passengers are seated and all passengers must remain seated while coach is in motion.
Students may not use the restroom on board the coach unless the vehicle can pull into an area deemed safe by the driver and is at a complete stop.

• Idling Vehicles Vehicles cannot be running while passengers are loading or unloading. In addition, vehicles cannot idle when passengers are on
board unless the driver is seated.

• Stops Only pre-designated stops can be allowed on SPAB moves. All stops must be designated by the school district’s superintendent, or a person
representing the superintendent. These stops must be included in a complete itinerary and must be submitted in writing prior to the trip. All
itineraries are subject to approval by the RCT Safety Department prior to the trip departure.

#1-Equipment-All vehicles are equipped with amenities such as AC/Heat and PA/Microphone system. All vehicles, excluding our Executive series 

vehicles, are equipped with amenities such as Wi-Fi and CD/DVD player. The fee for Wi-Fi is $27 per coach, charter. Please keep in mind that in certain 

areas, Wi-Fi strength may not be that strong. There is no additional fee for amenities such as CD/DVD’s and microphones; therefore, we do 

not guarantee requests. CD/DVD players may not play non-copyrighted material. RCT reserves the right to substitute similar equipment from our fleet or 

other charter bus companies when necessary.  
#2-Booking Policy-Charter orders can be placed by telephone, fax, or email. A payment is required at time of booking. Customers will receive an e-mail or fax of the 

charter confirmation as acknowledgement of their order. An on-site dispatcher is recommended for orders of 10 vehicles or more. A $25 booking fee will be charged for 

each parking permit or entrance fee etc. that RCT obtains on behalf of the Client. 

#3-Payment Policy- Full payment is due three (3) weeks prior to the service date.  If service is less than (3) weeks away, payment is due in full at the 

time of booking. Original trip confirmations are estimated charges. Charters will be billed for the amount of time or miles (whichever greater) the 

vehicle was booked regardless if the trip returns early. Charter may be subject to additional charges such as overtime, mileage overages, and 

miscellaneous fees such as bridge tolls and entrance fees. These charges will be billed and paid separately and will be provided to the client no later 

than five (5) business days after services rendered. RCT will not be responsible for delays due to heavy traffic, accidents, severe weather, or any other 

“Acts of God”. RCT is not responsible for any losses other than the cost of the charter should an appointed time or event scheduled by the group be 

missed due to any fault of RCT. All legal fees incurred by RCT are the responsibility of the chartering client and/or booking agent.  Please note that a 

3% non-refundable processing fee will be applied when paying with a credit card. Final invoices will come from rct@just4relay.com.  Please add us 

to your address book, contacts, and/ or "Safe Senders" list to avoid spam delays.    

#4-Cancellation Policy- Cancellations/rescheduled trips made fourteen (14) days or more prior to the service will be fully-refunded. If those are made seven (7) or more 
days prior to service, the expenditure will be credited for future use. If those are made less than seven (7) days prior to service, they will be non-refundable.
#5-Change Policy - Any time changes made 48 hours prior to the charter are subject to a $25.00 minimum change fee per bus.  Any date changes are 

subject to a minimum $250 fee, subject to #4's conditions.  Changes made 24 hours or less are subject to $250 minimum fee per bus up to full charge. 

#6-Additional Cleaning Fees- It is the chartering party’s responsibility to notify RCT in advance when there will be food/beverage and/or alcohol 

brought on board the coach. A minimum charge of $300 may be applied if the vehicle requires anything more than normal cleaning at the end of 

service.  No objects may be placed in the aisle while the coach is in motion. All drinks must be placed in a regular ice chest that does not leak and 

placed in a seat that has been properly protected. The space taken up by the ice chest must be figured into the total passenger count. There is no 

smoking allowed on any RCT vehicle at any time. Depending on the circumstance, a minimum of $500 will be charged for vomit on board a vehicle. 

#7-Damages-RCT inspects each vehicle before, during, and after each charter. In the event of damage to the vehicle, Client/Booking Agent 

assumes full financial liability for the cost of repairing any harm and damage caused by the client or any members in the client’s party during the 

service. Client is responsible for damages incurred to the vehicle caused by the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of the group, any 

individual from the group, or any other party that the group is involved with in any way. This includes both interior and exterior damage to repair, 

replace, and clean vehicle or any parts of vehicle. The cost of repairing, restoring, or otherwise remediating any damage to a vehicle caused by 

client may be charged to such client’s credit card on file or billed directly to such client, without prior notice. Additional fees may be charged to cover 

damages at the company’s discretion.  

#8-Driver Room-Client/booking agent is responsible for securing and paying for the driver’s lodging on any overnight charter, or mileage service if 
the driver runs out of hours. (1) Room per driver is required. Room must be within (5) miles of where the group is staying, and the hotel must have 
adequate bus parking on site or within the vicinity. Additional charges may apply if the driver’s room is further than (5) miles away. Rooms must be 
of average quality, include private restroom, and are subject to the approval of RCT (no cabins are permitted). A per diem minimum of $225 per night, 
per driver will apply if requirement is not met. If Client wants RCT to book the driver room, a $25 booking fee (per reservation) will be 
added to the charter. 
#9-Lost and Found-RCT is not responsible for any lost items.  The chartering party should check for any items left on the vehicle before exiting. If RCT 
finds an item at the conclusion of the trip, client is responsible for the cost of shipping to return item as well as a minimum $25.00 processing fee. 
Items may be picked up at our office during regular office hours.  
#10-Emergency Contact Information-A RCT representative is available twenty-four hours a day, seven days a week for emergencies by calling 
408-279-4801 and choosing Option (4). Our dispatch hours are 5:30am to 7:30pm Monday through Friday. 
#11-Unsafe Pick-up and Drop off location-It is the driver’s responsibility to make sure the passengers get to their destination safely. Therefore, the 
driver has the ultimate decision on where he/she deems it safe for pickup and drop-off locations. 
#12-ADA Coach Requests- A minimum of forty-eight (48) hour notification prior to a charter date is required by the ADA if wheelchair accessible 
equipment is needed. 
#13-Gratuities- 10% is customary for good service and can be added, adjusted or removed at your discretion. 
#14-Credits and Refunds- When credit/refund is due for service, it will be based on standard rates and all discounts will be subtracted from refund amt.
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EXHIBIT D (included in Exhibit C) 
This INSURANCE COVERAGE FORM modifies or documents insurance provided under the following: 
Named Insured:        Effective Work Date(s):  
Description of Work/Locations/Vehicles:  
ADDITIONAL INSURED: South Bayside Waste Management Authority (AUTHORITY) 

610 Elm St, Ste 202, San Carlos, CA 94070 
Attention:  Grant Ligon 

Management Analyst (Contracts Administrator) 
Endorsement and Certificates of Insurance Required 

The Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees 
and volunteers are included as insureds with regard to damages and defense 
of claims arising from: (Check all that apply)

Insurer Policy 
No. 

General Liability:  (a) activities performed by or on behalf of the Named 
Insured, (b) products and completed operations of the Named Insured, (c) 
premises owned, leased occupied or used by the Named Insured, and/or (d) 
permits issued for operations performed by the Named Insured. {Note:  
MEETS OR EXCEEDS ISO Form # CG 20 10 11 85} 

Auto Liability: the ownership, operation, maintenance, use, loading or 
unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Named 
Insured, regardless of whether liability is attributable to the Named Insured or 
a combination of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured, its elected 
or appointed officers, officials, employees or volunteers. 

Other: 
Certificates of Insurance Required (no endorsement needed) (Check all that apply) Insurer Policy 

No. 
Workers Compensation: work performed by employees of the Named 
Insured while those employees are engaged in work under the simultaneous 
directions and control of the Named Insured and the Additional Insured. 

Professional Liability: 

PRIMARY/NON-CONTRIBUTORY:  This insurance is primary and is not additional to or contributing with any other insurance carried by or 
for the benefit of Additional Insureds. 

SEVERABILITY OF INTEREST: The insurance afforded by this policy applies separately to each insured who is seeking coverage or 
against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect to the insurer’s limit of liability. 

PROVISIONS REGARDING THE INSURED'S DUTIES AFTER ACCIDENT OR LOSS: Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of 
the policy shall not affect coverage provided to the Additional Insured, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or volunteers. 

CANCELLATION NOTICE.  The insurance afforded by this policy shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage or in 
limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice (ten (10) days if canceled due to non-payment) by regular mail return receipt 
requested has been given to the Additional Insured.  Such notice shall be addressed as shown above. 

WAIVER OF SUBROGATION: The insurer(s) named above agree to waive all rights of subrogation against the AUTHORITY, its elected or 
appointed officers, officials, agents, volunteers and employees for losses paid under the terms of this policy which arise from work 
performed by the Named Insured for the AUTHORITY. 

Nothing herein contained shall vary, alter or extend any provision or condition of the Policy other than as above stated. 
SIGNATURE OF INSURER OR AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF THE INSURER 

I, ___________________________________________________________(print/type name), warrant that I have authority to bind the 
above-named insurance company and by my signature hereon do so bind this company. 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (original signature required) 

ORGANIZATION:         TITLE: 

ADDRESS:  

TELEPHONE:  (            ) DATE ISSUED:  
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RethinkWaste RFP for School Tours Bus Transportation Services 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

SCHOOL TOURS BUS TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

Issued: January 6, 2020 

Submission Deadline: January 14, 2020, 12:00 PM 

South Bayside Waste Management Authority (SBWMA) / RethinkWaste 
Attention: Grant Ligon, Management Analyst 

610 Elm Street, Suite 202 
San Carlos, CA 94070 

gligon@rethinkwaste.org  
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RethinkWaste RFP for School Tours Bus Transportation Services             Page 2 

1. BACKGROUND  
 
The South Bayside Waste Management Authority (dba “RethinkWaste”) is a Joint Powers Authority of 
twelve public Member Agencies (Atherton, Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Hillsborough, 
Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos, San Mateo, the County of San Mateo and the West Bay Sanitary 
District) in San Mateo County, California formed in 1999.  
 
RethinkWaste owns and manages the Shoreway Environmental Center, which receives all the recyclables, 
organic materials, and garbage collected in its service area. RethinkWaste also provides strategic 
oversight, support, and management of service providers that collect, process, recycle, and dispose of 
materials for the 12 Member Agencies.  
 
The mission of RethinkWaste is to cost effectively design, implement, and manage innovative waste 
reduction and recycling programs and facility infrastructure that fulfills our fiduciary responsibilities to our 
Member Agencies while achieving community environmental and economic goals.  
 
Through issuance of this Request for Proposals (RFP), RethinkWaste seeks an experienced and qualified 
firm to execute transportation by bus of students to and from Member Agencies’ schools to the Shoreway 
Environmental Center for tours. 
 
Submittals to RethinkWaste will be considered public records and will be made available for public review 
upon request after conclusion of this RFP process and contract execution.  Please refer to Section 3 for the 
specific scope of services being requested. 
 
2. PURPOSE AND GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
This RFP provides information for interested firms to prepare a written proposal. 
 
ADDENDUMS. Should it be necessary for RethinkWaste to issue addendums during the proposal period, 
RethinkWaste will endeavor to notify the known holders of this RFP. The addendums will be posted on 
RethinkWaste’s web site for any interested parties to review. Proposals should include a notation that the 
firm is aware of all the addendums which have been issued and has incorporated their provisions in their 
proposal.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. RethinkWaste reserves the right to request additional information or 
clarification from proposers where it may serve RethinkWaste’s best interest.  
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES. The Scope of Work describes the minimum work to be accomplished. Upon final 
selection of the firm, the Scope of Work may be modified and refined during negotiations with 
RethinkWaste.  
 
AWARD OF PROPOSAL. RethinkWaste reserves the right to negotiate final terms with the selected firm, if 
any. Award may be made to the firm offering the most advantageous proposal after consideration of all 
evaluation criteria.  
 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. All proposals shall comply with current federal, state, and other laws relative 
thereto.  
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CANCELLATION OF SOLICITATION. RethinkWaste may cancel this solicitation at any time. 

COSTS. RethinkWaste is not liable for any costs incurred by firms before entering into a formal contract. 
Costs of developing the proposals, or any other such expenses incurred by the firm in responding to this 
RFP, are entirely the responsibility of the firm, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner by 
RethinkWaste. No reimbursable cost may be incurred in anticipation of award.  

IRREGULARITIES. RethinkWaste reserves the right to waive non-material irregularities if such would be in 
the best interest of RethinkWaste as determined by the Executive Director.  

NON-DISCRIMINATION. The firm submitting a proposal must represent and warrant that it does not and 
will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, gender, 
color, national origin, sexual orientation, ancestry, marital status, physical condition, pregnancy or 
pregnancy related conditions, political affiliation or opinion, age or medical condition.  

NO OBLIGATION. The release of this RFP does not obligate or compel RethinkWaste to enter into a 
contract or agreement. 

OWNERSHIP. All data, documents, and other products used or developed during the RFP process become 
the property of RethinkWaste upon submission.  

PROPOSAL, REJECTION OF. RethinkWaste reserves the right to reject any or all proposals or any part of 
a proposal.  

PUBLIC RECORD. All proposals submitted in response to this RFP will become the property of 
RethinkWaste upon submittal and a matter of public record pursuant to applicable law.  

REPRESENTATIONS. The firms submitting proposals must understand and acknowledge that the 
representations made in their submitted proposal are material and important, and will be relied on by 
RethinkWaste in its evaluation. A firm’s misrepresentation shall be treated as fraudulent concealment from 
RethinkWaste of the facts relating to the proposal.  

RFP PART OF AGREEMENT. Should an agreement be awarded, this Request for Proposals may become 
part of the agreement between RethinkWaste and the successful firm.  

SEVERABILITY. If any provisions or portion of any provision of this Request for Proposals are held invalid, 
illegal, or unenforceable, they shall be severed from the Request for Proposals and the remaining 
provisions shall be valid and enforceable.  

VALIDITY. Proposals must include a statement guaranteeing that they be valid for a period of no less than 
ninety (90) days from the due date. 

3. SCOPE OF WORK

RethinkWaste seeks a firm to provide bus transportation to and from the Shoreway Environmental 
Education Center, located at 333 Shoreway Road San Carlos, California from schools located within the 
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South Bayside Waste Management’s (herein SBWMA) service area. Member agencies include the cities of 
Belmont, Burlingame, East Palo Alto, Foster City, Menlo Park, Redwood City, San Carlos and San Mateo, 
the towns of Atherton and Hillsborough, the County of San Mateo and the West Bay Sanitary District. 
 
Buses will be scheduled as needed in coordination with the Environmental Education Manager, who will 
provide pick up and drop off times for scheduled buses. The firm will provide written/email confirmation of 
all scheduled requests two weeks before the scheduled bus trips or within one week of request.  
 
If 24 hours prior notice has not been given on cancellation of bus service scheduled pursuant to this 
agreement, SBWMA will pay a busing service charge to the firm. 
 
If the firm cancels bus service without 24 hours’ notice to the Environmental Education Manager, the firm 
will arrange for comparable bus service from another provider at no added cost to SBWMA and will 
immediately notify the Environmental Education Manager. If alternate bus service cannot be provided, or if 
a scheduled pickup or drop off is more than 30 minutes late, SBWMA and the affected school will incur 
costs to reschedule classroom activities, loss of staff time, and inconvenience to the public served by the 
SBWMA’s programs. As a remedy of the firm’s failure to provide service, the firm will, at SBWMA’s 
discretion either: (1) provide bus services on an alternative date selected by SBWMA at no charge to 
SBWMA or; (2) pay liquidated damages to the SBWMA in an amount equal to busing services charge.   
If the firm’s driver expects to arrive at the pre-scheduled school site later than 15 minutes after the 
appointed time, the firm will notify the Environmental Education Manager and school site with estimated 
time of arrival. If no such notification has been received, buses arriving later than 30 minutes after the 
appointed time will be considered to have been cancelled by the firm without 24 hours’ notice. 
 
Tours to the Environmental Education Center are provided to schools throughout the 12 Member Agencies 
of SBWMA and multiple tours may occur on the same day. This will require that the firm provide two 
individual buses on such days. All buses provided by the firm shall be in good working order and equipped 
to provide the bus transportation services required.  
 
Each bus used by the firm that is providing bus transportation services pursuant to the agreement must be 
currently certified by the California Highway Patrol as a School Pupil Activity Bus (SPAB) and must possess 
and display its SPAB certificate as required by law. The firm’s motor carrier terminals and maintenance 
facilities shall maintain, throughout the term of the agreement, a safety compliance rating of Satisfactory, as 
assigned by the California Highway Patrol (CHP). A current copy of the firm’s CHP rating report shall be 
forwarded to the Environmental Education Manager. The firm shall notify SBWMA in writing within 24 hours 
of any change in status or of change rating assigned by the California Highway Patrol to the firm’s motor 
carrier terminals and maintenance. Failure to keep the agencies informed of the firm’s rating can void any 
and all agreements between SBWMA and the firm. The firm will not receive compensation for any 
remaining trips due to an unsatisfactory rating with the California Highway Patrol. Upon request by SBWMA 
at any time after this agreement, the firm shall immediately deliver to SBWMA copies of any and all 
certificates or inspection reports required by this Section and the California Highway Patrol. Upon request 
by SBWMA or school officials, including teachers, at any time immediately before, during or after a 
scheduled field trip, drivers employed by the firm to provide bus transportation service pursuant to the 
agreement shall immediately produce for inspection valid evidence of their current certification to drive a 
School Pupil Activity Bus. 
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4. DESIRED QUALIFICATIONS

RethinkWaste is seeking a firm with experience in the transportation of students to and from schools via 
bus. The successful firm shall demonstrate that it has the appropriate professional and technical 
background as well as access to adequate resources to fulfill and execute the stated scope of services. 
Any experience with similar projects for agencies similar to those of RethinkWaste should be noted. 

5. TERM OF AGREEMENT
It is anticipated that RethinkWaste and the selected firm will enter into a contract for one or multiple years 
commencing on or about January 31, 2020 and ending December 31, 2020.  The selected firm will be 
expected to execute RethinkWaste’s standard Vendor Agreement, a draft of which is attached to this RFP. 

6. PROCEDURE FOR SUBMITTING QUESTIONS AND INQUIRIES

All communications about this RFP must be directed to Grant Ligon in writing via email at 
gligon@rethinkwaste.org by January 9, 2020 by 4:00 pm.  RethinkWaste will provide a written response 
to all questions in the form of an Addendum to this RFP posted online by January 10, 2020, if necessary.  

7. SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Firms must submit sufficient information, as outlined below, for RethinkWaste to evaluate the firm’s 
qualifications and proposal quality. Selection will be based on a combination of the cover letter, firm and 
staff qualifications, cost, understanding of scope of work and proposal, delivery schedule, and references. 

To be deemed responsive to this RFP, the firm’s submittals must be received by e-mail only to 
gligon@rethinkwaste.org no later than January 14, 2020, at 12:00 p.m.  

See below for anticipated RFP Process and Firm Selection Timeline 

ITEM DUE DATE 
RFP Released January 6, 2020 
Deadline for Submitting Questions to RethinkWaste by 4:00 p.m. January 9, 2020 
RethinkWaste to provide written responses to questions, if necessary. January 10, 2020 
Proposal Must Be Submitted via email by 12:00 p.m, to: 
Grant Ligon 
RethinkWaste 
(650) 610-1621
gligon@rethinkwaste.org

January 14, 2020 

Review of submittals, selection and contract negotiations. January 15-20, 2020 

Commence Services January 31, 2020 

Please label the email subject line “Response to RFP— School Tours Bus Transportation Services”. 

Please include both a PDF version and the source file (e.g., Word or Excel file) of all documents submitted. 
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Submittals should be concise and responsive, based on these guidelines: 
 

1. Cover Letter - A maximum two (2) page cover letter must be provided describing the firm, date 
established, main services, key qualifications and prior experience. The individual authorized to 
contractually bind the firm should sign the cover letter. Resumes for the proposed team and sub-
contractors, if any, should be provided as an appendix.  

 
2. Description of Qualifications – Describe the firm’s qualifications, expertise and prior specific 

related experience, and proposed use of subcontractors (if any). RethinkWaste prefers that the 
firms explain their specific qualifications related to the anticipated scope of work in this section, and 
that a more general description of qualifications and experience be reserved for the cover letter. 

 
3. Approach - A maximum two (2) page proposal shall describe the recommended approach to 

successfully execute the noted scope of work in a timely and cost-effective manner.  The approach 
to the scope of work shall be of such detail to demonstrate the firm’s ability to accomplish the 
project objectives. In this section, include a minimum of three (3) examples of similar 
projects/programs/campaigns they have worked on, the scope of work, timing, cost and list of staff 
that conducted the work. 

 
4. References – Provide the names and contact information of at least three (3) references for which 

similar services have been provided in the last three (3) years. Please include other public 
agencies if the firm has such references.  

 
5. Costs - A maximum two (2) page proposed budget shall provide the specific hours and costs for 

each project task and shall delineate the staff responsible for each and whether they will be done 
in-house or by sub-contractors and their hourly rate.  All additional costs and contingency must be 
clearly delineated. RethinkWaste envisions keeping the entire project under $30,000.  

 
6. Qualification Certification – Complete Attachment A 

 
7. Client Reference Form – Complete Attachment B 

 
 
8. RIGHT TO CONTRACT FOR SELECTED SERVICES 
 
RethinkWaste, at its sole option, will select the firm which best fulfills the requirements and provides the 
best value to RethinkWaste. 
 
RethinkWaste reserves the right to contract for selected services relating to this proposal from any firm, in 
part or in whole.  
 
An evaluation panel will review all proposals submitted.  Discussions may, at RethinkWaste’s option, be 
conducted with any firm.  Discussions may be for the purpose of clarification to assure full understanding 
of, and responsiveness to, the RFP’s requirements.  Responding firms shall be accorded fair and equal 
treatment with respect to any opportunity for discussion and written revision of proposals.  Overall 
responsiveness to the RFP is an important factor in the evaluation process. 
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The criteria used as a guideline in the evaluation will include, but not be limited to, the following: 

• Qualifications and experience of the firm, including capability and experience of key personnel and
experience with other public or private agencies to provide such transportation services.

• Responsiveness to the RFP process and general provisions and understanding of the Scope of
Work as evidenced by submitted proposal.

• History of successfully performing services for public or private agencies.
• Ability to meet any necessary timelines or other requirements.
• References.
• Costs.
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Attachment A: Qualification Certification 
 
 

FIRM NAME  
ADDRESS  
TELEPHONE #  
CONTACT 
EMAIL 

 

CONTACT NAME 
AND TITLE 

 

 
 

FIRM REPRESENTATIONS  
 

1. Firm additionally certifies that neither firm nor its principals are presently disbarred, suspended, proposed for 
disbarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal 
department or agency, any California State agency, or any local governmental agency.  

2. Firm certifies that it did not receive unauthorized information from any RethinkWaste staff member, 
contractor, or Board Member during the RFP response period except as provided for in this RFP package or 
through formal addenda, if any, issued by RethinkWaste.  

3. The firm certifies that no conflicts of interest, whether actual or perceived, would arise if awarded a contract 
by RethinkWaste and that it has disclosed any potential conflicts in its response to this RFP. 

4. The firm hereby certifies that the information contained in the Proposal and all accompanying 
documentation is true and correct.  

5. Please check the appropriate box below:  

� If an individual submits a response to this RFP, he or she shall sign it. If he or she is doing 
business under a fictitious name, the response shall so state.  

� If a response to this RFP is submitted by a partnership, the full names and addresses of all 
members and the address of the partnership shall be stated and the response shall be 
signed for all members by one or more members thereof.  

� If a corporation submits a response to this RFP, an authorized officer or officers of the 
corporation shall sign it in the corporate name.  

� If a limited liability company (LLC) submits a response to this RFP, an authorized officer or 
officers shall sign it in the LLC’s name.  

� If a response to this RFP is signed by a joint venture, the full names and addresses of all 
members of the joint venture shall be stated and a representative of each individual entity 
shall sign it. 
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Attachment A – Qualification Certification (continued) 

By signing below, the submittal pursuant to this RFP shall be deemed a representation and certification by 
the client that they have investigated all aspects of the RFP, that they are aware of the applicable facts 
pertaining to the RFP process, its procedures and requirements, and that the client has read and 
understands the RFP.  

Authorized Representative Name: 
(Signature)  
Authorized Representative Name: 
(Print name)  
Authorized Representative Title and Entity: 
(Print title and entity)  

Complete additional signatures below as required. 

Authorized Representative Name: 
(Signature)  
Authorized Representative Name: 
(Print name)  
Authorized Representative Title and Entity: 
(Print title and Entity)  
Authorized Representative Name: 
(Signature)  
Authorized Representative Name: 
(Print name)  
Authorized Representative Title and Entity: 
(Print title and entity)  
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Attachment B: Client Reference Form 
 
Provide the names and contact information of at least three (3) references for which similar 
services have been provided in the last three (3) years. 
 

Previous Client Reference Worksheet 
 

Name of Company or 
Agency 

 

Address  
 

 
Customer Contact 
Name(s), Address, 
Phone Number(s) and 
Email 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Brief description of work performed for this client (use additional sheets if necessary): 
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13A 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Hilary Gans, Senior Facilities and Contracts Manger 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Capital Project Status Update (Glass Loadout, O2E Pilot, MRF Phase I Upgrades) 
Recommendation 
This staff report is for informational purposes and no formal action is required of the Board of Directors. 
Summary 
This report provides an update on the capital projects at the Shoreway Environmental Center.  

1. Glass Loadout / PRC Remodel (Completed June 2019)
Project Goals: The glass load out / PRC remodel project was intended to solve multiple problems:
1. Eliminate the cost of double handling glass at the transfer station ($167,000 savings per year)
2. Replace decrepit material storage sheds with attractive canopy
3. Improve customer safety by increasing traffic lanes through the PRC
4. Reduce damage and wear to the roadways and transfer station from glass handling.

Project Status: The project was started in early 2019 and completed on June 2019.  The budget 
estimate for the project was $416,355 and the amount spent was $466,869.  The annual financial benefit 
to the agency is roughly $167,000 worth of operational savings of per year, with an ROI of 3.3 years.   

2. Organics to Energy (O2E) Pilot (In process):
Project Status: (installation is 90% completed, operations to start in March)

- May 2018 - OREX transferred from Recology SF to Shoreway.
- July 2019 - City of San Carlos Building Department design approval.
- September 2019 - Power-feed installation from existing transformer
- November 2019 - Shredder and OREX installation complete
- Nov.-Jan. 2020 - Polishing System Installation
- February 2020 - System Commissioning and training
- March 2020 - System Normal operations
- July 2020 - MSW processing to be phased-in after MRF Phase I has been completed.
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WWTP Processing Partnerships Status:  
SBWMA staff is working with five water quality control plants (WQCP) on final logistics of receiving 
organic slurry from the SBWMA’s O2E pilot project.  The below WQCPs have confirmed their intentions to 
receive 1-2 loads per day at no-charge and to work with the SBWMA on developing a case-study 
research paper to inform the industry of the projects results.   

- Silicon Valley Clean Water (SVCW) toured the O2E pilot at Shoreway on 1/16/20 and have 
confirmed their intension to receive materials. 
 

- South SF WQCP staff toured the Shoreway O2E project on 11/20/19 (SBWMA toured the 
SSF WQCP on 1/7/20) and have confirmed their intension to receive material. 
 

- Central Marin Sanitary Agency staff toured the Shoreway O2E on 12/12/19 to review the 
process and receiving logistics, they have confirmed their intensions to receive material. 

-  
- Sunnyvale WQCP staff toured the Shoreway O2E project on 1/8/20 and have confirmed 

their intension on receiving materials in March.  
-  
- East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) staff toured the Shoreway O2E project on 

12/17/19 and have confirmed their intention to receive material.  
 

3. MRF Phase I Upgrades (installation to start Q1 2020): 
Project Status: The project Installation start date was planned for January 21, 2020 but has been 
suspended while BHS and the SBWMA respond to the San Carlos Building Department comments.  The 
City has subcontracted the permit review to an outside engineering firm who is not familiar with site and is 
requesting site information and PE stamped structural calculations on new equipment structures, 
anchoring and attachment points.  This level of detail was not anticipated and BHS and the SBWMA staff 
are responding to the permit review requests. This review process will delay the start of the project by 
several weeks and will result in project cost changes to meet the conditions stipulated by the Building 
Department.   

FULL PACKET PAGE 232 of 265



SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020 AGENDA ITEM: 13A - p3 

O2E Pilot Installation 

Picture Above 
Three new (3) liquid holding tanks (right side) 
have been installed in the transfer station to 
store processed organic slurry…ready for 
tanker-truck load out. Note agitation units on top 
of each unit to keep solids from settling prior to 
loadout.  

A fourth tank (left side) has been installed to 
store recycled water from WWTP for organic 

Picture Above 
Anergia and technical crews installing Organics-to-Energy processing equipment.  

Pictures Above and Right 
Installation of new trailers and acquisition of new electric caddy’s represent major improvements in our glass handling 
operations. Site improvements to the Public Recycling Center were also made to improve visitor traffic flow and an 
enhanced overall site experience.     
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Glass Loadout Improvements 
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13B 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Joe La Mariana, Executive Director 

Julia Au, Outreach and Communications Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  2020 Legislative Session Update 
Recommendation: 
This staff report is for discussion purposes only and no formal action is requested of the Board of Directors. 

Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board monthly on the current 2019-2020 California 
Legislative Session and regulatory activities being conducted by our lobbyist, Environmental and Energy 
Consulting (EEC). All activities conducted from December 1 through January 17 are listed in Attachment A for 
review along with newly introduced bills for the second year of the legislative session. A full list of legislative bills 
the Agency is tracking and positions will be presented next month. 

SBWMA is co-sponsoring AB 1509 (Mullin) with California Product Stewardship Council and Californians Against 
Waste. The bill would create a responsible disposal program for both loose lithium-ion batteries and ones 
embedded in consumer products. AB 1509 is currently a two-year bill, meaning that the earliest this bill can be 
heard is early 2020. SBWMA continues to work with EEC, CPSC, CAW, CalRecycle, the Senate and Assembly 
policy committees, along with other key stakeholders on creating the most strategic and impactful language to get 
the bill to pass.  

Recology is leading a statewide ballot initiative titled The California Plastics Reduction and Recycling 
Pollution Act of 2020 by providing $1m in funding. Over 600,000 valid signatures must be obtained to get 
this onto the statewide ballot for November 2020. The SBWMA is in strong support of this initiative and, in 
fact, is one of the first public agencies to sign on. The ballot summary (Attachment B) provides an 
overview of the key components of this initiative.  

Analysis 
The SBWMA contracts with EEC to act as the Agency’s legislative and regulatory lobbyist in California. EEC is a 
registered lobbying firm in the state of California (Lobbying ID # 1371848). On January 24, 2019, the Board 
approved the 2019-2020 SBWMA Legislative and Regulatory Platform that identifies 12 topic areas of importance 
to the Agency and our member agencies to guide the identification of critically relevant bills and regulatory action 
that need attention during the legislative session. The Executive Committee (SBWMA Board Chair, Jay Benton, 
and SBWMA Vice Chair, Alicia Aguirre) serves as the Agency’s Legislative and Regulatory Committee and Staff is 

FULL PACKET PAGE 235 of 265



 
SBWMA BOD PACKET 01/30/2020  AGENDA ITEM: 13B - p2 

provided with strategic feedback and direction during our monthly Executive Committee/Board Agenda Review 
meetings. Based on this feedback, Staff provides EEC with tactical direction on key issues, prospective bills, and 
regulations that are in alignment with the Agency’s Board-approved annual Legislative Platform. 
 

Attachments: 
Attachment A – December 2019-January 2020 Legislative Update 
Attachment B - The California Plastics Reduction and Recycling Pollution Act of 2020 Ballot Fact Sheet 
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RethinkWaste December 2019/January 2020 Legislative Report 

I. Key Dates & Updates
• RethinkWaste and other AB 1509 cosponsors met in January to plan for

success in the 2020 Legislative Session.
• January 6 the Legislature reconvened.
• January 10, Governor Newsom released his proposed budget for 2020-

2021, which includes:
i. $15 M for organic waste diversion from the Greenhouse Gas

Reduction Fund
ii. a new Climate Catalyst Fund, with $250 M in 2020-21 for a

revolving loan fund. This fund will provide low-interest loans for a
portfolio of climate-related projects, including projects related to
creating a circular economy (i.e. municipal waste and recycling,
compost, wood waste collection and utilization, and
carbon/methane capture and utilization).

• February 21 is the last day for new bills to be introduced.

II. Introduced Legislation

• AB 1506 (McCarty): Clean up bill for McCarty's AB 827 (chaptered 2019),
which required businesses generating 4+ cubic yards of solid waste or 8+
cubic yards of organic waste to arrange recycling services/provide bins for
customers. This bill would allow alternative compliance methods and
specifications for theme park compliance.

• AB 1567 (Aguiar-Curry): By 2021, requires Strategic Growth Council and
relevant agencies to create a scoping plan for the state to meet its organic
waste, climate change, and air quality mandates, goals, and targets.

• AB 1839 (Bonta): Creates tenets for a California Green New Deal, focusing
on increasing affordable housing and clean transportation, assisting
communities impacted by climate change, transitioning labor away from
fossil fuel careers, and increasing equal access to a clean environment.

• AB 1840 (Ting): A vehicle for potential bottle bill clean-up language

• AB 1922 (L. Rivas): Would require science curriculum for students grades
1-12 to include an emphasis on the causes and effects of climate change,
beginning no later than the 2021–22 school year
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• SB 372 (Wieckowski): Creates an EPR program for beverage container 
recycling. 

 
• SB 857 (Bates): A vehicle for potential legislation on composting 

 
• ACR 143 (Quirk): Requires the Legislature to use the phrase "climate 

crisis" instead of "climate change" 
 

III. December & January Activities 
 

• We set a meeting with Melissa Immel (Deputy Legislative Secretary & 
Chief of Legislative Operations for the Governor’s Office) to discuss AB 
1509. 

 
• We started early conversation with key battery industry stakeholders to 

open the door for potential negotiations on the policy direction of AB 
1509. 

 
• We began tracking 8 new pieces of legislation related to the waste 

industry. 
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The California Recycling and Plastic Pollution Reduction Act of 2020 

A ballot initiative to curb plastic pollution was filed on Dec 9th, 2019 to the California Attorney General’s office to begin 
the campaign to collect signatures to qualify for a measure on the November 2020 ballot. Below are answers to some 
commonly asked questions.  

What would the Act accomplish? 

If approved by voters, the Act would do two important things: 
1. Give CalRecycle the authority to require producers of single-use plastic packaging and foodware to:

 Transition to reusable, recyclable, or compostable packaging and foodware by 2030

 Follow guidelines set by the agency defining reusable, recyclable and compostable

 Set standards for labeling and marketing to improve the proper sorting of waste materials

 Set a statewide baseline and reduce the amount of single-use packaging and foodware by no less than
25% by 2030

 Ban the use of polystyrene by food vendors statewide

 Improve convenient consumer access to recycling (e.g., retailer takeback programs)

2. Establish a sliding scale Plastic Pollution Reduction Fee on producers of up to 1¢ per item, which will be
determined by CalRecycle dependent on the recyclability or composability of each material type and form.
Funds generated by this fee will go towards the following:

 Local government efforts to clean and abate plastic pollution

 Maintenance and expansion of recycling and composting infrastructure

 Mitigation of the impacts of plastic pollution on disadvantaged communities

 Use of compost and other healthy soils practices to improve soil fertility and carbon sequestration

 Prevention of food waste and recovery of edible food for human consumption

 Market development for plastic, glass, fiber, and organic waste

 Deployment of reusable and refillable system alternatives

 Education and outreach to residents and businesses on waste reduction, recycling and composting

 Protection and restoration of streams, rivers, beaches and coastal waters from plastic pollution

Who is supporting it? 
The initiative was filed by San Francisco based Recology, 
a progressive waste collection company focused on 
resource recovery, recycling and composting. It has 
support from a wide range of stakeholders from oceans 
groups, to zero waste and soil health advocates. 

How does the process work?  
The language of the initiative was finalized on 
December 9th. Once the Attorney General approves the 
title and summary in early January, signature collection 
will begin. 960,000 signatures with a 75% validity rate 
must be collected by April 21st, 2020 in order for the 
measure to qualify for the ballot.   

What is needed now?  
Getting to the signature collecting stage of the campaign requires two things: 

1. Financial support. $4.5 million in pledged support is needed. Donors will only be asked to fulfill their pledge if
this target is met. If you are interested in making a pledge or sharing ideas for potential donors, please contact
Calla Rose Ostrander at callarose@gmail.com. Recology has pledged $1M to start, Plant Based Products Council
has pledged $.5M and The Nature Conservancy has pledged the last $1M. We are seeking another $2M.

2. Practical support. Demonstrating widespread support for this initiative has just begun. It will require much more
engagement from advocacy organizations, community groups and stakeholders to go up against the influential
and well-funded plastics industry. If you would like to be involved with the campaign strategy implementation,
please contact Baani Behniwal at baani@cawrecycles.org.
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13C 

To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors 
Subject:  2020 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar 
Recommendation 
This is an informational report and no action is necessary.  
Summary 
The purpose of this staff report is to keep the Board and Member Agency staff informed on the schedule of 
important financial and rate setting events in 2020. This staff report is updated as necessary and included in the 
Board packet each month.   

Schedule of Finance, Contractor Compensation and Rate Adjustment Activities in 2020: 

January 2020 
 Approval of FY18/19 audited Financial Statement.
 Approval of Mid-Year FY19/20 Operating Budget.

March 2020 
 Recology submits the unaudited 2019 Revenue Reconciliation Report (March 31).

April 2020 
 Approval of unaudited 2019 calendar year financial statement for bond reporting requirements at April 23 Board

meeting.
 Approval of Work Plan to transition from Fiscal Year to Calendar Year Accounting Period beginning January 1,

2021

May 2020 
 Review Preliminary (Draft) FY20/21 SBWMA Budget at May 28, 2020 Board meeting

(Six (6) month budget period: July 1, 2020-December 31, 2020)

June 2020 
 Approval of the Final FY20/21 SBWMA Operating Budget at June 25th, 2019 Board meeting.
 Recology’s 2021 Compensation Application submitted to the SBWMA and Member Agencies (June 15).
 SBWMA and Member Agency comments are submitted to Recology on its 2020 Compensation Application (June

26).
 SBWMA issues letters requesting confirmation formal Member Agencies on their estimated 2021 Member Agency

fees (e.g., franchise fees) to be included in their 2021 solid waste rates. (Due: June 30)
 Review of the Revenue Reconciliation Report from the Financial Systems audit report on Recology.
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July 2020 
 SBR's 2021 Compensation Application to be submitted to the SBWMA (July 3).  
 Recology revised 2021 Compensation Application submitted to SBWMA & Member Agencies (July 17).  
 SBWMA issues the following reports to the Board and Member Agency staff for review and comment:  

o Estimated 2020 and 2021 residential and commercial base revenue.   
o Estimated collected tonnage for 2012 and 2021.  
o 2020 Residential rates vs. 2021 cost analysis.  

 Optional at Member Agency request: Estimated residential revenue changes due to cart 
migration (i.e., lost revenue).   

o Summary of 2021 Member Agency fees to be used in the 2021 cost projections based on Member Agency 
feedback.  

August 2020 
 SBWMA issues Draft Report Reviewing Recology’s 2021 Compensation Application, recommended total Revenue 

Requirement, and Rate Adjustment (August 10).   
 SBWMA issues the Draft Report Reviewing SBR’s 2021 Compensation Application (August 17).  
 Comments sent from Member Agencies on draft Reports Reviewing Recology’s & SBR’s 2021 Compensation 

Application (August 27).   
 

September 2020 
 SBWMA TAC Workshop to review Pre-Final Report Reviewing Recology’s 2021 Compensation Application. 
 SBWMA issues Final Report Reviewing Recology’s 2021 Compensation Application including the recommended 

total Collection Rate Adjustment for 2021. (September BOD Packet).  
 SBWMA issues Final Report Reviewing SBR’s 2021 Compensation Application. (September BOD Packet).  
 Approval of SBR 2021 Compensation Application (September 24 BOD Meeting).   
 Approval of Recology 2021 Compensation Application and total recommended Revenue Requirement (September 

24 BOD Meeting). 
 
October 2020 

 Review Preliminary (Draft) 2021 Calendar and Fiscal Year Budget (Tentative for October)    
 (12 month budget period: January 1, 2021-December 31, 2021) 

 
 
September – December 2020 

 Member Agencies issue Prop. 218 notices and approve their final 2021 solid waste rates.   
 

November 2020 
 Approval of the Final 2021 Calendar/Fiscal Year Budget at November 19th Board meeting. 
 SBWMA issues report to Board on recommended January 1, 2021 Shoreway tip fees with adjustments, if 

necessary (includes calendar year 2020 & 2021 SBWMA financial projections with assumed tip fee and net reserve 
funding).  
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13D 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   John Mangini, Senior Finance Manager 
Date:   January 30, 2020 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Check Register Detail for November - December 2019 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item only and no action is required. This report was requested by the Board members. 
 
Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide transparency to the Board and the public on the actual spending by the 
SBWMA. All payments issued in November and December 2019 are listed on the attached (Attachment A) report 
for review. 
 
Analysis 
As of July 1, 2019, the SBWMA has a new contract with the City of Redwood City for accounting services 
including the issuing of all payments and deposit of all receipts. In accordance with the SBWMA and the City of 
Redwood City’s policies, checks are normally issued every two weeks.  All SBWMA invoices are approved for 
payment by the program manager and then by the Executive Director or Finance Manager.  Total A/P spending 
for November 2019 was $3,575,879.26, and for December 2019 was $3,959,744.42 as detailed in Attachment A.   
 
If you have any questions on this, please contact Cyndi Urman or John Mangini.  
 
Attachments: 
 Attachment A – November - December 2019 Check Register Detail Report 
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  Monday, January 13, 2020 06:09 PM GMT-08:00   1/8

South Bayside Waste Management Authority
CHECK DETAIL
November 2019

DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

11/01/2019 1332 LAHLOUH INV# 117985 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -43,463.00

Fall 2019 Newsletter Printing and Mailing 507050 Sewer Fees 
(property tax)

43,463.00

11/06/2019 1333 JULIA AU 10192019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -73.77

Conferences and Meetings: 10/17/19-10/19/19 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

35.00

Office Improvements-White board 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

38.77

11/06/2019 1334 SHIRLEY NG Inv# 09262019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -16.76

Mileage and Tolls - September 2019 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

16.76

11/06/2019 1335 JUAN MIRANDA 10292019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -24.30

vehicle mileage; 10/3/19-10/29/19 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

24.30

11/06/2019 1336 ADELE HALILI 10172019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -28.51

Community events - 10/17/19 IKEA Clothing Racks 5060206 Community 
Events

28.51

11/06/2019 1337 JANELLE OSTEEN 10292019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -72.85

Vehicle mileage & tolls 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

72.85

11/06/2019 1338 NADIA THOMPSON 10302019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -54.52

Vehicle Mileage - 10/17/19-10/30/19 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

54.52

11/06/2019 1339 THE OFFICE CITY Inv# IN-1607386 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -129.46

OFFICE SUPPLIES 503030 Office Supplies 129.46

11/06/2019 1340 COMCAST BUSINESS Inv. #89904416 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -695.22

Phone; 10/15/19 503020 Utilities & 
Phone

695.22

11/06/2019 1341 STRONG PHOTOS INC. Inv# RTW_INV1833 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -933.63

Residential outreach; 7/18/19 photo shoot 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

933.63

11/06/2019 1342 HILARY GANS Inv. #09252019 100010 Wells Fargo Check -1,642.39
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

Bank

Conferences and Meetings 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

1,292.80

Office Supplies 503030 Office Supplies 54.59

cell phones cost 503055 Cell Phones 295.00

11/06/2019 1343 AARONSON 
DICKERSON COHN & 
LANZONE

Inv# 1019049-SB R 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -10,519.00

Board Counsel - October 2019 502005 Board Counsel 10,519.00

11/06/2019 1344 HF&H CONSULTANTS 
LLC

Inv. #9716702 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -6,400.00

SB1383 Cost Analysis; Professional services from 
September1, 2019 to September 30, 2019

505015 Recycling 
Technical Assistance

6,400.00

11/06/2019 1345 A+ LIVESCAN 
SERVICES

Inv# 6704 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -35.00

Office supplies; Live scan fingerprinting service for: 
N. Thompson

503030 Office Supplies 35.00

11/06/2019 1346 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22709407 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -54.89

Conferences mtgs Penn TV lunch; 10/30/19 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

54.89

11/06/2019 1347 ABBE & ASSOCIATES Inv# SP-03 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -750.00

In Schools program; services performed September 
2019

5060208 In-School 
Environmental 
Education

750.00

11/06/2019 1348 FEDEX Inv# 6-771-88215 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -125.23

Office Supply - To Bulk Handling Systems 503030 Office Supplies 125.23

11/06/2019 1349 SAN CARLOS 
CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE

INV. #104195 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,200.00

SPONSORSHIPS; Farmers Market Oct & Nov 
2019

503070 Sponsorship & 
Donations

1,200.00

11/06/2019 1350 KBA DOCUMENT 
SOLUTIONS  LLC

Inv. #6646839 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -504.49

Office Equipment Costs 503035 Office 
Equipment Costs

504.49

11/06/2019 1351 KBA DOCUMENT 
SOLUTIONS, LLC

Inv. #55Y1028894 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -320.57

Office Equipment Costs 503035 Office 
Equipment Costs

320.57

11/06/2019 1352 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87099 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,165.32

Shred Event San Mateo 10/19/19 506030 Shred Event 
Svcs (pass thru)

2,165.32

11/06/2019 1353 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87100 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,046.79

e-recycling; load date 10/21/19 400400 E-Recycling  -2,046.79
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

Revenue

11/06/2019 1354 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87227 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -821.82

e-recycling; load date 10/23/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-821.82

11/06/2019 1355 SERVICE PRESS, INC. Inv# 57192 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -532.99

office supplies 503030 Office Supplies 532.99

11/06/2019 1356 ALPINE AWARDS INC. Inv# 5539151 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -428.04

Give aways - staff wear 5060001 Giveaways - 
Schools and events

428.04

11/06/2019 1357 Environmental and 
Energy Consulting

Inv# 1570 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -3,333.33

LEGISLATIVE ADVOCACY: Consulting:  October 
2019 - PO#1246 - Lobbying October 2019 - PO 
#1246

504000 Legislative & 
Reg Advocacy

3,333.33

11/06/2019 1358 SAN MATEO COUNTY 
TAX COLLECTOR

parcel# 046-081-820 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -45,213.05

2020 Property Tax Installment One; parcel# 046-
081-820

507050 Sewer Fees 
(property tax)

45,213.05

11/06/2019 1359 MAZE & ASSOCIATES 
INC

Inv# 33694 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -5,175.00

Annual Audit; services performed in October for 
year end audit

502030 Audit Services 5,175.00

11/06/2019 1360 COMMON GOAL 
CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC

Inv# 001 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,702.50

Airport Feasibility Study; services from 10/1/19 to 
10/31/19

5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

2,702.50

11/06/2019 1361 DELUXE TELEPHONE 
SERVICE INC

Inv# 4847 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,472.56

office improvements 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

1,472.56

11/06/2019 1362 Sequoia Electric Co 9272018 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -3,100.02

office improvements; floor receptacles 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

3,100.02

11/06/2019 1363 COMMON GOAL 
CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC

Inv# 004 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,200.00

Facility Improvement oversight; services from 
10/1/19 to 10/31/19

505005 Facility 
Improvement Oversight

1,200.00

11/06/2019 1364 WELLS FARGO Acct# 4856 2003 7906 1909 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,411.69

Overcharged for Caru Container 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

-1,300.00

Kitchen pail insert printing 5060203 Multi-Family 
Outreach

150.95
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

Kitchen pail insert printing 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

150.96

facebook ad 506025 Curbside 
Battery Outreach

15.00

white board 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

80.80

new office fixtures 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

65.54

Office cleaning 1x/month 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

280.00

new office fixtures 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

93.94

office lunch 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

147.61

new office fixtures 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

101.00

schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

109.04

return of computer dock that didn't work 504005 Computer 
Purchase for Office

-270.31

CPR Training for new Fellows 507035 Education 
Center Operations

468.00

Community Events 5060206 Community 
Events

7.08

School program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

26.00

community events 5060206 Community 
Events

43.86

Community events 5060206 Community 
Events

545.00

Ed center 507035 Education 
Center Operations

90.00

Community Events 5060206 Community 
Events

31.98

Community Events 5060206 Community 
Events

39.89

Ed Center 507035 Education 
Center Operations

92.86

Community Events 5060206 Community 
Events

367.20

Office Supply 503030 Office Supplies 47.49

Office Supply 503030 Office Supplies 10.35

Ed Center 507035 Education 
Center Operations

17.45

11/12/2019 WIRE MODERN HR, INC. 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -55,341.42

PPE 11/9/19 500000 Salaries - 
Admin

21,908.92

PPE 11/9/19 500100 Salaries - 
Recycling

30,851.20

PPE 11/9/19 501000 Benefits - 
Payroll Taxes

1,338.21

PPE 11/9/19 501005 Benefits - 
Workers Comp Ins

451.97

PPE 11/9/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

-4,182.15

PPE 11/9/19 501030 Benefits - CPE 
Fee

723.66

PPE 11/9/19 500150 Salaries - Car 2,650.00
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

Allowance

PPE 11/9/19 500200 Salaries - Opt 
Out Medical

1,599.61

11/12/2019 WELLS FARGO 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -322.47

October 2019 Client Analysis Service Charge 503005 Bank Fees & 
Services

322.47

11/13/2019 ACH STERLING HSA August 2019 HSA 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -1,331.09

November 2019 - Sterling HSA 501025 Benefits - 
Sterling HSA

1,331.09

11/13/2019 ACH UNITED HEALTH CARE 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -4,304.53

Medical insurance 11/1/19-11/30/19 501020 Benefits - 
Medical

4,304.53

11/14/2019 ACH JOHN HANCOCK USA 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -17,946.30

EE Benefits PP 10/17/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

4,070.56

ER Benefits PP 10/17/19 501015 Benefits - 
Retirement Employer

5,126.07

EE Benefits PP 10/3/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

3,569.46

ER Benefits PP 10/3/19 501015 Benefits - 
Retirement Employer

5,180.21

11/15/2019 ACH JOHN HANCOCK USA 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -9,444.66

ER Benefits PP 10/31/19 501015 Benefits - 
Retirement Employer

5,282.99

EE Benefits PP 10/31/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

4,161.67

11/18/2019 WIRE CITY OF SAN CARLOS 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -200,838.75

October 2019 Franchise Fee 507055 Franchise Fee 
to the City of San 
Carlos

200,838.75

11/18/2019 ACH Anthem Blue Cross 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -4,983.03

December Medical Benefits 501020 Benefits - 
Medical

4,983.03

11/20/2019 1365 S. Groner and 
Associates (SGA)

INV. #2241 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -7,616.31

Residential outreach; Billing period 10/1/19-
10/31/19

5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

7,616.31

11/20/2019 1366 THE OFFICE CITY Inv# IN-1609501 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -137.10

OFFICE SUPPLIES; Calendars 503030 Office Supplies 137.10

11/20/2019 1367 Comcast Acct# 8155 20 033 0447972 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -255.86

Utilities; services from Oct 29, 2019 to Nov 28, 503020 Utilities & 255.86
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

2019 Phone

11/20/2019 1368 SHIRLEY NG Inv# 10312019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -32.48

Mileage and Tolls - October 2019 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

32.48

11/20/2019 1369 SAN MATEO DAILY 
JOURNAL

Ref# 11604479-001 & 11604480-001 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -759.10

Residential outreach 10/30/19-10/31/19 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

759.10

11/20/2019 1370 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22755269 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -127.64

Board counsel; 11/7/19 502010 Board 
Administration

127.64

11/20/2019 1371 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87298 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,764.98

e-recycling; load date 10/30/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-1,764.98

11/20/2019 1372 CITY OF SAN CARLOS Inv# 14735 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -4,730.53

Rent; November 2019 503010 Rent 4,730.53

11/20/2019 1373 CITY OF SAN CARLOS Inv# 15056 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -3,994.71

Utilities; Jul-Sep 19 - Library Utility & Janitorial 
charges

503020 Utilities & 
Phone

3,994.71

11/20/2019 1374 PURCHASE POWER Acct# 8000-9000-0644-9759 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -50.00

office supplies 503030 Office Supplies 50.00

11/20/2019 1375 CLASSIC GRAPHICS Inv# 42369 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,052.40

Schools program; Decals for school campuses 5060208 In-School 
Environmental 
Education

2,052.40

11/20/2019 1376 NEWBY ISLAND 
COMPOST - 4278A

INV. #4278-100005857 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -331,718.34

DISPOSAL NEWBY OCTOBER 2019 5070102 Disposal & 
Processing - NEWBY

331,718.34

11/20/2019 1377 ZANKER RECYCLING Inv. #201910380 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -347,272.71

DISPOSAL ZANKER - OCTOBER 2019 5070104 Disposal & 
Processing - ZANKER

347,272.71

11/20/2019 1378 SOUTH BAY 
RECYCLING LLC

INV# 2019-09 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -
1,588,849.88

Disposal Expense Pass through 5070105 Disposal & 
Processing - OTHER

31,645.73

Disposal Expense MRF Residue 5070105 Disposal & 
Processing - OTHER

-43,327.79

Temp Staffing Operations 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

45,763.38

Misc. Revenue 400350 Miscellaneous 3,912.34
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

Revenue

VRS Correct Duplicate Profit 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

-91,542.61

Shoreway Facility Cost 507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

6,645.48

Equipment Charges 507030 Shoreway 
Charges

2,224.17

Credit Card Charges 503005 Bank Fees & 
Services

6,710.72

Operating Costs 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

1,634,643.14

11/20/2019 1379 COSCO FIRE 
PROTECTION INC

Inv# 1000448251 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -500.00

Shoreway Maintenance; 8/30/19 507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

500.00

11/20/2019 1380 SCAPES INC Inv# 19298 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -315.00

Shoreway Facility Cost - October 2019 Monthly 
Maintenance

507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

315.00

11/20/2019 1381 BFI OF CALIFORNIA 
INC Ox Mtn Landfill - 
4227

Inv. #4227-000055222 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -791,839.46

DISPOSAL OX MTN. - OCTOBER 2019 5070101 Disposal & 
Processing - OX

791,839.46

11/20/2019 1382 LAURA WESSBERG 10282019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -27.65

ED CENTER PROGRAMS REIMBURSEMENT 507035 Education 
Center Operations

27.65

11/20/2019 1383 PETER MUI Inv# FCRW01 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -5,900.00

Community Events; Fixit Clinic Workshop Oct 27, 
2019

5060206 Community 
Events

5,900.00

11/20/2019 1384 ENPLUG, INC. Inv# 31282 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -3,024.00

ED CENTER; NOV 9, 2019 507035 Education 
Center Operations

3,024.00

11/20/2019 1385 KAUFMAN LEVINE & 
PARTNERS INC

Inv# 112637 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -539.26

ED CENTER OPERATIONS 507035 Education 
Center Operations

539.26

11/20/2019 1386 OUROBOROS FARMS, 
LLC

Inv# 3641 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -500.00

TRAINING RETREAT 12/20/19 503065 Training 500.00

11/20/2019 1387 DEPARTMENT OF 
JUSTICE

Inv# 417587 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -196.00

Office Supplies 503030 Office Supplies 196.00

11/25/2019 WIRE MODERN HR, INC. 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -48,535.32

PPE 11/23/19 500000 Salaries - 
Admin

21,971.42
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DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

PPE 11/23/19 500100 Salaries - 
Recycling

29,516.81

PPE 11/23/19 501000 Benefits - 
Payroll Taxes

1,165.40

PPE 11/23/19 501005 Benefits - 
Workers Comp Ins

411.29

PPE 11/23/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

-5,253.26

PPE 11/23/19 501030 Benefits - CPE 
Fee

723.66

11/29/2019 ACH GUARDIAN LIFE 
INSURANCE CO OF 
AMERICA

September 2019 Life and LTD insurance 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -981.58

December Life & LTD Insurance 501035 Benefits - 
Guardian Life

981.58

TOTAL           $3,575,879.26
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South Bayside Waste Management Authority
CHECK DETAIL
December 2019

DATE NUM NAME MEMO/DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT TRANSACTION 
TYPE

AMOUNT

100010 Wells Fargo Bank

12/04/2019 1388 THE OFFICE CITY Inv# IN-1611177 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -360.24

OFFICE SUPPLIES; toner 503030 Office Supplies 360.24

12/04/2019 1389 RECOLOGY BLOSSOM 
VALLEY ORGANICS-N

Inv. #191031 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -219,771.48

DISPOSAL-BVO - OCTOBER 2019 5070103 Disposal & 
Processing - BVON

219,771.48

12/04/2019 1390 THE BANK OF NEW 
YORK MELLON

Inv# 252-2229757 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,750.00

Bank fees; for the period 8/31/19 503005 Bank Fees & 
Services

1,750.00

12/04/2019 1391 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL 
FINANCIAL SERVICES 
LLC

Inv# 3103541146 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -128.59

Office Equipment Costs; acct# 0012232627 503035 Office 
Equipment Costs

128.59

12/04/2019 1392 ALPINE AWARDS INC. Inv# 5539904 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -198.74

Give aways - employee gear 5060001 Giveaways - 
Schools and events

198.74

12/04/2019 1393 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22824060 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -112.70

Board meetings - 11/21/19 502010 Board 
Administration

112.70

12/04/2019 1394 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22824008 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -75.68

Conference & meetings 11/19/19 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

75.68

12/04/2019 1395 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22824008 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -156.44

In schools program - 11/25/19 5060208 In-School 
Environmental 
Education

156.44

12/04/2019 1396 SOLID WASTE ASSOC 
OF NORTH AMERICA

Inv# 19750 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -888.94

Professional dues & memberships; acct# 807184 503045 Professional 
dues & Memberships

888.94

12/04/2019 1397 CALIBRE PRINTING Inv. #18155 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -146.14

OFFICE IMPROVEMENTS 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

146.14

12/04/2019 1398 Environmental and Energy Inv# 1595 100010 Wells Fargo Check -3,333.33
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AMOUNT

Consulting Bank

LEGISLATIVE ADVOCACY: Consulting:  
November 2019 - PO#1246 - Lobbying October 
2019 - PO #1246

504000 Legislative & 
Reg Advocacy

3,333.33

12/04/2019 1399 ECO PROMOTIONAL 
PRODUCTS, INC.

INV. #21218 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -394.64

Employee gear 5060001 Giveaways - 
Schools and events

394.64

12/04/2019 1400 ECO PROMOTIONAL 
PRODUCTS, INC.

INV. #21402 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -166.75

Give aways - employee gear 5060001 Giveaways - 
Schools and events

166.75

12/04/2019 1401 CLASSIC GRAPHICS Inv# 42399 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -812.53

Diversion Program support 5050104 Diversion 
Program Support

812.53

12/04/2019 1402 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC 
DESIGN

INV. #17745 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -572.25

Diversion support programs - downtown garbage 
can labels; 11/19/19

5050104 Diversion 
Program Support

572.25

12/04/2019 1403 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC 
DESIGN

INV. #17630 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -981.00

MFD outreach; toolkit conversions 5060203 Multi-Family 
Outreach

981.00

12/04/2019 1404 HF&H CONSULTANTS 
LLC

Inv. #9716787 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -10,365.00

SB1383 Compliance Planning & Additional Tests; 
professional services from 10/1/19-10/31/19

505015 Recycling 
Technical Assistance

10,365.00

12/04/2019 1405 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87703 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -789.47

e-recycling; load date 11/20/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-789.47

12/04/2019 1406 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87705 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -289.39

e-recycling; load date 11/14/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-289.39

12/04/2019 1407 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87704 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -313.99

e-recycling; load date 11/18/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-313.99

12/04/2019 1408 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87641 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,916.77

e-recycling; load date 11/18/19, 11/13/19,
11/15/19

400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-1,916.77

12/04/2019 1409 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87517 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -3,295.64

e-recycling; load date 11/1/19-11/11/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-3,295.64
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AMOUNT

12/04/2019 1410 AARONSON DICKERSON 
COHN & LANZONE

Inv# 1119051-SB.R 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -13,333.00

Board Counsel - November 2019 502005 Board Counsel 13,333.00

12/04/2019 1411 PRIMA PRINTING INV#83076 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -92.86

ED CENTER; VESTS 507035 Education 
Center Operations

92.86

12/04/2019 1412 AT&T Acct. #650-596-7146-704-9 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -758.63

Shoreway Maintenance; monthly service Nov 13 
thru Dec 12

507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

758.63

12/04/2019 1413 HILARY GANS Inv. #11202019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,937.94

Conferences and Meetings 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

1,806.09

Office Supplies 503030 Office Supplies 61.99

cell phones cost 503055 Cell Phones 69.86

12/04/2019 1414 PREMIER ACCESS 
INSURANCE COMPANY

Acct# 001724200000001 9 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -654.71

Benefits; Billing period December 2019 501035 Benefits - 
Guardian Life

654.71

12/04/2019 1415 LYNCH ELECTRIC & 
SONS INC

Inv# 2019.771 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -6,645.48

Shoreway facility cost 507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

6,645.48

12/04/2019 1416 WELLS FARGO Acct# 4856 2003 7906 1909 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,872.41

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

78.00

Fellow boots for tours 507035 Education 
Center Operations

50.09

Fellow boots for tours 507035 Education 
Center Operations

52.61

Adobe purchase for public education 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

359.88

Monthly kitchen cleaning 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

280.00

Facebook outreach 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

29.95

Facebook outreach 5060206 Community 
Events

15.00

Fellow boots for tours 507035 Education 
Center Operations

45.50

Employee gear 5060001 Giveaways - 
Schools and events

6.53

Prizes for poster contest winners 507035 Education 
Center Operations

200.00

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

6.18

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

40.80

Frame for Shoreway map 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

51.19

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 189.70
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Zero Waste Programs

New Plants for Office 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

52.00

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

95.80

Strengths test finder for retreat 503065 Training 179.91

Schools program 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

18.95

Dell Server Warranty 504005 Computer 
Purchase for Office

728.77

Survey Monkey renewal 507035 Education 
Center Operations

384.00

no receipt but agree to pay 503030 Office Supplies 7.55

12/04/2019 1417 SCS ENGINEERS Inv# 363365 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,650.00

Franchise Admin 5050103 Collection 
Services Admin.

1,650.00

12/04/2019 1418 ANAERGIA 
TECHNOLOGIES LLC

Inv. #IN000000073 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -121,496.39

O2E Pilot 6001008 Facilities 
Improvements (SF067)

121,496.39

12/04/2019 1419 CYNDI URMAN Petty Cash replenish Dec 2018 to April 2019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -453.59

Office improvements; Petty cash 503025 Tenant 
Improvements

10.48

Office Supplies; Petty cash 503030 Office Supplies 159.48

Conference & mtgs; Petty case 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

283.63

12/09/2019 WIRE MODERN HR, INC. 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -52,720.41

PPE 12/7/19 500000 Salaries - 
Admin

21,908.90

PPE 12/7/19 500100 Salaries - 
Recycling

29,516.81

PPE 12/7/19 501000 Benefits - 
Payroll Taxes

866.76

PPE 12/7/19 501005 Benefits - 
Workers Comp Ins

444.90

PPE 12/7/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

-4,990.23

PPE 12/7/19 501030 Benefits - CPE 
Fee

723.66

PPE 12/7/19 500150 Salaries - Car 
Allowance

2,650.00

PPE 12/7/19 500200 Salaries - Opt 
Out Medical

1,599.61

12/11/2019 Fee WELLS FARGO 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -316.46

November 2019 Client Analysis Service Charge 503005 Bank Fees & 
Services

316.46

12/13/2019 ACH STERLING HSA August 2019 HSA 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -1,371.66

December 2019 - Sterling HSA 501025 Benefits - 
Sterling HSA

1,371.66
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12/16/2019 ACH JOHN HANCOCK USA 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -21,945.25

ER Benefits PP 11/28/19 501015 Benefits - 
Retirement Employer

6,178.58

EE Benefits PP 11/14/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

4,182.15

EE Benefits PP 11/28/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

5,253.26

ER Benefits PP 11/14/19 501015 Benefits - 
Retirement Employer

6,331.26

12/17/2019 1420 ZANKER RECYCLING Inv. #201911359 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -285,501.17

DISPOSAL ZANKER - NOVEMBER 2019 5070104 Disposal & 
Processing - ZANKER

285,501.17

12/17/2019 1421 JANELLE OSTEEN 11222019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -107.88

Vehicle mileage & tolls reimbursement 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

107.88

12/17/2019 1422 NADIA THOMPSON 12042019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -145.42

In schools program 12/4/19 5060208 In-School 
Environmental 
Education

47.23

Mileage reimbursement 10/31/19-11/26/19 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

98.19

12/17/2019 1423 JULIA AU 11012019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -50.00

Cell phone reimbursement (calls and emails) 
11/1/19

503055 Cell Phones 50.00

12/17/2019 1424 JOE LA MARIANA 09242019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -564.68

Conferences & meetings 11/6/19-11/7/19 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

436.46

Office supply 503030 Office Supplies 38.22

Cell phone charges 11/22/19 503055 Cell Phones 90.00

12/17/2019 1425 JUAN MIRANDA 12102019 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -32.48

vehicle mileage; 11/1/19-12/10/19 503050 Mileage 
reimbursements

32.48

12/17/2019 1426 Comcast Acct# 8155 20 033 0447972 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -255.86

Utilities; services from Nov 29, 2019 to Dec 28, 
2019

503020 Utilities & 
Phone

255.86

12/17/2019 1427 SHRED WORKS INC Inv. #207169 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,027.50

Community event pass through San Mateo 
10/19/19

506030 Shred Event 
Svcs (pass thru)

1,027.50

12/17/2019 1428 SHRED WORKS INC Inv. #204286 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -687.50

Community event pass through San Carlos 506030 Shred Event 687.50
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9/14/19 Svcs (pass thru)

12/17/2019 1429 SHRED WORKS INC Inv. #208294 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,365.00

Community event pass through County 10/26/19 506030 Shred Event 
Svcs (pass thru)

1,365.00

12/17/2019 1430 SHRED WORKS INC Inv. #208299 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,365.00

Community event pass through Foster City 9/7/19 506030 Shred Event 
Svcs (pass thru)

1,365.00

12/17/2019 WIRE CITY OF SAN CARLOS 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -188,450.17

November 2019 Franchise Fee 507055 Franchise Fee 
to the City of San 
Carlos

188,450.17

12/18/2019 1431 COMMON GOAL 
CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC

Inv# 002 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,980.00

Airport Feasibility Study 5060051 Diversion; 
Zero Waste Programs

2,980.00

12/18/2019 1432 COMMON GOAL 
CONSULTING GROUP, 
INC

Inv# 005 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,175.00

Project Structure Development and Construction 
Project Management Plan Services 11/1/19 to 
11/30/19

505005 Facility 
Improvement Oversight

2,175.00

12/18/2019 1433 SAN CARLOS CHAMBER 
OF COMMERCE

INV. #104234 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -600.00

SPONSORSHIPS; Farmers Market 503070 Sponsorship & 
Donations

600.00

12/18/2019 1434 CITY OF SAN CARLOS Inv# 15401 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -4,730.53

Dec 2019 Library rent 503010 Rent 4,730.53

12/18/2019 1435 Shred-It USA INV. #8128591490 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -129.23

Office Supply 503030 Office Supplies 129.23

12/18/2019 1436 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87949 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,288.19

e-recycling; load date 12/9/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-2,288.19

12/18/2019 1437 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87927 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,208.54

e-recycling; load date 11/29/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-1,208.54

12/18/2019 1438 E-RECYCLING OF 
CALIFORNIA

Inv. #87766 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -1,893.55

e-recycling; load date 11/27/19 400400 E-Recycling  
Revenue

-1,893.55

12/18/2019 1439 STUDIO EM GRAPHIC INV. #17765 100010 Wells Fargo Check -327.00
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DESIGN Bank

Battery outreach; advertisement design: 2019 
Battery Ad

506025 Curbside 
Battery Outreach

327.00

12/18/2019 1440 REDWOOD CITY 
CHAMBER OF 
COMMERCE

Inv# 7606 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -720.00

Professional dues & memberships 503045 Professional 
dues & Memberships

720.00

12/18/2019 1441 KBA DOCUMENT 
SOLUTIONS  LLC

Inv. #6729126 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -504.49

Office Equipment copier lease 503035 Office 
Equipment Costs

504.49

12/18/2019 1442 KBA DOCUMENT 
SOLUTIONS, LLC

Inv. #55Y1038417 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -326.44

Office Equipment Costs 503035 Office 
Equipment Costs

326.44

12/18/2019 1443 SPECIALTY'S CAFE & 
BAKERY

INV. #T2423-22941699 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -81.13

Conferences & meetings battery kick off 12/12/19 503060 Conferences & 
Meetings

81.13

12/18/2019 1444 SCAPES INC Inv# 19346 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -315.00

Shoreway Facility Cost - November 2019 Monthly 
Maintenance

507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

315.00

12/18/2019 1445 MAZE & ASSOCIATES 
INC

Inv# 33879 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,960.00

Annual Audit; services - Bond Compliance 502030 Audit Services 2,960.00

12/18/2019 1446 BROWNING FERRIS 
INDUSTRIES OF CA INC

INV. #4278-100005934 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -232,775.03

DISPOSAL-NEWBY - November 2019 5070102 Disposal & 
Processing - NEWBY

232,775.03

12/18/2019 1447 RECOLOGY BLOSSOM 
VALLEY ORGANICS-N

Inv. #191130 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -241,298.63

DISPOSAL-BVO - NOVEMBER 2019 5070103 Disposal & 
Processing - BVON

241,298.63

12/18/2019 1448 BFI OF CALIFORNIA INC 
Ox Mtn Landfill - 4227

Inv. #4227-000055535 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -745,328.85

DISPOSAL OX MTN. - NOVEMBER 2019 5070101 Disposal & 
Processing - OX

745,328.85

12/18/2019 1449 S. Groner and Associates 
(SGA)

INV. #2255 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -2,116.25

Residential outreach; Billing period 11/1/19-
11/30/19

5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

2,116.25

12/18/2019 1450 S. Groner and Associates 
(SGA)

INV. #2256 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Check -927.50

Website hosting 5060205 Residential 
Outreach Programs

927.50

12/18/2019 1451 SOUTH BAY RECYCLING INV# 2019-10 100010 Wells Fargo Check -
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LLC Bank 1,704,039.39

Disposal Expense Pass through 5070105 Disposal & 
Processing - OTHER

33,959.26

Disposal Expense MRF Residue 5070105 Disposal & 
Processing - OTHER

-46,074.05

Buy back 400455 Buyback 
Payments

-5,013.17

Temp staffing operations 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

35,714.79

Misc. Revenue 400350 Miscellaneous 
Revenue

1,767.12

VRS Correct Duplicate Profit 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

-91,542.61

Shoreway Facility Cost 507015 Shoreway 
Facility Cost

4,650.00

Equipment Charges 507030 Shoreway 
Charges

2,224.17

Credit card charges 507025 Credit Card 
Charges

6,436.25

Operations 507005 Operator 
Compensation SBR

1,755,425.53

12/23/2019 ACH GUARDIAN LIFE 
INSURANCE CO OF 
AMERICA

September 2019 Life and LTD insurance 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -1,010.12

January Life & LTD Insurance 501035 Benefits - 
Guardian Life

1,010.12

12/24/2019 WIRE MODERN HR, INC. 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -53,405.36

PPE 12/21/19 500000 Salaries - 
Admin

21,908.93

PPE 12/21/19 500100 Salaries - 
Recycling

34,308.65

PPE 12/21/19 501000 Benefits - 
Payroll Taxes

1,097.90

PPE 12/21/19 501005 Benefits - 
Workers Comp Ins

449.25

PPE 12/21/19 501010 Benefits - 
Retirement Employee

-5,134.72

PPE 12/21/19 501030 Benefits - CPE 
Fee

775.35

12/27/2019 ACH Anthem Blue Cross 100010 Wells Fargo 
Bank

Expense -4,983.03

January 2020 Medical Benefits 501020 Benefits - 
Medical

4,983.03

TOTAL: 

$3,575,879.26

$3,959,744.42                   $3,959,744.42
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13E 

STAFF REPORT 
To:   SBWMA Board Members 
From:   Cyndi Urman, Office Manager/Board Secretary 
Date:   January 30, 2019 Board of Directors Meeting 
Subject:  Technical Consulting Contracts: September - December 2019 
Recommendation 
This is an informational item only and no action is required. This report was requested by the Board members.  

Summary 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update to the Board on a quarterly basis on the technical consulting 
contracts that have been issued.  All contracts issued in between September 2019 and December 2019 are listed 
in Attachment A for review. 

Each quarter throughout a given calendar year, staff will update this listing with any new technical contracts 
issued. How frequently this report is produced (e.g., monthly or quarterly) was discussed with the Executive 
Committee and it was decided given the small number of contracts issued that a quarterly frequency was 
appropriate.  

If you have any questions on the attached listing of technical contracts, please contact Cyndi Urman  

Attachments: 
Attachment A – Technical Consulting Contracts – September – December 2019 
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Vendor Name
Amount of 
Contract Scope of Work Date of Award

Contract Procedures 
Used Budget Line Item Budget Line Item Description

Sloan/Vazquez $18,000 BHS Pre-Contract Equipment Performance 
Review 9/9/2019 Single Source 

(Professional Services) 505005 Facility Improvement Oversight

HF&H Consultants* $27,674 Contract Amendment #1 to SB1383 Cost 
Analysis (Total Contract $77,654) 9/27/2019 Single Source 

(Professional Services) 505015 Recycling Technical Assistance/ 
SB1383 Implementation Support

Common Goal Consulting $10,048 Airport Property Feasability Study 10/2/2019 Single Source 
(Professional Services) 506005-01 Long Range Plan

Common Goal Consulting $22,500 Contract Amendment #1 to Construction 
Project Managmenent Plan Services 10/2/2019 Single Source    

(Professional Services) 505005 Facility Improvement Oversight

SCS Engineers $19,000 Solid Waste Facility Permitting and CEQA 
Services 10/10/2019 RFQ 505005 Facility Improvement Oversight

Peter Mui (DBA Fixit Clinic) $20,000 Fixit Clinic Workshops and Consulting 
Services 10/22/2019 Single Source 

(Professional Services) 506020-06 Community Events

KNN Public Finance $10,000 Bond Allocation and Defeasance Analysis 10/24/2019 RFP 505000 Rate Review

R3 Consultants $25,000 Buyback Center Cost/Benefit Analysis 11/18/2019 Single Source 
(Professional Services) 505005 Facility Improvement Oversight

S. Groner and Associates $49,800 Battery Outreach Campaign 11/19/2019 RFP 506025 Battery Outreach

Technical Consultant Contracts -September - December 2019

Competitive Procurement includes selecting contractors resulting from Requests for Proposals (RFP), Requests for Qualifications (RFQ), obtaining multiple bids/proposals and/or obtaining bids/proposals from firms 
pre‐qualified per responses to published RFP/RFQ.
Single Source includes selecting contractors based on a sole source solicitation of bids/contracts and subsequent contract negotiations.
Contracts marked with an * have been adopted by the Board of Directors with the passage of a resolution.
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13F   
STAFF UPDATE 

 
Potential Future Board Agenda Items  

(Meetings at San Carlos Library Conference Room) 
 

February 27, 2020 
 Resolution Approving Contract for Transfer Station Tipping Floor Repairs 
 Resolution Approving Revised SBWMA Purchasing Policy 

o Resolution Approving Job Order Contract (JOC) System 
o Resolution Approving Group Procurement Partnership (Sourcewell/CMASS) 

 Resolution Approving the 2020 SBWMA Long Range Plan 
 Resolution Approving Amendment One Modifications to the Model Franchise Agreement with 

Recology San Mateo County 
 Resolution Approving Organics Processing Agreement Extension with Recology Blossom Valley 

Organics for Organics Processing, or approval to proceed with public procurement process (RFP) 
 Resolution Approving Contract with Sloan/Vazquez for Baseline Performance Testing for MRF 

equipment 
 Resolution Approving Contract for Transfer Station Pump Replacement with Emergency 

Procurement Provisions 
 Discussion on SBR Contract 
 Update on 5-Year Facility Permit Renewal 
 Update on Regulation 13-2 of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District 
 Update/report  
 out on Emergency Transfer Station Pump Replacement 

 
March 26, 2020 

TBD 
 
April 23, 2020 

 Resolution Approving Work Plan to transition SBWMA financial structure from Fiscal Year to 
Calendar Year Accounting Period beginning January 1, 2021 

 Resolution Approving SB1383 Implementation/Action Plan (HFH presentation) 
 Resolution Approving Contract with Ascent Environmental for Preparation of Cal Recycle 

Electronic Annual Reports for 10 member agencies 
 Approval of Calendar Year Financial Statements 2019 
 Approval of 3-Year Professional Services Agreements Ending in 2020 

o Approval of 3-Year Contract for Outsourced IT Services with DTE Networks 
o Approval of 3-Year Contract for Legal Counsel Services with Aaronson Dickerson Cohn 

and Lanzone 
o Approval of a 3-Year Contract for Website hosting and Technical Assistance  
o Approval of a Contract for Construction Management Services 
 

 
May 28, 2020 

 Presentation of Draft FY2020 SBWMA Operating Budget  
(proposed new 6-month budget period: July 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020) 
 Resolution Approving Construction Management Contract for FY20/21capital projects 
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 Resolution Approving Contract Extension for Legislative Advocacy services 
 Resolution Approving Contract for MRF Wall Repairs 

 
June 25, 2020 

 Resolution Approving FY2020 SBWMA Operating Budget  
(New proposed 6-month budget period: July 1, 2020 – December 31, 2020) 
 Resolution Adopting the Annual Operations and Systems Audit Findings for 2019 
 Review of MRF Phase I Project—to date 
 Update on Alternative Fuel Discussions with Recology San Mateo County 
 

 
July 23, 2020 
TBD 
 
August 2020 – No Meeting 
 
September 24, 2020 

 Closed Session Executive Director Performance Evaluation 
 Resolution Approving Recology San Mateo County 2021 Compensation Application 
 Resolution Approving South Bay Recycling 2021 Compensation Application 
 Resolution Approving 2021-2023 Public Education Plan 
 Resolution Approving Contract Extension for Legislative Advocacy services 
 Presentation of Draft Calendar Year 2021 SBWMA Operating Budget 
 2019 Rate Survey 
 Approval of MRF Phase II Equipment Purchase 
 Shoreway Environmental Center Project Update 

o MRF Phase I Equipment Upgrades Update 
o Organics-to-Energy Source Separated Organics Results 
o Stormwater Repairs 
o Tip Floor Repairs 
o Tunnel Pump Repairs 

 
October 22, 2020 

 Board/TAC/Finance Committee Study Session:  
(New Proposed Calendar Year DRAFT Budget period: January 1, 2021 – December 31, 2021) 

 
November 19, 2020 

 Board and TAC Annual Holiday Lunch before the Board Meeting 
 Closed Session: Labor Negotiations Unrepresented Employees 2020 Merit Pool 
 Resolution Approving Calendar Year Budget (January 1, 2021 – December 31, 2021) 

 Resolution Approving Calendar Year and Fiscal Year 2021 SBWMA Operating Budget 
 Resolution Approving Organics-to-Energy Pilot Phase II (full Scale Up) Equipment 

 
 Staff Update on SB1383 Regulations 

 
December 2020 – No Meeting 
 
January 28, 2021* 

 Election of 2021 Board Chair and Vice Chair 
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 Resolution Approving MRF Phase II-Equipment Upgrades

The 2021 Board of Director’s Calendar will be approved at the November 19, 2020 Board Meeting 

FULL PACKET PAGE 265 of 265


	AGENDA_SBWMA BOD Meeting 01302020
	7_Executive Director’s Report
	8_A_Approvoal of the minutes from the 110119 BOD/TAC Study Session
	8_B_ Approval of the Minutes from the 112119 BOD Meeting
	8_C_Resolution Accepting the FY18/19 Audited Financial Statements
	8_D_Resolution Approving Revised SBWMA Investment Policy for 2020
	8_E_Resolution Approving a contract with LPG Fire Protection Company Inc for a not toexceed amount of $77,778
	8_F_Approval of Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2019
	9_A_Election of Board Officers for 2020
	9_B_Resolution Accepting Mid-Year Review of FY19/20 Annual Operating Budget
	11_A_Review Analysis of CRV Redemption Alternatives
	11_B_Resolution Approving contract amendment for $71,272 for payment of Sales Tax onBoard-Approved MRF Controls Equipment
	12_A_Resolution Approving One-Year Base Contract with up to Two Additional Option Years fora Not-to-Exceed Total Contract value of $99,000 with Royal Coach Tours for SBWMAEnvironmental Education Programs Busing Services
	13_A_Capital Project Status Update (Glass Loadout, O2E Pilot, MRF Phase I Upgrades)
	13_B_2020 Legislative Session Update
	13_C_2020 Finance and Rate Setting Calendar
	13_D_Check Register Detail for November - December 2019
	13_E_Technical Consulting Contracts: September - December 2019
	13_F_Potential Future Board Agenda Items


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice




